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CLAIM NO. D53-69922 FEBRUARY 23, 1978

RICHARD BARRETT CLAI MANT

Philip A. Mongraln, Claimant's Atty.
Allan H. Coons, Defense Atty.
Own Motion Ma?ter Referred for Hearing

Oon December 6, 1977 the Board received a request from
claimant, by and through his attorney, to exercise its own
motion jurlsdrctlon, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and reopen his
claim for a compensable injury suffered on October 1, 1959

while claiman% was employed by Mt. Canary Lumber Company,
~whose workmen}!s compensation carrier was Employers Insurance
of Wausau.

| ‘
The injury was to claimant's right knee and surgical repair

of a torn lateral meniscus was performed on November 5, 1959.
The claimant ?lleges that since the injury his right knee con-
tinued to worsen until he was forced to undergo a total right
knee replacementln February 1977. The history of claimant's
right knee problem is set forth in claimant's affidavit
attached to his request for own motion relief.
I

Responding to claimant'sgrequest for own motion relief,
Wausau advised the Board that it was their position that.
workmen's compensatlon lnsurance was not mandatory under the
law in existence at the time of claimant's injury and employers

who chose not |to be covered could, Ry apREOPKiateé contract,
agree to provide industrially injured workmen benefits equal
to those provﬂded by the State Industrial Accident Commission
and such contracts were not subject to the jurisdiction of the
Commission. It offered copies of microfilm of an "Agreement"
signed by clafmant on November 16, 1959 and also a "Release
and Settlemeng of All Claims" executed by the claimant on
May 17, 1960. | It is the position of Wausau that SIAC never
had jurisdictﬂon in the first place, therefore, the Board
could not now have continuing jurisdiction and the request
for own motion relief must be dismissed.

: :

On the same date the Board also received claimant's
request to reopen his claim for a compensable injury suffered
on July 21, 1966 while in the employ of Georgia-Pacifie Corp.
The affidavit Furnlshed in support of this request stated
that claimant twisted his left knee while working for Jones
Veneer & Plywood, apparently the predecessor of Georgia-Pacific
Corp. Surgery|was performed on the left knee on October 17,
1966 and claimant returned to work in November of that year.




Claimant alleges to have had continuing problems with his

left knee for which he has been treated intermittently by

Dr. McHolick and in 1976 an arthrogram was performed which
revealed advanced degenerative changes in his left knee.

In regponge to thig claim Georgia=Pacific informed the
Board it had no knowledge of claimant's 1959 injury to his
right knee, however, based upon the information furnished it
by claimant's attorney, it appeared that the injury to the right
knee and the resultant total right knee replacement placed an
increased load or strain on the left knee and that claimant's
left knee problems are now directly attributable to the effects
of tha pyiar right kneec injury. Coorgia=Pacific takes the
position that the own motion relief requested for the 1966
injury is improper and claimant, if he is entitled to proceed
at all, should be allowed to proceed only against the employer
with whom he was employed at the time of the 1959 right knee
injury.

Claimant's attorney has requested that both requests for
own motion relief be heard in tandem, The Beard approves of

this reguest and, because it does not have sufficient evidence
at this time upon which to make a determination with respect
to either request for own motion relief, refers both matters
to the Hearings Division with instructions to set the matters
down for hearing and, if necessary, join both carriers. Upon
conclusion of the hearing of both matters, the Referee shall
cause a transcript of both proceedings to be submitted to the
Board together with his recommendation concerning the two
requests for own motion relief.

WCB CASE NO. 77-1598 FEBRUARY 23, 1978

RICHARD CARLSON, CLAIMANT
Roger B. Todd, Claimant's Atty.
Robert F. Walberg, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The claimant seeks review by the Board of the Referee's
order which dismissed his case. The issue before the Referee
was for the imposition of a penalty and award of attorney's
fee because of unreasonable delay or resistance in the payment
of compensation.




On Decemper 7, 1976 the Board had entered its order award-
ing claimant 40.5° for 30% loss of his right foot; upon appeal
the circuit court by its judgment order entered January 20, 1977

incroasad tha award to 60.75° for 45% loss of the right foot

and further provided that claimant's attorney should be paid a
sum equal to 20% of the additional compensation awarded as a
reasonable atﬁorney‘s fee, said fee to be paid out of the compen-
sation awarde@ payable as paid. At the present time an appeal

by the employer. is pending in the Court of Appeals.

The 1ncrease awarded by the circuit court amounts to
$1,417.50, 20% of this amount is $283.50. The employer paid

the claimant in three installmentg gnd gometime prior to March 8,
1977 claimant ‘had received the total amount to which he was
entitled, namély 80% of the increased compensation. No payments
had been paid:'to claimant's attorney. Because of this, the
claimant’'s attorney requested a hearing, contending that the
failure to pay him his compensation which was payable out of

the compensatioﬁ was, in effect, failure to pay compensation.

Claimant ihad written several letters to the employer con-

¢gining the payment of hig fooo from the asmpansation awarded
claimant. He also discussed the matter with two different
attorneys each representing the emplover, each told claimant's
attorney he wduld instruct the employer to pay the attorney
- fee. On March 18, 1977 claimant received a check for $283.50
in full payment of his fee.
t

The Referee concluded that the claimant had received his
full compensaﬁion by approximately March 1 and his attorney
had received hlS full attorney's fee shortly thereafter and
actually befoqe the full award had to be paid.

The Refeqee was of the opinion that the provisions of
ORS 656.313 which requires payment of compensation pending
review to insure that an injured workman is not deprived of
the compensation benefits when they are most useful to him
had been met. | Claimant had received his 80% on or about the
first of March. He viewed the failure to withhold and pay
the 20% for attorney's fees from February 1 to March to be
more the result of an administrative mixup or inadvertence
than intentional conduct and that there was never a refusal
to pay compensation,

The Refer?e concluded there was no evidence of intentional
conduct and.therefore there was not an unreasonable delay or
resistance in the payment of compensation inasmuch as the



total award of compensation was paid prior to the time re-
quired by ORS 656.216(1).

The Board, on de novo review, disagrees with the Referee's

intorpretation of attorney'c feeg which are payable out of
compensation awarded claimant. ORS 656.313 states that the
filing by an employer or the Fund of a request for review or
court appeal shall not stay payment of compensation to a
claimant. When the claimant's attorney fee is based on a
certain percentage of the compensation awarded claimant and
payable out of said compensation as paid, it is compensation
and must be timely paid to the attorney at the same time
claimant is paid. The fact that the claimant's attorney

ultimately wag paid hic attorney's fee in one lump sum a short
time prior to the date the total compensation was due does not
excuse the employer.

In this case claimant received his first check on February 1,
but his attorney did not receive any check until March 18, 1977.
The Board concludes this is an unreasonable delay in the payment
of compensation which subjects the employer to a penalty and
requires it to pay claimant's attorney's fee.

The Board further concludes that the employer should be
assessed a sum equal to 15% of the $283.50 which was belatedly
paid in a lump sum to the attorney for claimant, and should
also pay claimant's attorney a reasonable attorney's fee for
his services before the Referee at hearing.

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September 9, 1977 1s

reversed,

Georgia-Pacific is directed to pay to claimant's attorney,
Roger B. Todd, a sum.equal to 15% of $283.50, pursuant to the
provisicns of ORS 656.262(8).

Claimant's attorney is awarded as a reasonable attorney's
fee for his services at the hearing before the Referee the sum
of $100 payable bv the -employer.



WCBI CASE NO. 77-345 FEBRUARY 23, 1978

CLAIRE GATCHALL, CLATMANT

Emmons, Kyle, Kropp & Kryger,
Claimant's Atty.

Rhoten, Rhoten & Speerstra,

Befense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant
|

Fl

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
awarded him 256° for 80% unscheduled disability, the award to be

in lieu af tha Datarminatisn Ovdey dated Janua¥y 7, 1877, but not
to include a previous award for 45% unscheduled disability re-
sulting from a 1965 injury. Claimant contends he is permanently
and ‘totally disabled.

Claimant suffered a compensable injury on December 26, 1975
which resulted in severe back pain. Claimant's family physician,
Dr, Kuehn, saw claimant on January 8, 1976 and has continued to
treat him 1nterm1ttently for this back condition. Claimant was
also examined by Dr. Steele, an orthopedic surgeon, who placed
claimant in al!physical therapy program for his back problem.

Claimant had suffered a previous injury on March 5, 1975
when he hit his head on the tire of a Volkswagen which was up on
a hoist. Dr. Kuehn referred him to Dr. Serbu who had treated
claimant for a back injury in 1965. On April 30, 1975 Dr. Serbu
reported that 'claimant had suffered a mildly arthritic condition
in his neck when he struck his head on the tire and the X-rays
showed some narrow1ng of both C5-6 and C6-7. This March 1975
injury was accepted as a non-disabling injury. Claimant continued
to work and a;so continued to receive treatments for his neck prob-
lem up until the December 1975 injury. Since that injury claimant
has not returﬂed to work. '

|

Claimant filed an aggravation claim on May 20, 1977 relating
to his March 1975 neck injury; the claim was denied on June 29,
1977.

As a result of the 1965 injury claimant had had a lami-
nectomy. He has also been seen and examined by numerous medical
specialists. Fowever his primary treatment has been from Dr.
Kuehn. Dr. Kuphn in his deposition referred to claimant's neck
problem as well as to his mid-back problem and also to his
earlier low baEk_problem. He also stated that claimant had a



kiatal harnia. Apparontly claimant also has dizzy spells
occasioned by looking up or rapidly rotating his head. Dr.
Kuehn did not think the low back problem was a contributing
factor to claimant's present difficulty, he thought most of
claimant's problems came .from the mid-back area.

Dr. Steele, on March 8, 1977 stated that c¢laimant could not

retu¥n €8 hig dapmay smployment ag an automobile mechanic and
he would have permanent physical impairment which would limit
him in any significant bending, twisting, or lifting more than
10 pounds. It was Dr. Steele's opinion that the only type of
work available for claimant would be light work which would
allow frequent change of position and with claimant's background
and education, both of which are limited, it would be difficult
for claimant to find such work.

Claimant was seen by a Vocational Rehabilitation counselor
who concluded that because claimant for the past 19 years had
been an automobile mechanic and he now was unable to lift more
than 10 pounds nor to drive safely due to the inability to move
his head from side to side without suffering spells of vertigo
and, additionally, had some marginal GATB scores outside of the
verbal area with focused interests in a very competitive labor

markoet ho would be unable to return to any competitive smploymeat. 0

Claimant is 61 years old, is 5' 10" tall and weighs between
200 and 205 pounds, his normal weight for the past 30 years. He
has a high school; education and he did some farm work before
World War II during which he served two years plus as a truck
driver and a mechanic. The evidence indicates that claimant
cannot sit or stand for prolonged periods of time without his
back commencing to hurt and forcing him to lie down.

The Referee found the claimant does very little at the
present time and has made no effort .to return to work although
he has indicated he has talked to some people about work but
couldn't find anything he was able to do.

The Referee found that the medical evidence was insufficient
to support aggravation. He found there was a possibility that
some permanent disability may have existed with respect to
claimant's neck as a result of the March 1975 incident but the
medical testimony was not clear. He found the. December 1975 in-
jury had removed claimant from the labor market and had caused
most -of claimant's present problems, but he found it difficult
to find that claimant was permanently and totally disabled. The ‘ib
Referee commented that claimant  seemed quite comfortable during



!
the hearing despite the fact he said he was not able to sit for
a very long pF;iod of time.

The Referee felt that the award for 35% for unscheduled dis-
ability was inadequate. Based on claimant's age, the fact that

he is presently drawing Social Security benefits and is unable to
return to work as a mechanic, the Referee concluded that claimant

- was entitled to an award of 256° for 80% unscheduled disability.

Claimant had received 112° for 35% unscheduled disability by the
Determination’ Order of January 7, 1977.

After de! novo review, the Beoard finds claimant to be perma-
nently and totally disabled. Both Dr. Steele and Dr. Kuehn

seakad that slaimant could not return to his former employment as
an automobile mechanic and with all the limitations Dr. Steele
placed on claimant's physical activities that little was left

in the way of work activity in which claimant could engage.
Furthermore, Dr. Steele felt, based upon claimant's work background
and his education, that it would be very difficult for him to find
any light typé work. Such testimony was bolstered by the opinion
of Mr. Wyatt, a professional vccational rehabilitation counselor
who also felt claimant was precluded from returning to any gainful

employment. y

The Board finds that the medical and lay testimony is
sufficient toEestablish for claimant a prima facie case of
"odd-lot" permanent total disability and the employer has not
come forward with any evidence of a gainful and suitable occupa-
tion available to claimant on a regular basis. Therefore, claim-~
ant must be considered to be permanently and totally disabled.

| ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September 12, 1977 is
modified. Claimant is found to be permanently and totally
disabled as of the date of this order. This award for perma-
nent total diéability is in lieu of the award granted by the
Referee in his order which in all other respects is affirmed.

Clalmant 'S attorney is awarded as a reasonable attorney's
fee for his serV1ces at Board review. a sum equal to 25% of the
increased compensatlon granted to claimant by this order, pay-
able out of sald increased compensation as paid, not to exceed
$2,300. }



WCB CASE NO, 76-4779 FEBRUARY 23, 1978

FRANK J. HEINRICK, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn &
0'Leary, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

Claimant seeks review by the Board of the Referee's order
which affirmed the August 6, 1976 denial of claimant's claim by
the State Accident Insurance Fund,

The issues before the Referee were (1) compensability;
g2) Penalties for unreasonable denial and (3) timeliness of the

claim.

Claimant is 51 years old. He is a self-employed produce
trucker who has been a patient of Dr. Osborne since 1960. During
this time Dr. Oskorne had cautioned claimant to resist his tendency
to overwork. On March 3,1976 claimant suffered an onset of symptoms
including a rapid heart beat and dyspnea. He was seen by Dr.
Osborne at the emergency room of Portland Adventist Hospital. It

was the doctor's opinion claimant had suffered fatigue and paroxysmale
atrial tachycardia, hereinafter referred to as P.A.T.

On April 30, 1976 claimant filed a claim (form 801) with the
Fund. The Fund investigated the claim and denied it on August 6,
1976. .

Dr. Osborne on February 21, 1977 copined that claimant "did not
suffer an injury, but T felt that certainly he was on the verge of

total collapse from fatigue and certainly he could have, if he had
not taken care of himself, suffered probable serious damage to his

heart."” Later Dr. Wysham examined claimant who had apparently
improved under his medical management but was not able to run his
produce trucking business. It appeared claimant had suffered

from P.A.T. since 1960 and had become worse in the last three years.

Both Dr. Wysham and Dr. Lee, also a cardiologist, testified
at the hearing. The Referee was persuaded by their testimony
that the cause of P.A.T. is usually not known but is thought to
be degenerative. Also symptoms such as claimant had accompanied
by an attack of P.A.T. usually end when the accelerated heart
rate reverts to normal and there is no permanent change or
damage to the heart.




Dr. Wysham advised claimant to discontinue driving as a
precaution in case an attack should occur in the future. Dr.
Lee believed .that the P.A.T. was episodic rather than progressive

and that attacks were as likely to occur at rest as during exertion.
He did not feel there had been a sufficient number of attacks to
justify an opinion that the work precipitated them.

The Referee found that although the opinions of Dr. Wysham
were most persuasive that the attack was precipitated by work
related activity neither his report of March 14, 1977 nor his
testimony indicated that he was aware of what claimant was doing
on March 3, 1976 when the attack occurred. The Referee found
that it was impossible to accurately determine what claimant was '

deing kecause of the inconsistencies in his testimony. He found
claimant was not a credible witness and that he had failed to
prove that he had suffered a compensable injury on March 3, 1976
or thereafter.

Having made such findings, the issue of penalties and time-
liness of the claim became moot; nevertheless, the Referee
commented that resistance by carriers in heart claims was, in

most cases, all but guaranteed in view of the imperfect state
of knowledge of the art of medicine in that field. Furthermore,
the recoxrd failed to show more than persistent resistance to a
difficult claim which fell short of an unreasonable denial re-
quiring the imposition of penalties.

On the issue of timeliness of the claim, the Referee
commented that the provision for filing a claim found in
ORS 656.265 was keyed to notice or knowledge by the employer of
the injury and inasmuch as claimant was also the employer in
this instance, the statute of limitations probably would not
apply. As a %elf—employed worker, claimant presumably gualified
as a subject workman under ORS 656.128 and had failed to produce
a satisfactor& corroborative evidence of his injury as required
by subsection (3) of that statute.

The Board, on de novo review, agrees with the Referee's
conclusion that claimant has not suffered a compensable injury
but not because of claimant's lack of credibility. The Board
finds that clalmant failed to furnish sufflclent medical
corroboratlon'of a compensable 1njury

I

The Board finds that the claimant filed a claim on April 30,
1976 which was not denied until August 6, 1976. ORS 656.262(5)
requires wrltFen notice of acceptance or denial of a claim to be
furnished to the claimant by the Fund or direct responsibility

-9-



emplaoyer within 60 days after the employer has notice or know-

ledge of the c¢laim. Furthermore, ORS 656,262 (4) requires that e
the first installment of compensation shall be paid claimant no

later than the fourteenth day after the employer has notice or

knowledge of the claim. In this case, no compensation was paid

to claimant nor was his claim accepted or denled within the 60

day statutory period.

The Board, following the decision of the Supreme Court in
Jones v. Emanuel Hospital, 280 Or 147 , that even though a
claim is ultimately found to not be compensable, it is the duty
of the Fund or the employer, as the case may be, to commence
payments for temporary total disability within 14 days afterx
notice or knowledge of a ¢laim and alse to wmaka 8 #imaly assapt_
ance or denial of the claim, concludes that penalties are to be
assessed and attorney's fees are to be awarded.

ORDER
The order of the Referee dated June 21, 1977 is modified.

The State Accident Insurance Fund shall pay to the claimant
compensation, as provided by law, from March 3, 1976 and until

August 6, 1976, the date of its denial. 0

The Fund shall, puxsuant to the provisions of ORS 656.262 (8},
pay claimant additional compensation equal to 20% of the compen-
sation due and owing claimant from March 3, 1976 until August 6, 1976.

Claimant's attorney shall be paid as a reasonable attorney's
fee for his services before the Referee the sum of $600, payable

by the State Accident Insurance Fund.

Claimant's attorney shall be paid as a reasonable attorney's
fee for his services at Board review the sum equal to 25% of the
compensation awarded claimant by this order, payable out of said
compensation as paid, not to exceed the sum of $500.

In all other respects the Referee's order of June 21, 1977
is affirmed.

-10-



WCB CASE NO., 77-3166 FEBRUARY 23, 1978

HENERITTA L. JQHANNTOBERNS, CLAIMANT.
David R, Vandenberg, Jr., Claimapt's Atty.
Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Williamson &

Schwane, Defense Atty.
Order of Dismissal

A request for review, having been duly filed with the
Workers' Compensation Board in the above-entitled matter by
the claimant, and said request for review now having been
withdrawn, -

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that #ha vaguast Sap yaviaw paw
pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and the order
of the Referee is final by operation of law.

WCB CASE NO. 77-1844 FEBRUARY 23, 1978

JIMMY LEE RUST, CLAIMANT
Maurice V. Engelgau, Claimant's Atty,
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by SAIF
Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The State:Accident Insurance Fund requests Board review of
the Referee's order which granted claimant an award for permanent
and total disability. The order did not state the date on which
claimant became permanently and totally disabled.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
findings and conclu51ons contained in the Referee's order, a
copy of which is attached hereto and, by this reference, made
a part hereof.

-The Board finds that claimant has been permanently and
totally dlsabled since February 3, 1976 as a result of his
compensable lnjury suffered on April 8, 1975.

i ' ORDER

The order;of the Referee dated August 26, 1977 is affirmed.

Claimant shall be considered to have been permanently and
totally disabled since February 3, 1976.

\
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The Fund shall be allowed as a credit for payments for
permanent and total disability from this period all payments
of compensation paid to claimant pursuant to the Determination
Order entered March 9, 1977 whereby claimant was awarded compen-
sation for temporary total disability from April 9, 1975 '
through January 19, 1977, less time worked, and 96° for 30%
unscheduled low back disability.

Claimant's attorney is awarded as a reasonable attorney's
fee for his services at Board review the sum of $400 payable
by the State Accident Insurance Fund.

WCB CASE NO., 77-5622-581I FEBRUARY 23, 1978

In the Matter of the Petition of
BURELBACH INDUSTRIES CORPORATION
For Reimbursement from the Second
Injury Reserve Fund
In the Case of DONALD L. WALTERS
Jerome L., Noble, Claimant's Atty.
James Blevins, Defense Atty.
Order on Review

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson, Moore and Phillips.

On January 4, 1978 Referee Raymond S. Danner recommended
that the Board affirm the Determination Order dated August 3,
1977 which had denied a request by the employer, Burelbach
Industries Corporation for second injury relief.

No exception to arguments against the Referee's findings
of fact, conclusions of law and recommended order were filed

within 30 days of the service of said order and the Board, after
de novo review of the transcript of the proceedings, adopts as
its own the findings, conclusions and recommended order of
Referee Danner, dated January 4, 1978, a copy of which is
attached hereto and, by this reference, made a part hereof,

ORDER

The Determination Order dated August 3, 1977 is affirmed.

-12-




WCB CASE NO. 77-1913 FEBRUARY 23, 1978

In the Matter of the Compensation of

TERRY LYNN WILSON, CLAIMANT

and the Complying Status of

McKENZIE AUTO SALES, INC.

Hammons, Phillips & Jensen, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Harms, Harold & Leahy, Defense Atty.

Order of Remand

McKenzie Auto Sales, Inc., on February 7, 1978, reqguested
Board review of the Referee's order entered on January 5, 1978
awarding attorney's fees to claimant's attorneys pursuant to
OAR Rule 436-82-010.

--The Board is informed that, initially, the Referee had
been advised that only the issue of the complying status of
the employer, McKenzie Auto Sales, Inc.;, would be heard at the
hearing set for March 14, 1978 at Eugene, Oregon and therefore,
the Referee on request of the claimant's attorneys issued the
order awarding attorney's fees. It now appears that resolution

of all the issues may have to be made at the March 14, 1678

hearing and the order awarding attorney's fees may be premature.

The Board concludes that it would be in the best interest
of all parties concerned if all issues were before the Referee
at the Maxch 14, 1978 hearing and, therefore, the order award-
ing attorney's fees should be remanded to the Referee for such
action he may ¢hooes¢ te make, The request for review should

be dismissed.

IT IS5 SO ORDERED.

WCB CASE NO. 76-3683 FEBRUARY 24, 1978

HUGH MONROE FARRELL, CLAIMANT
Brian L. Welch, Claimant's Atty.
Marshall C. Cheney, Defense Atty.
Order of Remand

On October 14, 1976 an Opinion and Order was entered in
the above entitled matter by Referee Raymond S. Danner and on
October 21, 1976 the claimant, by -and through his attorney,
filed a request for review of said Opinion and Order of the

|
Workers' Comp$nsat10n Board which was acknowledged by the
Boarc on October 26, 1976.

i _13—



The proceedings at the hearing before Referee Danner

were reported by Larry Gryniewski, a free-lance reporter.
Before Mr. Gryniewski completed the transcript of the pro-
ceedings, he left Oregon to become a resident of Florida.
Several attempts have been made to obtain from him the com-
pleted transcript, but to no avail.

Therefore, the Board concludes it has no alternative but
to remand the above entitled matter to the Hearings Division

to be reheard. ORS 656.295(5).

IT IS SO ORDERED.

WCB CASE NO. 77-2341 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

ED BEA, CLAIMANT

Allen G. Owen, Claimant's Atty.
OAIP, Legal Sayvisas, Defange Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF
Cross-appeal by the Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which found claimant to be permanently and
totally disabled. Claimant cross-appeals, contending that the
Referee erred in making this compensation effective the date of
his order; in his opinion, the award should be granted as of Jan-
uwary 25, 1977, or at least the date of the hearing, June 21, 1977.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
OPinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached

hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.
ORDER

. The order of the Referee, dated August 12, 1977, is af-
firmed.

Claimant's attorney'is hereby granted as a reasonable

attorney's fee for his services in connectilon with this Board re-
view an amount equal to $100, payable by thé Fund.

-14-




WCB CASE NO. 77-4322 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

WILLIAM E. FRIEND, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn &
0'Leary, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by the SAIF

Revie&ed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which remanded claimant's aggravation claim
to it for acceptance and payment of compensation as provided by
law.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated September'l9, 1977, is
affirmed. '

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review in
the amount of $150, payable by the Fund.

WCB CASE NO., 77-~3539 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

ALLEN D. GABER, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn &
0'Leary, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which remanded claimant's claim for an injury
suffered on November 5, 1976 to it for acceptance and payment of
compensation to which he is entitled by law.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated October 21,1977, is af-
| |

firmed.
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Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review in

the amount of $330, payable by the Fund.

SAIF CLAIM NO., EC 192507 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

RONALD D. McCAULEY, CLAIMANT
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Own Motion Determination

Claimant suffered a low back injury on June 25, 1969.
li¢ was hospitalized from Auqust 16, 1969 through August 24, 1969
for conservative treatment. He was in the hospital again in Oct-
ober 1969 for a spinal fusion. He returned to work as a florist
in September 1970. The claim was closed on October 5, 1970 with time
loss benefits paid up through September 8, 1870 and an award of 64°
for unscheduled low back disability plus 49° for loss of wage earn-
ing capacity.

Claimant was hospitalized several times in 1971 and his
claim was reopened on February 2, 1972, His claim was closed on
September 29, 1972 with an award for additional time loss only.
Claimant returned to work on July 4, 1972,

From August 19, 1975 until September 12, 1975 claimant at-
tended the Pain clinlc. He returned to work in March 1976 and had e
to quit in September 1976. His claim was reopened with payment of

time loss benefits commencing September 2, 1976. Subsequently, he

was admitted to the hospital for conservative back care.

Claimant, after a psychological evaluation in 1975, had
been found to have a significant psychogenic factor related to his

pain problems and he underwent psychiatriic sownseiing., Dr. Seres,
on April 15, 1977, felt claimant had a serious schizo-affective
psychiatric disorder together with an increase in his physical
symptoms.

The Orthopaedic Consultants examined c¢laimant on February
8, 1977 and found him to be drug dependent with symptoms that out-
weighed any objective physical findings. They did not feel that
his condition was medically stationary at that time.

Dr. Pasguesi, on October 27, 1977, found claimant's drug
problem to be arrested. He felt claimant's psychiatric condition
was under control and that there were no physical symptoms except
when claimant exerted himself. He found him to be medically station-
ary.

On November 17, 1977 the Fund requested a determinaticon
of claimant's disability. The Evaluation Division of the Workers'
Compensation Department recommended that claimant be granted tem- ‘ib
porary total disability benefits from September 2, 1976 through
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October 27, 1977, less time worked. In their opinion claimant had
been adequately compensated for his permanent disability.

The Board concurs with this recommendation.

ORDER

Claimant is hereby granted temporary total disability bene-
fits from September 2, 1976 through October 27, 1977, less time
worked.

WCB CASE NO. 76-4194 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

HOWARD S. MEYER, CLAIMANT

Bell, Bell & Rounsefell, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant:

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
affirmed the July 2, 1976 Determination Order granting him compen-
sation equal to 48° for 15% unscheduled low back disability.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

‘ The order of the Referee, dated October 7, 1977, is af-
firmed.

WCB CASE NO. 76-4747 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

JACK P. MONGEON, CLAIMANT
Carney, Probst & Levak, Claimant's Atty.
Miller, aAnderson, Nash, Yerke &
Wiener, Defense Atty.
Order of Dismissal

A request for review, having been duly filed with the
Workers' Compensation Board in the above entitled matter by the
employer, and said request for review now having been withdrawn,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request for review now

pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and the order of the
Referee is final by operation cof law.
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WCB CASE NO. 76-5250 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

GLEN ROWLEY, CLAIMANT

Ringle & Herndon, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which found claimant to be permanently and
totally disabled.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which 1s attached
hereto and, by this reference,ris made a part hereof,

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated August 18, 1977, is af-
firmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review in
the amcunt of $100, payable by the carrier.

WCB CASE NO. 77-2719 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

JOSEPH D. SULENTICH, CLAIMANT

Galton, Popick & Scott, Claimant's Atty,
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIT

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which found claimant to be permanently and
totally disabled.

) The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, ‘is made a part hereof.

ORDER

. The order of the Referee, dated September 15, 1977, is af-
firmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-

ney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review in
the amount of $100, payable by the Fund. -
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WCB CASE NO. 77-1669 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

DENNIS E. WELDEN, CLAIMANT

Doblie, Bischoff & Murray, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
affirmed the carrier's denial of his back claim.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopté-fhe
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated October 28, 1977, is af-
firmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-3594 FEBRUARY 27, 1978

DHILLIP E. Z2ERR, CLAIMANT

Franklin, Bennett, Ofelt & Jolles,
Claimant's Atty.

SATF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which granted claimant compensation egual. to
112° for 35% unscheduled permanent disability.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.
ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated October 3, 1977, is af-
firmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-

ney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review in
the amount of $100, payable by the Fund.
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WCB CASE NO. 76-796 FEBRUARY 28, 19738

IRAL ALDRIDGE, CLATMANT

Charles Paulson, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund requests review of a
Referee's order which awarded claimant 160° for 50% unscheduled
cervical and lumbosacral disability, an increase of 45% over the
award made by the Determination Order of February 3, 1976.

Claimant is a 58 year old truck driver who injured his
back on February 17, 1975 while unloading a truck. He has a high
schocl education and some college education.

Dr. Heusch indicated claimant gave a vague history of
low back pain for the past 10 years with relief by chiropractic
manipulation. The ultimate diagnosis was degenerative cervical
and lumbar disc disease. No surgery has been performed and treat-
ment has been conservative, utilizing traction, manipulation and
anti-inflammatory medication.

The members of the Orthopaedic Consultants who saw claim- cji
ant on July 25, 1975 felt the loss of function of the lower back
as it existed on that date was mild with loss of function due to

this injury minimal. The loss of function in the neck was considered
mildly moderate with loss function due to the injury considered min-
imal. There appeared to be a moderate degree of interference with

the examination from functional disturbances. A previous claim of
psychological disability has been denied by the Fund.

The Referee in his order stated:

"#e has not looked for work during the yeay 1977

and does not know what he would do to make money.
Any wages that he is able to earn would jeopardize
his $100 a month Teamster disability pension. He
also receives $150 Teamster pension on the basis of
retirement at 55 years. He receives Social Security

benefits."

The Board, on de novo review, finds that apparently
claimant does not want to look for work because he does not want
to jeopardize his unearned income and for that reason has vol-
untarily retired. If this is true, and it was not contradicted,
there is no basis for a finding that claimant has lost one-~half

of his earning capacity.

Based on his education and his physical residuals the
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only impedimeﬁt to claimant's retraining was his flat refusal
to entertain the idea.

The Board concludes that, considering claimant's phy-
sical residual disability and the criteria for establishing loss
of wage earning capacity, claimant's loss of wage earning capa-
city is more equal to 35%.

-

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated August 29, 1977, is mod-
ified. ’ :

~Claimant is awarded 112° for 35% unscheduled disability.
This is in lieu of the Referee's order which, in all other respects,
is affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-3119 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

FRED S. BASCOM, CLAIMANT

Emmons, Kyle, Kropp & Kryger,
Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Wilson.

‘Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
affirmed the October 13, 1976 Determination Order granting tempor-
ary total disability benefits from June 15, 1976 through Ju%y 12, -
1976 and no compensation for permanent disability. g

' The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopté the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

.. . .The order of the Referee, dated September 23, 1977, is
affirmed.
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WCB CASE NO. 77-2134 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

BILLY D. BROCKMAN, CLAIMANT

Schumaker & Bernstein, Claimant's Atty.

Jones, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty.

Order of Dismissal

A request for review, having been duly filed with the
Workers' Compensation Board in the above entitled matter by the
claimant, and said request for review now having been withdrawn,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request for review now

pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and the order of the
Referee is final by operation of law.

SAIF CLAIM NO. A 310030 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

OHMAN CHRISTOPHER, CLAIMANT
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense”/Atty.
Own Motion Order

On December 31, 1977 the claimant requested the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction, pursuant to ORS 656.278, and
reopen his claim for a compensable industrial injury to his left
foot suffered while in the employ of Jim Whitaker Logging Company,
whose Workers' Compensation coverage was furnished by the State

Industrial Accident Commlssion, the predecessor to the Géaka Apoi-
dent Insurance Fund. The request was supported by medical reports
from Dr. James W. Brooke, dated September 30, 1977 and January 28,
1978. Dr. Brooke was of the opinion that claimant's present epi-
sode of ankle distress is one of the late sequelae of the osteomye-
litis for which he was treated in 1952 and that the time loss he
has experienced during the treatment of this latest episode is as-
sociated with that initial industrial injury.

The Fund was the recipient of Dr. Brooke's letter of Jan-
uary 28, 1978 which enclosed a copy of his earlier letter of Sep-
tember 30, 1977. On February 17, 1978 the Fund responded, stating
that it would not resist the reopening of the claim,

The Board, after reviewing the medical reports in support
of claimant's request, concludes that the claim should be reopened
pursuant to the provisions of ORS 656.278 for such medical care and
treatment as claimant may require.

ORDER

Claimant's c¢laim for an industrial injury suffered on Aug-
ust 7, 1952 is remanded to the State Accident Insurance Fund to be
accepted and for the payment of compensation, as provided by law,
commencing September 15, 1977, the date claimant was hospitalized
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for exploration of the old area of osteomyelitis, and until the claim
is closed again pursuant to the provmslons of ORS 656.278, less time
worked. : , v

WCB CASE NO. 77-5293 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

GERALD L. DOUD, CLAIMANT

Helm & Peterson, Claimant's Atty.

Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Williamson
& Schwabe, Employer's Atty.

Philip A. Mongrain, Defense Atty.

Own Motion Order Referring for Hearing

On January 23, 1978 the Board received from claimant, by
and through his attorney, a reguest that it exercise its own motion
jurisdiction pursuant to the provisions of ORS 656.278 and reopen
his claim for an industrial injury suffered on February 19, 13967
while in the employ of Bolse Cascade, whose workers' compensation
coverage at that.time was furnished by Employers Insurance of Wau-
.8au. Claimant's claim for that injury has been closed and his
aggravation rights have expired.

On December 15, 1977 claimant had requested a hearing on
the denial by Boise Cascade, a self insurer, on October 19, 1977, of

hic elaim for an ocoupational dlggagg

: On January 25, 1978 the attorney representing Boise Cas-
cade and the attorney representing Wausau were informed by the
Board of the reguest for own motion relief and asked to inform the
Board of their respective positions within 20 days thereafter.

On February 6, 1978 -the attorney for Boise Cascade ad-
vised the Board that claimant's physical. preoblems, if covered,
should be the responsibility of the workers' compensation carrier
for Boise Cascade at the time of claimant's 1967 injury, namely,
Wausau, - and not the responsibility of Boise Cascade as a self-insured.
He stated his opinion that the medical reports relating to claim-
ant's current disability indicated it was not related to his work .
activity under any circumstances. Enclosed with this letter were
‘'seven medical reports, a copy of the denial letter dated October
19, 1977 and claimant's application for benefits with NHA, indi-
cating an injury date of October 17, 1976 (a date referred to by
Dr. Johnson's report-of Qctober 7, 1977).

On February 14, 1978 the. attorney representing Wausau ad-
visad the Board that claimant's most recent and continuing problems
should be the responsibility of Boise Cascade, under its self-insur-
ance program, based on the theory of a new compensable injury or
occupational disease.
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At the present time, the Board does not have sufficient
evidence before it upon which to make a determination on whether
claimant's present condition is compensable and, if so, if it re- :
sults from his 1967 industrial injury and represents a worsening

thereof or 1s a new compensablé injupy ay sgoupational diceasa.
Therefore, the Board remands the request for own motion relief to
the Hearings Division to set for hearing on a consolidated basis
with the claimant's hearing on the propriety of the denial of his
claim for occupational disease made by Boise Cascade on October 12,
1977.

Upon conclusion of the hearing, the Referee shall cause
a transcript of the proceedings to be prepared and shall submit
such transcript to the Board together with the Referee's recommen-
dations. '

WCE CASE NO. 75-4371 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

ALVIN F. KEEVY, CLAIMANT

Ringle & Herndon, Claimant's Atty.

Rankin, McMurry, Osburn & Gallagher,
Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Employer

C

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which found claimant to be permanently and totally disabled.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated July 28, 1877, is af-
firmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-

ney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review in
the amount of $400, pavable by the carrier.
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WCB CASE NO. 77-2325 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

FREDERIC E. McGREW, JR., CLAIMANT

McMenamin, Joseph, Herrell & Paulson,
Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services) Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson, Moore and Phillips.

The claimant seeks rev1ew by the Board of the Referee's
order which afflrmed the carrier's denial of claimant's claim for
aggravation.

Claimant suffered a compensable injury on June 2, 1972
which resulted in acute low back strain. He was seen by Dr. Zeller
at the Providence Medical Center emergency room. His claim was
closed on September 18, 1972 with an award for temporary total dis-
ability to June 12, 1972 only. '

In October 1972 claimant had a hiatal hernlorraphy and in
May and again in August of 1974 claimant consulted Dr. Mueller com-
plaihing-of low back pain which in August was complicated with bi-
lTateral leg pain and numbness. Claimant again was seen by Dr. Mueller
on November 4, 1976 with complaints of low back and left hip pain.
On December 28, 1976 claimant's low back pain became symptomatic

when he bent over to pick up a piece of paper. Claimant filed an
aggravation claim which was denied on May 19, 1977,

Dr. Zeller, the original treating physician, was unable to
relate the December 28, 1976 incident-to the 1972 injury. Dr.
Gritzka, Dr. Misko and Dr. Mueller were of the opinion that the
claimant's herniated disc which was discovered after December 28,
1976 was related to the 1972 injury, but the Referee found no evi-
dence that either Dr. Gritzka or Dr. Misko had ever been furnished
with an accurate medical history of claimant's back problems. He
did find that Dr. Mueller had some information but he was inclined
to give more weight to Dr. Zeller's oplnlon 1nasmuch as his report
reflected more background information.

Clalmant s symptoms were not initiated on June 2, 1972;
evidence indicates that claimant first.had low back problems ap-
proximately 20 years prior to the date of the hearing. On May 22,
1971 a medical report indicated c¢laimant was complaining of pain
in nis left low back and hip while at work. Claimant had complained
of low back pain and lower extremity numbness in 1974 and the hos-
pital report reveals information that claimant had had back pain
and left hip complaints following a mastoid surgery in 1954.

The Referee felt that the medical opinion, with the ex-
ception of Dr. Zeller's, was of very little value. Where the
hypothesis upon which a specialist predicates his opinion is not
supported by the evidence his opinion is not entitled to any weight.

!

|
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The Referee concluded the doctors had not been given an accurate
medical history on which to base their respective opinions and that
¢lalmant had failed to support his claim for aggravation with ade-

quate medical evidence.

Based on the ruling of the Court of Appeals in Jones v.
Emanuel Hospital, 29 Or Ap 265, the Referee did not assess penalties
and attorneys' fees because claimant failed to prevail on the merits
of his claim.

After de 'novo review, the majority of the Board agreés
with the Referee that because of the inaccuracies contained in the
medical history related to Drs. Gritzka, Misko and Mueller, and es-
pecially as to the former two, that little weight can be accorded
to their expressed opinions concerning the causal relationship be-
tween the 1976 incident and the claimant's compensable injury suf-
fered on June 2, 1972. On the other hand, Dr. Zeller, who saw
claimant immediately after he suffered the acute low back strain
on June 2, 1972 felt that that injury was primarily a muscle or lig-
ament strain which had been "well for over 4 years," The denial

was properly affirmed.

At the time the Referee wrote his order, he was correct in
not assessing penalties and awarding attorney's fees. However, since
the date of his order the Supreme Court has ruled that regardless of
whether a claim ultimately may be found to be not compensable, the
Fund (or the employer) must within 14 days after such notice or
knowledge of the claim make payment of compensation to claimant and
it must also either accept or deny the claim within 60 days after
such knowledge or notice. If the Fund (or employer) fails to do
either, it is subject to the assessment of penalties and must pay
claimant's attorney a reasonable attorney's fee. Jones v. Emanuel
Hospital, 280 Or 147 (October 18, 1977).

This was a claim for aggravation. ORS 656.273(6) provides
that a claim submitted in accordance with this section shall be pro-
cessed by the Fund (or employer) in accordance with the provisions
of ORS 656.262 except that the first installment of ccmpensation due
under subsection (4) of 656.282 shall be paxd no latey £han the

14th day after the employer has notice or knowledge of medically
verified inability to work resulting from the worsened condition,

The evidence indicates that the Fund was not given med-
ical verification of claimant's claim for aggravation until Dr.
Gritzka advised them by letter dated February 15, 1977 and the
first payment of compensation for temporary total disability was
made by the Fund prior to that information, therefore, claimant
received his compensation timely. However, the denial of claim-
ant's claim filed on January 13, 1977 was not made until May 19,
1977, which was over 60 days after the Fund had knowledge of the
claim, therefore, the Fund must pay claimant compensation from
January 13 to February 14, 1977, the date it paid the first in-
stallment of compensation and must pay claimant an additional
sum based ona percentage of the compensation due and owing claim-
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ant from January 13, 1977 to February 14, 1977 and pay claimant's
atiorney & reasonablc attorneys' fee,

ORDER

The order of the Referee dated September 1, 1977 is mod-
ified. '

The denlal on May 19 1977 by the State Accident Insur-
ance Fund is affirmed.

-~ - The Fund is directed to pay claimant's compensation, as
prOVlded by law, from January l3; 4977 t@ Iebruary 14, 1977,

The Fund is further directed to pay claimant an additional
sum- equal to 25% of the compensation due claimant from January 13,
1977 to February 14, 1977 pursuant to the provisions of ORS 656.262(8).

The claimant's aﬁtorney is awarded as a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services at hearing before the Referee the sum of
$600, payable by the Fund.

Clalmant's atternsy is awarded as a reasonable attorney's
fee for his services at Board level a sum equal to 25% of the addi-
tional compensation awarded claimant by virtue of this order, pay-
able out of said compensation as paid not to exceed $2,300

Board Member Phillips dissents as follows:

This reviewer finds it impossible to discount the opin-
ions of Drs. Mueller, Gritzka and Misko in favor of the opinion of
Doctor Zeller in which he states: "It is difficult for me to see
how this last accident had anything to do with his original injury.
His original injury was primarily a muscle or ligamentous strain
which was well for over four years. The statement is a little
equivocal and is contrary to testimony regarding the back paln in
the period between the first and last incidents.

Although the reports of Drs. Mueller, Gritzka and Misko
are bhased to some degree on history, they are consistent and reflect
their opinions regarding medical probability.

I would reverse the decision of the-Referee, remand the

claim to the State Accident Insurance Fund and impose the appropriate‘
penalties-as-found by the majority decision of the Board.

/42¢¢4ﬂ5%5§r/77g;%;z;éﬁiéﬁlﬂé

Kenneth V. Phillips, Board Member
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WCB CASE NO. 76-4563 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

RALPH C. MINOR, CLAIMANT
Larry Dawson, Claimant's Atty.
G. Howard Cliff, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant
Cross—appeal by Employer

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
granted him compensation equal té 160% fay 502 unsaheduled louy
back disability. Claimant contends that he is permanently and
totally disabled while the employer, on cross-—-appeal, argues that
the award granted by the Referee is excessive. :

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached.
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The srday 8f tha Reforpoo, dated Rugust 17, 1977, 1s af-

firmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-72 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

CARL OAKES, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn &
O'Leary, Claimant's Atty.

SalT, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which reguired the Fund to accept claimant's
claim for medical expenses,connected with his aggravation claim,
as a compensable claim and further, that it pay claimant 25% of
this amount as a penalty plus an attorney fee.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated September 15, 1977, is
affirmed.
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Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review in
the amount of $350, payable by the Fund. )

WCB CASE NO. 77-1579 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

CLAY C. PERKINS, CLAIMANT

D. Keith Swanson, Claimant's Atty.

Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Williamson
& Schwabe, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Employer

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

‘The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which awarded claimant 64° for 20% unscheduled low back disability,
19.2° for 10% loss of his right arm and 9.6° for 5% loss of his
left arm. A Determination Order dated February 2, 1977 had awarded
claimant 32° for 10% unscheduled neck disability.

Claimant, a 48-year-old bulldozer driver, on June 29, 1976,
suffered a compensable injury when his truck collided with a train;
claimant was thrown from the cab of his bulldozer. He was taken to
a hospital where Dr. N.C. Lewis diagnosed multiple contusions and a
laceration of the right elbow.

Dr. John Burr, who had previously treated claimant, ex-

amined claimant on July 1, 1976, at which time, the claimant walked
-humped over and complained of great pain in the upper neck and pain
in the left calf. Dr. Burr found marked tenderness in the posterior
cervical and upper thoracic spine. He dilagnosed severe sprain and
contusions to the elbow and forearms, abrasions of the hands, a
cervical strain, upper thcoracic spine and an abrasion to the left
calf. Claimant received conservative treatment for these injuries.

On August 26, 1976, because of a bursitis condition, Dr.
Buri performed a bilatgral olecranon bursa resection and ulnar
acromioplastics. After this surgery, claimant's problems with his
elbows were practically gone. On September 30, 1976 claimant re-
turned to his former employment; he was found to be medically sta-
tionary by Dr. Burr on December 17, 1976 and the aforementioned
Determination Order was entered. '

' On May 2, 1977 Dr. Burr saw the claimant for the last
tlme‘gnd noted he continued to have symptoms of tightness and sore-
ness in the muscles of the shoulders and upper arms and neck.

Claimant has only an 1llth grade education and all of his
work'experience has been in manual labor. He testified he has
continuing and constant pain and discomfort in the neck and upper
back area, as well as continuing problems with both elbows. Claim-
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ant also alleges low back pain and numbness and weakness in his
left elbow and right elbow.

The Referee found the claimant had met his burden of proof
to show a slight permanent disability existing in both arms and in

the lower hack, in addition to his neck and cervical area. C(Claim-
ant has returned to his former employment, therefore, any loss of
earning capacity is mild. The Referee concluded that claimant was
entitled to additional compensation for his unscheduled disability
and to awards for loss function of both arms.

The Board, after de novo review, finds no medical evidence
which would suppeort or indicate that claimant suffers any greater
loss of earning capacity because of low back disability nor any med-
ical evidence that claimant has suffered any loss of function of his
arms due to this injury. Therefore, thé Bsard weuld revarce the
Referee's order and reinstate the Determination Order of February
2, 1877,

ORDER
The Referee's order, dated July 8, 1977, is reversed.

The Determination Order, dated February 2, 1977, is re-
af firmed.

SAIF CLAIM NO, RC 228129 FEBRUARY 28, 1978

AVIS RUSZKOWSKI, CLAIMANT

Lyle Velure, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Own Motion Order

On January 23, 1978 the Board received from claimant,
by and through her attorney, a request that it exercise its own
motion jurisdiction pursuant to ORS 656.278 and reopen her claim
for an industrial injury suffered on January 23, 1970.

Claimant had previously requested own motion relief

which was denied on September 9, 1977; however, the present re-
guest indicates that claimant underwent surgery by Dr. Dunn on Dec-
ember 8, 1977, to wit; the rhizotomy which Dr. Dunn recommended
after he reexamined claimant on October 25, 1977.

On January 25, 1978 the Board requested the Fund to re-
spond within 20 days stating its position with regard to the re-
quest for own motion relief. On February 3, 1978 the Board was
informed by the Fund that it had asked Dr. Dunn to express his
opinion of the causal relationship between the surgery and claim-
ant's initial industrial injury and on February 17, 1978 the Fund
advised the Board that it had received Dr. Dunn's letter and en-
closed operative reports and it would not resist reopening claim-
ant's claim. :
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The Board, after reviewing the matter, concludes that
the L4 rhizotomy performed by Dr. Dunn on December 8, 1977 was
causally related to claimant's industrial injury of January 23,
1970 and inasmuch as the claimant's claim for that injury was ini-
tially closed by Determination Order- dated December 10, 1970 and
claimant's aggravation rights have now expired, concludes that it
would be proper to exercise its own motion jurisdiction pursuant
to ORS 656.278 and reopen claimant's claim.

URDER

Claimant's claim for an industrial injury suffered on
January 23, 1970 is remanded to the State Accident ‘Insurance Fund
to be accepted and for. the payment of compensation, as provided
by law, commencing on December 8, 1977 and until the claim is
closed pursuant to the provisions of ORS 656.278.

Claimant's attorney is awarded as a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services in behalf of claimant a sum equal to
25% of the compensation for temporary total disability which

claimant shall receive as & recult of thic orday, payabla aut &f
said compensation as 'paid, not to exceed $350.

WCB CASE NO, 77-711 MARCH 2, 1978

DENNIS BERLINER, CLAIMANT

Malagon, Starr & Vinson, Claimant's Atty.
Newhouse, Foss, Whitty & Roess, Defense Atty.
Order '

Cn February 14, 1978 the employer, by and through its
attocrney, filed its motion to dismiss thé claimant's Request for
Review in the above entitled matter on the grounds and for the
reason that the regquest was not filed within the time allowed by
law.

~ On February 21, 1978 the Board received a letter from
the claimant's attorney opposing the employer's motion to dismiss,
OAR 436-83-480 provides:

"The Referee may reopen the record and recon-
sider his decision before a notice of appeal
is filed, or, if none is filed, before the
actual period expires."

In this case, the Referee had entered his Opinion and
Order on November 18, 1977 and within 30 days of its entry and
before an appeal had been' taken, a Motion for Reconsideration was
received. from claimant's attorney. On December 7, 1977 the Ref-
eree entered an order which suspended his prior Opinion and Order,

!
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directed the employer and its carrier to submit a written response
to the motion within 10 days, pursuant to OAR 436-83-260, and 6
stated that the Referee's jurisdiction would continue until fur-

thir order. This was not a final order from which appeal could be
taken,

On January 9, 1978 an Order on Motion for Reconsideration
was entered by the Referee which denied claimant's motion for re-
cop51deration, vacated the order entered on December 7, 1977 and
relnstated and republished in its entirety the Referee's Opinion

and Ordar daend Novembor 18, 1077.

‘ ' The-Board, after giving full consideration to the employer's
brief in support of his motion to dismiss the request for review
apd.also the letter brief filed by the claimant's attorney in oppo-
sition to said motion, concludes that when the Referee set aside
his Opinion and Order he still had jurisdiction to do whatever he
chose with such order because neither party had requested a review
by the Board of said Opinion and Order nor had 30 days expired from
the date that Opinion and Order was entered. .

In order to give himself and the parties involved suffi-
cient time to present evidence in support of, or in opposition to,
the matters requested to be reconsidered by the Referee, the Ref-
eree correctly stayed his original Opinion and Order until he could
issue an order on said motion. The only final and appealable order
in this matter was the Referee's Order on Motion for Reconsideration e
entered on January 9, 1978. (Claimant's Request for Review was re-
ceived on February 8, 1978 and, therefore, it was timely filed.

ORDER

The employer's motion to dismiss claimant's request for
review in the above entitled matter 1is hereby denied.

The claimant's Request for Review is acknowledged and upon
receipt of the transcript of proceedings the parties involved will
be advised of a schedule for the filing of briefs.

WCB CASE NO. 77-5494 MARCH 2, 1978

DALE CLOUGH, CLAIMANT

Williams, Spooner & Graves, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Own Motion Order

_ Claimant, by and through his attorney, on August 26,
1977, filed a claim for aggravation of a compensable injury suf-
fered on December 1, 1971. This claim had been closed on February
23, 1972 by a Determination Order granting claimant compensation
for temporary total disability only.
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Aftor the denial of ¢he nggravatisn alaim am Capeampay
14, 1977 the claimant, through his attorney, requested a hearing
which was set for December 8, 1977. The Fund, by and through its
counsel, moved to dismiss the request on the grounds and for the
reason that the aggravation rights of claimant had expired. Claim-
ant's attorney, on December 2, 1977, advised the Board that in the
event the motion to dismiss was granted he would desire that the
matter be considered by the Board under its own motion jurisdiction.

On December §, 1977 Referee Terry L. Johnson entered an
Order of Dismissal and, in accordance with the request by claimant's

attorney, the Board prepared to consider the matter under 1ts own
motion .jurisdiction.

On January 25, 1978 the Fund was advised by the Board of
its decision to consider the matter under the provisions of ORS 656.
278, reciting a brief background of the initial claim for aggrava-
tion and the request by claimant's attorney for own motion relief
in the event claimant's aggravation rights had expired. The Board
furnished the Fund with a copy of the Referee's Order of Dismissal,

a copy of Dr. Boals medical report dated August 5; 1977, and a copy
of Dr. Gilsdorf's medical report datéd July 27, 1977 and asked the
Fund to advise the Board within 20 days of its position with respect
to the request for own motion relief. '

More than 20 days have expired and no response has been
received from the Fund. The Board concludes that there has been
an ample showing made by the claimant to warrant reopening of his
claim under the provisions of ORS 656.278 for treatment by a neuro-
surgeon and such other medical care as was recommended by Dr. Boals
in his report of August 5, 1977.

ORDER

Claimant's claim for a compensable injury suffered on
December 1, 1971 is remanded to the State Accident Insurance Fund
to be accepted and for the payment of compensation, as provided by
law, commencing on or about June 5, 1977, the approximate date
that. claimant took sick leave from his employment as a member of
the Oregon State Police, and until the claim is closed pursuant to
the provisions of ORS 656.278, less any time claimant may have worked
between these dates. '
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SATF CLAIM NO. HC 58084 MARCH 2, 1978

JACK FISHER, CLATIMANT
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Own Motion Order

On June 30, 1977 an Own Motion Determination was made
in the above entitled matter, based on a closing examination made
by Dr. Misko on June 14, 1977, which granted claimant compensation
for temporary total disability from March 16, 1977 through April
24, 1977.
I

On January 31, 1978 claimant, by and through his attor-
ney, furnished the Board a current medical evaluation from Dr.
Misko who had examined claimant on November 21, 1977. As a re-
sult of this examination Dr. Misko found claimant was tender over
the medial epicondyle, had good strength throughout the right
upper extremity and found no intrinsic muscle loss. The digiti
guinti abductor was normal but there was decreased sensation to
pin and temperature over the small finger.

A copy of Drsy Misko's repekt was furnished to the Fund
and the Board advised it to respond within 10 days, stating its
position. On February 15, 1978 the Fund advised the Bocard that,
in its opinion, claimant had been adequately compensated for his
permanent disability resulting from the January 31, 1967 injury
and requested the Board to determine the issue based on the med- ‘ib
ical reports of record.

The Board, after careful consideration of Dr. Misko's
latest report and the prior medical reports, concludes that the
matter should be resubmitted to the Evaluation Bivisién &f tha
Workers' Compensation Department for a determination of claimant's
present disability.

ORDER

Claimant's claim for a compensable injury suffered on
January 31, 1967 is hereby submitted to the Evaluation Division
of the Workers' Compensation Department for a determination of
claimant's present disability, taking into consideration not only
Dr. Misko's report of January 17, 1978 but also all previous

medical reports relating to claimant's condition.

If the Evaluation Division determines that the claim—
ant should be awarded additional compensation, either for tem-
porary total disability or for permanent partial disability, it
is requested to make its recommendation to the Board in the
form of an advisory opinion.
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WCB CASE NO. 77-2912 MARCH 2, 1978

SHIRLEY GUINN, CLAIMANT

Emmons, Kyle, Kropp & Kryger, Claimant's Atty.
Collins, Velure & Heysell, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Employer

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

The employer has requested Board review of the Referee's
order wherein he awarded claimant 45° for 30% loss of the left

hand. This papyasented an increase of 15% of the award made by
the Determination Order of April 6, 1977.

On December 2, 1976 claimant caught the ring and long
fingers of her left hand in the Raimann machine she was operating.
Dr. K. Clair Anderson amputated those fingers at the distal phalanx
of the ring finger and at the middle phalanx of the middle finger.
On January 14, 1977 claimant was released to return to light work
and within three or four weeks returned to her former job.

Claimant testified she has no sense of touch or feeling
in these two fingers and that she cannot use them to pick up ob-

jecta. She teogeificd eha ¢ipa ave &till téndér, they swell in cold

weather and she has a lack of grip.

When ciaimant last saw Dr. Anderson, however, he noted
she had "excellent motion", that her fingers were "well healed”
with "good skin coverage which appeared relatively non-tender".

The Board, on de novo review, finds the award made by the
Referee excessive. The Board concludes the award for 15% loss of
the left hand made by the Determination Order adequately compen-
sates claimant for the loss of function of her left hand.
ORDER

: The order of the Referee, dated September 12, 1977, is re-
versed.

The Determination Order, dated April 6, 1977, is affirmed.

WCB CASE NO, 76-3586 MARCH 2, 1978
DILLARD D. RICHISON, CLAIMANT
Harold W. Adams, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips,

| - -35-



Claimant requests Board review of a Referee's order
which awarded claimant 240° for 75% of the maximum allowable by
statute for unscheduled disability. Claimant contends he is
permanently and totally disabled.

Claimant, age 47, was a wallboard installer who suffered
a compensable injury on February 15, 1973. Shortly thereafter he
underwent a laminectomy at [L4-5, and in May of that year had a
second laminectomy at the L5-S1 level. After this surgery, claim-
ant was dropped in his hospital bed and developed sharp pain radia-
ting into both hips and his left leg. His claim was closed by a
Determination Order granting claimant 160° for 50% unscheduled dis-
ability resulting from the low back injury. :

In June 1974, at the Disability Prevention Division, Dr.
Hickman found a moderately severe relationship between claimant's
accident and his psychopathology. Prognosis for restoration and
rehabilitation was relatively poor. Dr. Hickman recommended further
counseling.

Claimant's training program for completion of his GED un-
der the Division of Vocatiocnal Rehabilitation was discontinued in
March 1975 because of alleged pain, difficulty with math, and claim-

ant's. financial problems. Claimant then attempted to perform somé
light drywall work but was unsuccessful.

Claimant was examined by the Orthopaedic Consultants in
April 1976. The diagnosis was chronic lumbar strain with probable
radiculopathy on the left and situational depression. Job training
and placement was required. Loss of function due to the injury was
considered to be in the 40-60% disability range.

- Dr. John R. Painter, a clinical psychologist, who in-
terviewed and tested claimant in Octoeber 1976, did not think

claimant could be rehabilitated t@ the extent that he could re- |
turn to gainful employment, owing to the numerous and complex
psychological variable involved., Dr. James C. Cheatham, also a
clinical psycholeogist, examined claimant and was of the opinion
that claimant's psychological condition had deteriorated to the
point where he could not accept counseling. Dr. Cheatham recom-
mended claimant be classified as permanently and totally disabled.

The Board, on de ncovo review, finds that the preponder-
ance of the medical evidence indicated claimant could not return
to any gainful and regular work. His work background is exclu-
sively in heavy manual labor. Claimant's serious low back prob-
lem when combined with his sericus psychological problem precludes
a possibility of retraining even though claimant is comparatively
young.

' The Board concludes that claimant is permanently and
totally disabled.
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ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated August 31, 1977, is modi-
fied. .

Claimant is considered to be permanently and totally dis-
abled as of the date of this order.

Claimant's counsel is awarded as a reasonable attorney's
fee 25% of the claimant's compensation which.Was incrgased by this
ordar, payabla from eaid incraasad compansatisn ag paid, nat ¢
exceed $2,300.

WCB CASE NO. 76-3524 MARCH 6, 1978

LEE ANDROS, CLAIMANT

zafiratos & Roman, Claimant's Atty.

MacDonald, Dean, McCallister & Snow,
De fense Atty,

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which affirmed the December 16, 1975 Determination Order grant-

ing no further permanent disability above the 160° he hasg ale
ready been awarded.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Oplnlon and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part rhereof.

ORDER

.

The order of the Referee, dated October 11, 1977, is af-
firmed. ‘

WCB CASE NO. 76-2235 MARCH 6, 1978

RICHARD E. DONKERS, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn & O'Leary,
Claimant's Atty.

Cheney & Kelley, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

_ Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's Order of
Dismissal entered on August 31, 1977. An Order to Show Cause
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N

why claimant's request for hearing should not be dismissed was
entered on July 27, 1577 and no response was made thereto nor
good cause shown.

The Board, after de novo review, finds claimant has
failed to show good cause why his request for hearing should
not be dismissed with prejudice and therefore, affirms the
Referee's Order of Dismissal.

ORDER

The orda¥ &f #ha Raforoo, dated August 31, 1977, is

affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-275-B MARCH 6, 1978

GERHARD ERICKSON, CLAIMANT

Richardson, Murphy & Nelson, Claimant's Atty,

Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Williamson &
Schwabo, Defense Atty.

Jones, Lang, Klein, Weolf & Smith, N
Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Associated Indemnity Corporation

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

Associated Indemnity Corporation seeks Board review
of the Referee's order which remanded claimant's claim to it
for acceptance and payment of compensation to which he is en-
titlad in addition to reimpursing United States Fidelity Guar-
anty Company for all sums it paid out as a result of the Order
Designating Paying Agent. The denial issued by U.S. Fidelity
was approved and an attorney fee equal to $750 was assessed
against Associated Indemnity.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached

hereto and, by this reference, is made a part haveot.
ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated September 15, 1977, is af-
firmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable at-
torney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review
in the amount of $200, payable by Associated Indemnity Corporation.

- 38~




WCB CASE NO. 77-2081 MARCH 6, 1978

ROBERT HILIL, CLAIMANT

Thomas 0. Carter, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund requests review by
the Board of the Referee's order which found that claimant's

condition had worsensd since the issuance of the Determination
Order on November 19, 1974, that claimant was medically station-
ary, and granted claimant an award for permanent total disabil-
ity.

Claimant was employed as a steel pourer in a foundry
and injured his back on-February 12, 1971. He came under the
care of Dr. Eckhardt who had been his treating physician since
1966. Dr. Eckhardt diagnosed recurrent lumbosacral strain.

Alaimant's psychoiogical evaluation indicated he had an 1llth
grade education with an IQ of 78 with a schizophrenic reaction
of paranoid type. Claimant underwent a laminectomy in May 1972.

Claimant was retrained as a barber. A Determination
Order, dated March 13, 1973, which granted him 160° for 50%
unscheduled disability,'was upheld by a Referee, the Board, and
a circuit court.

In June 1974 Dr. Eckhardt requested claim reopening
as claimant had suffered an acute exacerbation when washing his

car. In July, br. Eckhardt reported claimant's back condition
was gradually degenerating and he considered claimant to be a .
permanent total.

On November 19, 1974 a Second Determination Order which
granted claimant an additional 144° for a total award of 304°
for 95% unschéduled disability was affirmed by the Referee and
" the Board, but a circuit court on February 13, 1976 granted claim-
ant: an award of permanent total disability. The Court of Appeals,
on June 14, 1976, reversed the decision of the lower court and
reinstated the award of 144° made by the Second Determination Or-
der. ) ’

On January 28, 1977 Dr. Eckhardt reported claimant
had been having over the past couple of years increasing prob-
lems with low back pain and paresthesias and muscular weakness

of the left lower extremity which now prevents him from being
employable.

Claimant was examined by the Orthopaedic Consultants
on March 14, 1977; the diagnosis was chronic lumbosacral sprain,
racdiculopathy mild left leg, severe functional overlay and an
- unrelated left ankle arthritis. Claimant's condition was sta-
ticnary. Heicould not return to foundry work but could be a
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barber part time. Loss of function rating was only an educated

guess due to functional interference; but the low back was con-
sidered to have moderate disability.

On March 29, 1977 the Fund denied claimant's claim
for aggravation which had been filed by claimant's attorney.

On May 10, 1977 Dr. Eckhardt reported claimant had
suffered an acute exacerbation of low back pain with radiation
into the lower left extremity after he had attempted to cut
hair on April 15, 1977 and he had hospitalized claimant on April
19, 1977. He reguested claimant's claim be reopened. Claimant

now walks with a cang te prevent falling.

Dr. Eckhardt testified that he now sees claimant once
a month and claimant has physical therapy three times a week.
Claimant's physical capacity to work has gradually decreased
over a 5-year period. He said claimant had not become medically
stationary since the latest aggravation of April 1977.

The Referee found claimant must prove his condition
had worsened since the Determination Order of November 1974
which the Referee found was the last award or arrangement of

compensation. Phe Referee faund £hat claimant had done so and
awarded claimant compensation for permanent total disability.

. The Board, on de novo review, does not agree that the
date of the last award or arrangement of compensation is the
Determination Order dated November 19, 1974, but finds it is the
date of the Court of Appeals' decision which was June 14, 1976,
however, this does not affect the aggravation claim because there
i5 ampls evidence ¢liaimant's condition has worsened since June
14, 1976. Dr. Eckhardt testified that the claimant had not been
medically stationary since the aggravation in April 1977. There-
fore, the Referee had no authority to evaluate claimant's disabil-
ity and claimant's claim must be remanded to the Fund for the
payment of compensation, as provided by law, until closure is
authorized under the provisions of ORS 656.268.

The issue before the Referee was the compensability
of a claim for aggravation. The Referee never directly ruled
on this issue but instead found a worsening of claimant's con-

dition but apparently assumed the reader was to undér&tand that
the denial was improper. Unfortunately, such assumption is not
enough. If the denial was improper, and the medical evidence
supports a finding that it was, then it should have been dis-
approved in *he order and the Fund directed to pay claimant's
attorn=y a reasonable attorney fee under the provisions of ORS
656.386. In the Referee's amended order, the Fund was directed
to pay a reasonable attorney fee.
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ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated July 5, 1977, as amended
on July 29, 1977, is hereby reversed. -

Claimant's claim for aggravation is hereby remanded
to the State Accident Insurance Fund for acceptance and payment
of compensation, as provided by law, commencing April 19, 1977
and until closure is authorized under the provisions of ORS 656.
268.

¢laimant's attorney is awarded as a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services before the Referee the sum of $1,000,
payable by the Fund pursuant to ORS 656.386.

Claimant's attorney is awarded as a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services at this Board review a sum egual to
25% of the additiocnal compensation for temporary total disability
which claimant may receive as a result of this order, payable out
of such compensation as paid, not to exceed $500,

SATIF CLAIM NO. AC 412870 MARCH 6, 1978

NEWTON J. JORGENSEN, CLAIMANT

Ringo, Walton, Eves & Gardner, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Own Metion Order .

On February 22, 1978 the Board received from claimant,
by and through his counsel, the request to. reopen his claim based
on aggravation. Claimant was injured on December 9, 1972 and
presumably claimant's aggravation rights have expired and claim-
ant is requesting the Board to exercise its own motion jurisdic-
tion pursuant to ORS 656.278.

The request was supported by medical reports dated June
20, 1977 which, in the opinion of the Board, are not sufficient
to justify directing the State Accident Insurance Fund to reopen
claimant's claim at the present time.

If claimant is able, at a future time, to supply the Board
with adeguate medical information which indicates that his present
condition is directly related to his 1972 injury, that his aggra-
vation rights have expired, and that his present condition repre-
sents a worsening of his condition since his last award of compen- |
.sation for said injury, then the Board will be in a position to de-
termine whether the claim should be reopened.

ORDER

Claimant's request to reopen his claim for an injury suf-
ferad on December 9, 1972 is at this time denied.

~
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WCB CASE NO., 77-945 MARCH 6, 1978

HENRY E. OLDS, CLAIMANT
Knappenberger & Tish, Claimant's Atty.
Cheney & Kelley, Defense Atty.

Raguast for Roview by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which granted further temporary total disability and affirmed
the January 25, 1977 Determination Order awarding 32° for 10%
unscheduled disability. Claimant contends that there is a
scheduled disability in both of his legs and he is entitled

to compensation therefor.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by.this reference, is made a. part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated Qakakay 11, 1077, ic

affirmed.

WCEB CASE NO. 76-1345 MARCH 6, 1978

In the Matter cof the Compensation
of the Beneficiaries of

FORREST RAINES, DECEASED

Banta, Silven & Young, Claimant's Atty.

Cheney & Kelley, Defense Atty.

Pozzi, Wilasw, Aeshiopn, Kahn &
O'Leary, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Beneficiaries

The beneficiaries of Forrest Raines, deceased, seek
Board review of the Referee's order which affirmed the carrier's
denial of their claim and dismissed the request for hearing.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated July 5, 1977, is af-
firmed.
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WCB CASE NO. 77-1011 MARCH 6, 1978

EARL W. RICHARDSON, CLAIMANT

Moore, Wurtz & Logan, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty. -
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund requests review by
the Board of the Referee's order which granted claimant 256° for
80% unscheduled disability and 96° for 50% loss of his right arm.

Claimant, a lifetime bucker and faller, sustained a com-
pencgable injury on April 12, 1976 when he tossed an axe underhanded
and felt a snap in his shoulder. The diagnosis was a ripped prox-
imal portion of the right biceps muscle from the shoulder.

Dr. McHolick recommended surgery to reattach the biceps
tendon to the humerus. Claimant wanted to think about it.

In April 1976 Dr. McHolick, after examination, reported
claimant had slight grating in the shoulder and obvious drop of
the right biceps muscle. Claimant's chief complaint was his should-
er and the doctor recommended against surgery. Dr. McHolick ad-
vised claimant to return to work on a trial basis on April 26,
1978.

In May 1976 claimant returned to see Dr. McHolick because

of shoulder pain. At that time Dr. McHolick diagnosed degenerative
rotator cuff disease with rupture of the long head of the biceps
muscle and small tear of the supraspinatus muscle. He still ad-
vigsed claimant to keep on working for two more months.

In August 1976 Dr. McHolick reported claimant still com-
plained of sharp pains in his shoulder with weakness when reaching
overhead. All of these complaints were related to the degenerative
rotator cuff. Claimant was not able to find lighter work with this
employer and was considering drawing social security retirement,
but Dr. McHolick told him he didn't know if claimant was disabled
as a result of his shoulder injury; claimant said he had had an
earlier injury to his right lower extremity and would attempt to
secure social security from that injury.

A Determination Order of September 22, 1976 granted claim-
ant 80° for 25% unscheduled disability.

On November 17, 1976 Dr. Rockey examined claimant and
found a rupture of the long head of the right biceps, moderate
weakness of abduction of the right shoulder apparently inhibited
by pain. 1In April 1977 Dr. Rockey found loss of function of the
right shoulder was mild at waist level but severe overhead.

'
|
|
[
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Dr. Rockey testified that the small tear of the rotator
cuff was unrelated to the injury. He felt claimant would regain
all of his elbow function. Claimant should not continue to work
as a faller and bucker, but he was capable of bench type work.
Claimant could drive a log truck but couldn't throw wrappers over
the truck; he also could drive a cat. Surgery would not improve
claimant's conditien: Glaimant was able to work in any job that

was not heavy in nature.

Dr. McHolick testified claimant's condition was a "wear-
ing out" of his shoulder and biceps muscles, a common thing with
working. Claimant could not return to the woods with a ruptured
biceps muscle but the overhead work restriction was due to the
rotator cuff problem. The biceps muscle would get stronger.

Claimant testified he has sought no employment and is
now drawing social security.

The Rafoarce found that the physicians in this case were
too optimistic. He found claimant a credible witness and he found
him to be seriously injured from the biceps muscle alone. He
granted claimant 80% unscheduled disability and 50% loss of the
right arm,

The Board, on de novo review, finds that Dr. Rockey in-
dicated that the loss function of the arm and shoulder was mild.
Cne serious problem claimant experiences is the tear of the ro-
tator cuff which is not related to this injury. A proper award
for loss of function of claimant's right arm would be 20%; he
has retained at least 80% use of this arm.

The shoulder disability is rated on loss of wage earn-

ing papacity which is difficuit t¢ appraise because claimant has
never sought employment and has now retired. Because of claimant's
age and because he can not return to working as a bucker and faller, .
which was his lifelong occupation, the Board concludes claimant
has sustained a substantial loss of wage earning capacity and is
entitled to an award of 160° for 50% unscheduled disability.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated August 8, 1977, is mod-
ified. :

Claimant is granted an award of 160° for 50% unscheduled
disability and an award of 38.4° for 20% loss of the right arm.

These awards are in lieu of the awards granted by the
Referee, which in all other respects is affirmed.
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WCB CASE NO. 77-2371 MARCH 6, 1978

JOHN A. RISKE, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn &
0'Leary, Claimant's Atty.

Jones, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty.

Requast for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

'
Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which affirmed the carrier's denial of his aggravation claim.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

{

1

|

L The order of the Referee, dated September 9, 1977,
is a?flrmed

|

|

WCB CASE NO. 77-1986 MARCH 6, 1978
GARY |SOUTHWICK, CLAIMANT
Doblie, Bischoff & Murray, Claimant's Atty.
Jones, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Employer
. |

1 Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

; The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order
Whlch remanded claimant's claim to it for acceptance and payment
of compensatlon to which claimant is entitled.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

j ORDER
|

The order of the Referee, dated October 19, 1977, is af-
firmed.

Q Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review in
the amount of $300, payable by the carrier.
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WeB CASE NO. 77-1722 MARCH 6, 1978

THOMAS E. STEFFL, CLAIMANT
A. Thomas Cavanaugh, Defense Atty.
Reguest for Review by Claimant

Reviewed Dy Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which affirmed the carrier's partial denial of January 19,
1977 refusing responsibility for claimant's surgery and con-
tinuing disability.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts

the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORBER

The order of the Referee, dated September 13, 1977, is
affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 76-490 MARCH 6, 1978

CENEVA L. TAYLOR, CLAIMANT
Dye & Olson, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Mocore and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Beoard review
of the Referee's order which remanded claimant's aggravation
claim to it for acceptance and payment of compensation to which

she is entitled in addition to penalties and attorney's fees.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinicon and Order of the Referee, a copy ©f which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated September 13, 1977, is
affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable at-
torney's fee for his services in connection with this Board re-
view in the amount cof $350, payable by the Fund.
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| WCB CASE NO. 76-6592 MARCH 6, 1978
| WCB CASE NO. 76-5213

JANET HICKS MARSH WOLF, CLAIMANT

Emmons, Kyle, Kropp & Kryger, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Colllns, Velure & Heysell, Defense Atty.

Regquest for Review by the SAIF

: i

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.
! The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review
of the Referee's order which approved the denial of Industrial
Indamnity Company and remandred claimant's claim to the Fund for

acc&ptance and payment of compensation to which she is entitled.

i
! The Board, after de novo review, afflrms and adopts

the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached

harato and, by thie vafayranss, is iiade a part hereof.
} " ORDER

i The order of the Referee, dated October 6, 1977; is
aff%rmed. ’

| Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasoconable at-
torney's fee for his services in connection with this Board re-

vieﬂ in the amount of $100, payable by the carrier.

i
|
] WCB CASE NO. 77-1569 MARCH 7, 1978

LINDA K. BAXTER, CLAIMANT

Malagon, Starr & Vinson, Claimant's Atty.

Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Williamson &
Schwabe, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Employer

E Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

' The employer requests review by the Board of the Referee's
order directing it to reimburse claimant for housekeeping expenses
in tae amount of $688.74 for the period from December 1976 through
March 4, 1977, plus a penalty of 15% of that sum for the employer's
unreasonable refusal to pay it.

Claimant sustained a compensable injury on February 5, 1974,
dlagnosed as a lumbar strain. Claimant is married with two chlldren
10 and 11; she did all of her own housewook prior to this injury but
since her injury she stays in bed a substantial part of the day and

cannot perform the_housework.. Claimant's husband and children did
all the housework.

|

|
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In Deg@mhgf 197¢ ¢laimant's husband was injured and required
surgery. He was disabled for 13 weeks and he hired a housekeeper at
$2.50 an hour to do all the work and to cook the evening meal. Her
total bill for this period was $688.74.

On January 3, 1977 claimant's treating physician, Dr. Car-
ter, wrote claimant's husband that claimant could only perform light
household chores. He recommended hiring a housekeeper and that he
continue to hedp claiamapt until she was able to do the tasks herself.

On March 3, 1977 the carrier denied payment for the house-
keeping services.

The Referee found that medical and other related services
are provided for under the provisions of ORS 656.245(1). He cited
the Board's decision in Pegqgy Roberts, Claimant, WCB Case No. 75-296
(L5 Van Natta, 761) and ordered payment of the bill for the house-
keeping services. He also imposed a penalty against the employer
for unreasonable resistance to payment of said bill and awarded
claimant's attorney a fee payable by the employer.

The Board, on de novo review, finds Dr. Carter's report
does not even suggest that the housekeeper was necessary in assist-
ing claimant in her recovery. ORS 656.245(1) provides for medical
services and other related services, but in this case the house-

keeping was not a related service. The housekeeper was hired be-
cause of claimant's husband's injury and not her own. e
ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated August 22, 1077, ia pa-
versed. '

The emplover's denial of responsibility for the house-
"keeper's bill is approved.

WCB CASE NO, 77-1178-B MARCH 7, 1978

PHYLLIS GALASH, CLAIMANT

Les Pindayg, Claimant'g Atty.

Jones, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Dafense Atty.

Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Williamson
& Schwabe, Defense Atty.

Order

An Opinion and Order was entered in the above entitled
matter on October 19, 1977 from which the employer's carrier,
EBI Company, requested Board review. .
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‘

! On February 28, 1978 the Board was advised by claimant's
@ attorney that prior to the hearing before the Referee he had re-

: quested the attorneys for each of the insurance companies to agree
that it would not be necessary for claimant to attend the hearing
but imet with no success. The sole issue before the Referee was
which insurer of the employer, Northern Insurance Company or EBI,

wasiresponsible for payment of compensation to the claimant, Aft{gy

the hearing the Referee directed the claim he accepted by EBI,
howsver, he did not award any attorney's fees to claimant's attor-
ney.!

l It is the opinion of the Board that claimant's attorney
is entltled to .a fee pursuant to the provisions of ORS 656.382(2)
even though the primary issue before the Referee was which carrier
was%respon51ble for claimant's compensable condition.

Upon receipt of the request for Board review the Referee

was divested of jurisdiction over this matter, therefore, the
Board concludes that the Referee's Opinion and Order entered on
October 19, 1977 should be amended by awarding claimant's attor-
ney as a reasonable attorney's fee for his services before the
Referee the sum of $400 payable by EBI Company.

i IT IS SO ORDERED.
|
\

9 ‘. WCB CASE NO. 77-2179 MARCH 7, 1978

EDWRRD HOOVER, CLAIMANT

Doblle, Bischoff & Murray, Claimant's Atty.
SATF) Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

: Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

l Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
afflrmed the carrier's denial of his elaim.
|

i The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Oplnlon and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

|
\ ORDER

; The order of the Referee, dated September 13, 1977, and

geafflrmed after reconsideration on September 29, 1977, is af-
irmed . ' -

|
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WCB CASE NO. 77=4A4 MARCH 7, 1078

KENNETH LARSEN, CLAIMANT

Coon & Anderson, Claimant's Atty.

Jenes, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty.

McMenamin, Joseph, Herrell & Paulson,
Defense Atty.

Order

On February 10, 1978 the Board received from claimant,
by and through his attorney, a motion to remand the above entitled
matter to Referee J. Wallace Fitzgerald for purposes of correction
and receiving further evidence consisting of a deposition of Dr.
James W. Brooke taken on January 31, 1978. In the alternative,
claimant offered as an exhibit the deposition of Dr. Brooke and
requested that the record be reopened in order toc admit said

ppransaring,

On February 21, 1978 the Board received a response from
Great American Insurance Company, stating it did not oppose the
remand requested by claimant's attorney but felt the better pro-
cedure would be to allow the deposition of Dr. Brooke to be in-
cluded in the record except that the attorney for the other car-
rier involved, Argonaut, did not participate in the deposition.

On February 23, 1978 the Board received a response from

Argonaut which opposed granting of claimant's motion for remand
on the ground and for the reason that claimant had failed to es-
tablish that the evidence which he now sought to have introduced
into the record was not available at the time of the hearing.,

The evidence must not have been obtainable and must not.
merely be a situation in which the hearing referee has ruled against
the claimant. Claimant cannot strengthen his case by presenting
new evidence which, with due diligence, could have been produced
at the original hearing. Buster v. Chase Bag Company, 14 Or App
323. oo

. It is the contention of Argonaut that the depegition of Dr.
Brooke now being offered intc the record would be new evidence
which could have been obtained with due diligence on the part of
claimant.

The Board, having given full consideration to the
motion and the responses thereto and taking into consideration
the recital in the Referee's order that "following the hearing
the matter was continued for a doctor's deposition, however,
the receipt of this evidence was subsequently waived", concludes
that Dr. Brooke's deposition could have been obtained at the
time, at least before the hearing was formally closed. Further- .
more, the Board finds no basis for allowing the deposition of ‘ip
Dr. Brooke to be considered on Board review.
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l
| ORDER
|
|

| The motion to remand the above entitled matter to Ref-
eree J. Wallace Fitzgerald to receive the deposition of Dr. James
W. Brooke taken on' January 31, 1978 and the alternative motion
to accept as an exhibit the aforesaid deposition are hereby denied.
|
: |
|

i WCB CASE NO. 76-6721 MARCH 7, 1978

KENNETH W, METZKER, CLAIMANT
Blailr & MacDonald, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Reguest for Review by Claimant
i.
! Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

] Claimant seeks’Board review of the Referee's order
Wthh affirmed the carrier's denial of his aggravation claim
and dlsmlssed the case. Claimant contends that his aggrava-
tlon‘clalm should be compensable and that he is also entitled
to permanent partial disability benefits for his original in-
Juryt suffered on October 31, 1975.

i The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Oplnlon and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof. .
The poard would like to comment that it finds the Referee waew
correct in not assessing penalties and attorney fees because .’
thexe was no evidence of a valid claim for aggravation havlng'
- ever been filed.

i ORDER
: The order of the Referee, dated August 12, 1977, is
affirmed.
- |
WCB CASE NO, 77-377 MARCH 7, 1978

DAVID MIDKIFF, CLAIMANT

David Vandenberg, Jr., Claimant's Atty.

Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Williamson &
Schwabe, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Employer

! Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.
\

‘ The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which granted claimant an award of 240° for 75% unscheduled (low
back) disability, 45° for 30% scheduled left leg disability and
7.5°. for 5% scheduled right leg dlsablllty
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. Claimant, at the age of 30, while employed as a laborer
in & lumkay mill, cuéfarad a gompongable injury to his neck and
back on May 4, 1972.

Claimant received chiropractic adjustments for two years
without relief, however, he continued to work during this time.

In May 1974 Dr. Balme began treating claimant conserva-

tively and suggested claimant engage in lighter work. In October
of 1974 claimant was hospitalized for one week's bed rest; upon
his discharge claimant was given a work-release of October 21,
1974. .

The first Determination Order, dated December 4, 1974,
awarded claimant -only temporary total disability benefits.

Claimant, in March of 1976, was examined by Dr. Lilly
who found claimant to have 75% of normal range of motion of his

low back. He concluded claimant had a herniated disc at L5-81 1aft

with a lot of nerve root compression and suggested surgery. ;i

On May 20, 1976 a myelogram and left L5-51 hemilaminec-
tomy, discectomy and foraminotomy were performed.

In August ‘1976 Dr, Lilly found claimant had almost a full
range of motion of the back. Claimant told Dr. Lilly he had an
8~acre place on which he was doing easy work and still had some
low back pain. Dr. Lilly found claimant stationary on November 11,

1976 with some permansnt partdal disakility, a degenerative disc
L5-S1. He suggested claimant not engage in any real heavy work
involving a lot of bending or lifting. Claimant returned to work
as a trimmer saw operator in November 1976.

A Determination Order, dated December 14, 1976, awarded
claimant temporary total disability benefits and 16° for 5% un-
scheduled disability for his low back injury.

Claimant was examined in April 1977 by Dr. James Cough-

lin, an orthopedic specialist, who reported that the claimant felt
constant pressure in his low back area, constant pain in his left
thigh, both legs felt leadened; also, he had some numbness and
tingling in his left leg when the pain got worse. He thought c¢laim-
ant was unable to do anything but light work without any bending,
squatting, stooping or lifting. Claimant would need rest periods

if he was required to sit or stand for prolonged periods.

Claimant has a GED and currently he and his wife operate
a motel complex. He is able to assist in light maintenance and
minor repairs. :

The Referee found claimant was a credible witness who had
suffered a loss of 75% of his earning capacity because he had de-
pended on his back to earn his livelihood and now he was unable to
do any heavy work and only a few hours of light work. Claimant was
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|

|

|

|

1- .
not Frained for any clerical or office type of employment. The
Referee awarded claimant 240° for 75% unscheduled disability for
his low back injury, 45° for 30% scheduled disability to his left leg
and 7.5° for 5% scheduled disability to his right leg. The awards
for the legs were based on the Referee's finding that the leg pain
was aisabling. ‘

|

[ The Board, after de novo review, finds that Drs. Lilly
and Coughlin do not, in their medical reports, relate any loss of

function in éither of the claimant's legs. Therefore, he is not
entiFled to any award for his legs. :

| Dr. Lilly found that prior to surgery the claimant had a
25% loss of motion in his low back and after surgery he had an al-
most| full range of motion. However, both doctors concurred that claim-
ant is barred from performing any heavy work. Dr. Coughlin placed
many’ restrictions upon claimant's physical activities and said claim-
ant bould require rest periods if his employment required him to sit

or to stand £or paelengsd perieds of time,

i The Board concludes that the claimant has suffered a

50% 1055 of his earning capacity as a result of his unscheduled
low back disability, but is not entitled to any award for a
scheduled injury.
| ol
ORDER

The Referee's order, dated June 17, 1977, is modified.

! - Claimant is awarded 160° for 50% unscheduled low back
disability. This is in lieu of the awards granted by the Referee's
order, which in all other respects, is affirmed.

t

I

! WCB CASE NO. 77-1079 MARCH 7, 1978
i

ALVIS SMITH, CLAIMANT

pavid C. Glenn, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant

|

| . o

| Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.
|

|

o Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's ordér
which granted him compensation equal to 52.5° for 35% loss of

the yight arm. Claimant contends that this award is inade-
quate. ‘

} . The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.
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QRDER

The order of the Referee, dated August 26, 1977, is af-
firmed.

WCB CASE NO, 76-6578 MARCH 7, 1978

THOMAS TOMPKINS, CLAIMANT

Ringo, Walton & Eves, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Mcoore and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which remanded claimant's claim for aggrava-
tion to the Fund for payment of compensation until closure pursu-

ant to ORS 656.268. The Pund sontands ies denial of claimant's
claim for a carpal tunnel syndrome was proper.

Claimant sustained a compensable injury on May 12, 1971
to his neck and low back while moving and unloading a guard rail.
In November of 1971 Dr. Richard Hall reported claimant complained
of pain in his low back and he found evidence of impairment and
pain in the use of the right arm, pain in the neck and head and
lumbosacral area.

The Disability Prevention Division, in August of 1973,
- found complaints of burning and soreness in the low back and right
hip, neck and shoulder pain, numbness in the right arm and poor

grip.

The Back Evaluation Clinic, in August of 1973, found
claimant unable to return to his former employment and opined
claimant suffered a minimal loss of function to his neck and a
mild leoss of function to his low back.

Claimant now alloges his condition has worsened Sines
his last award of compensation, a circuit court order, dated Sep-
tember 2, 1976, affirming the Board's award of compensation egqual
to 240° for 75% unscheduled disability for injury to his neck
and back.

Claimant, at the hearing, complained of problems with

his neck, arms, and hands. He contends he suffered severe neck
cramps in September of 1976 caused by the use of his arms.
Claimant also has lost strength and control in his arms. There

is no contentiocn his back condition has worsened.

The Referee found that both Drs. Tsai and Knox agreed
c¢laimant was suffering from a carpal tunnel syndrome.
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i Dr. Knox in January of 1977 related clalmant s current
symptoms to his back and neck injury of May 1971. C(Claimant's

.symptoms were diagnosed as multiple entrapment ischemic mononeuro-

pathic involving the upper extremities, particularly the ulnar
nerves bilaterally. Dr. Knox believed, based on his clinical
findings and the EMG findings that claimant's condition had been
definitely aggravated since March of 1976.

’ The Referee found claimant had met his burden of proof
in proving his aggravation claim.

The Board, after de novo review, -would affirm the Ref-
eree, but corrects his statement that both Dr. Tsai and Dr. Knox
thought c¢laimant had a carpal tunnel syndrome. Claimant suffers
from a condition which is similar to a carpal tunnel syndrome and
it is related to his May 1971 injury. Had claimant had a carpal
tunngl syndrome such condition could not have been related to

claimant's original industrial injury.

I
,‘ " ORDER

The Referee's order, dated July 6, 1977, is affirmed.

| Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable at-
torney s fee for his services in connection with this Board re-
view:in the amount of $300, payable by the carrier.

:
i
‘ WCB CASE NO. 76-3829 MARCH 7, 1978
D. B. TOON, CLAIMANT

Doblie, Bischoff & Murray, Claimant's Atty.
SATF; Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The State Accident Insurance Fund requests review by the
Boarq of the Referee's order which awarded claimant 32° for 10%
unscheduled disability. Claimant cross-requests Board review.

l Claimant had worked for this employer for 16 years; first,
pulling on the greenchain, then as a millwright. Claimant developed
respiratory problems and claimed an occupational disease which was
accepted as an aggravation of an underlying problem. A Determina-
tion Order of July 21, 1976 granted claimant compensation for time
loss jonly.

Claimant took a demotion to cleanup man where dust and

fumes were less irritating. Claimant is presently driving a cleanup
truck and still breathes dust and continues to suffer from it.
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Claimant's symptoms are shortness of breath, hoarseness,
coughing and nasal stuffiness which requires claimant to breath ‘i’
through his mouth. '

D¥. Tupnay, in June 1974, upon consultation, told claimant
to start wearing a mask at work. Claimant testified that he tried
the mask for a week but could not tolerate it. After an hour of
wearing it, he couldn't breath.

In May 1976 Dr. Turner reported claimant's pulmonary func-
tion was normal but claimant always had, and complained of, a cough
. and nasal stuffiness. Claimant was unable to tolerate the medica-
tion appropriate for his case. Dr. Turner diagnosed allergic rhini-

18, Dy. Tuhy ocvamined claimant and made the same diagnosis.

On October 19, 1976 Dr. Minor, an allergist, reported his
examination revealed intrinsic asthma, not allergic asthma, and that
claimant was not allergic to wood dust. Claimant's intrinsic asthma
caused him to wheeze but claimant was not allergic to anything in
his environment. Dust and fumes merely trigger the asthma, they were
not the cause of it.

The Referese found claimant's underlying medical problem,
despite the diagnosis, was aggravated by his work environment.
Claimant's condition was permanent but his disability would be
less if he used the protective mask. He granted claimant 32° for
10% unscheduled disability. ‘ip

The Board, after de novo review, disagrees with the con-
clusion reached by the Referee. The Board finds, based on the re-
port of Dr. Minor, that claimant's basic problem is asthma which is
not work related.

The Board concludes that claimant has no permanent disabil-
ity.

ORDER

The order of the Refekes, dated Auqust 16, 1977, is re-
versed.

The Determination Order of July 21, 1976 is affirmed.
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i WCB CASE NO. 77-506 MARCH 7, 1978
|
MARTE VAN HARDENBERG, CLAIMANT
Rank;n, McMurry, Osburn & Gallagher,
Deﬁense Atty.
Requgst for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

i Claimant has requested review by the Board of a Referee's
order granting her 16° for 5% unscheduled sinus disability. <Claim-~
ant's claim had been closed by a Determination Order with an award
for time loss only. On cross-appeal, the employer contends claimant

has sustained no permanent disability.
|

! Claimant, who was 35 years old, was employed in the pro-
duction department of Bluebell Potato Chip Division of Sunshine

Biscuits when she was exposed to airborne barbecue powder in March

of 1972. Claimane was vafavved Lo Br. Prank Berlman at the aliergy
Clinic, who prescribed immunotherapy and prepared an antigen. By
September 1976 Dr. Perlman was of the opinion the immunotherapy
could be concluded.
. | In January 1973 claimant was off work because of an unre-
late? problem and was terminated from her job.

i :

: Based on minimal medical evidence, the Referee awarded 5%
unscheduled disability.

g . The Bocard, on de novo review, relies on the report of
Dr. ?erlman, dated April 17, 1373, wherein he stated that there
was no evidence of any permanent residuals at the time of his ex-
amination, and concludes that claimant is not entitled to any award
for permanent disability.

! ORDER

|
The order of the Referee, dated August 31, 1977,
is reversed.
: The Determination Order, dated January 27, 1976,
is r?instated.



WCB CASE NO. 77-819 MARCH 9, 1978

LEO ALBERTSON, CLAIMANT
James Lynch, Claimant's Atty.
James Gidley, Defense Atty.

Own Motion Qrdes

On February 2, 1977 claimant requested the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction and reopen his claim for
an industrial injury suffered on May 20, 1970. The request
was supported by a report from Dr. Campagna.

The carrier was advised of the request and responded
on February 22, 1977, stating they would resist the recopening
of the claim for the reason that there was a serious medical
question as to whether claimant's current condition was a direct

result @f his May 20, 1970 injury.

_ Therefore, the Board issued an own motion order on May
9, 1977 referring the matter to its Hearings Division with in-
structions to set the matter down for hearing and take evidence
on the issue of whether claimant's present condition was a direct
result of his injury suffered on May 20, 1970.

On May 18, 1977 a hearing was held before Referee Henry
L. Seifert and, as a result of said hearing, Referee Seifert rec-
ommended that claimant's present condition be considered a direct
result of his industrial injury sustained on May 20, 1970.

The Board, after giving full consideration to the
transcript of the proceedings, furnished to it by the Referee,
and the Referee's own motion recommendation, affirms and adopts
as its own the said own motion recommendation, a copy of which
is attached hereto and, by this reference, made a part hereof.

ORDER

Claimant's claim for an industrial injury swstalned on
May 20, 1970 is remanded to the employer to be accepted and for
the payment of compensation, as provided by law, commencing on
January 16, 1976, the date claimant had neck surgery, and until
the claim is again closed pursuant to the provisions of ORS 656.
278, less any time worked in the interim.

Claimant's attorney is awarded as a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services in behalf of claimant a sum equal to
25% of the compensation claimant shall receive for temporary
total disability as a result of this order, payable out of said
compensation as paid, not to exceed $500.

-58-




|
!
1
|

. WCB CASE NO. 76-5933 MARCH 9, 1978
!

BOYD'ALLEN CLATIMANT

Maldgon, Starr & Vinson, Claimant's Atty.

Phlllp A, Mongrain, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

l

|

1 flaimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
dismissed the matter after finding that the carrier was not re-
sponsible for medical bills from Dr. Dunn and Medford Laborator-
ies:and therefore, a penalty and an attorney fee were not indi-
cated.

|

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the

Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached

hereﬁo and; by this referance, is made a part haraoof.
i

'1 The order of the Referee, dated November 17, 1977, is
affirmed.

ORDER

|
| WCB CASE NO. 75-3119 MARCH 9, 1978

CHARLES CULP, CLAIMANT

Anderson, Fulton, Lavis & Van Thiel,
Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

i Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

! Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
granFed him compensation equal to 30° for 20% loss of the left
leg.; Claimant contends that this award does not fully compensate
him for his disability.

i The Board, after de hoyo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

| )

ORDER

|

1

i The order of the Referee, dated October 10, 1977, is af-
firm?d. '

|

|



WCB CASE NO. 77-1936 MARCH 9, 1978

LAURA DUCAT, CLAIMANT

Malagon, Starr & Vinson, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Mel Kosta, Defense Atty.

Order of Dismissal

A request for review, having been duly filed with the
Workmen's Compensation Board in the above entitled matter by the
employer, John Patterson, dba Summers Lane Tavern, and said re-
quest for review now having been withdrawn,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request for review now
pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and the order of the
Referee is final by operation of law.

WCB CASE NO, 77-4184 MARCH 9, 1978

JAMES GREENSLITT, CLATMANT

Alan R. Jack, Claimant's Atty.

Jones, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Beocard review of the Referee's order
which granted claimant 19.2° for loss of the right arm and
30° for loss of the right leg. Claimant contends that this

award is inadequate.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated September 27, 1977,
is affirmed.
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CAIF CLAIM NO. CGC 165711 MARCH 9 1978

KENNETH H. HART, CLAIMANT
Robprt E. Mcmlllan Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
OwniMotion Determination

? Claimant, on June 1, 1968, suffered a compensable low
back injury while doing heavy lifting and repetitive bending
for his employer, a building contractor. Dr. Goodwin diagnosed
his |condition as an extruded intervertebral disc with radiation
of pain in the left leg.

; After a myelogram and laminectomy, claimant returned
to work on March 12, 1969 but quit the following day because of
the pain. He returned to work on March 31, 1969 and his claim
was {then closed by an order dated September 17, 1969 with an
award of 48° for 25% unscheduled disability. Claimant was treated
by Dr. Goodwin conservatively a few times after that date.

\

Because of increased symptoms, claimant quit work on

April 18, 1977 and a further myelogram and laminectomy were per-
formed by Dr. Goodwin. He returned to work on June 27, .1977 with
no symptoms. : :

i Claimant was examined on Octocber 4, 1977 by the Ortho-
paedic Consultants who found mild residual radiculopathy of the
lower extremities. They noted that claimant had returned to his

former occupation with no limitations. Goodwin 'concurred
w1th the findings.and conclusions of the Orthopaedlc Consultants.

! On December 6, 1977 the Fund requested a determination
of claimant's disability. The Evaluation Division of the Workers'
Compensation Department concludes that claimant's condition has
1mproved since the last claim closure. They recommend further
temporary total disability compensation from April 18, 1977 through
Junp'26 1977 with no award for permanent disability.

The Board concurs with this recommendation.

ORDER

|

i Claimant is hereby granted compéensation for temporary
total disability from April 18, 1977 through June 26, 1977, less
time; worked. '
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WCB CASE NO. 77-2585 MARCH 9, 1978
WCB CASE NO. 77-2586

JOHNNY KAMMERZELL, CLAIMANT

Corey, Byler & Rew, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order

which found #lajmawe hnd no parmanent dicability as a result of
the April 23, 1974 injury (WCB Case No. 77-2585), thereby dis-
missing his request -for hearing, and that the Determination Or-
der of May 12, 1977 (WCB Case No. 77-2586) granting no perman-
ent disability should be affirmed.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy ©f which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated October 31, 1977, is
affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 76-6335  MARCH 9, 1978

ROBERTA MALSON, CLAIMANT

Emmons, Kyle, Kropp & Kryger, Claimant's Atty.
Keith D. Skelton, Defense Atty.

Regquest for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which awarded her compensation equal to 96° for 30% unscheduled

low back injury. clalmant contends she 1s perianantly and
totally disabled.

Claimant, a 60-year-old drapery consultant, sustained
a compensable injury to her low back on May 2, 1974 when she
tried to move a large box. Dr. H, Dan Moore diagnosed a pro-
gressive spasm of the right leg and lower back and treated claim-
ant conservatively. He released her to return tc part time work
on July 5, 1974 and to full time employment on August 24, 1974,
the date he found her medically stationary.

A Determination Order, dated October 21, 1974, awarded
claimant 32° for 10% unscheduled low back disability.
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| Claimant continued to work full time until September of
1975 when, at age 62, she retired. She did work part time until

May 7 1976 when her condltlon became aggravated by her work, to-
wit: \she had an aching or glVlng way" of legs. Claimant quit.

Dr. Moore found the back pain was in the area of L4-L5 and L5-S1
radlatlng down both sides, primarily to the right legq.
j Claimant was examined in September of 1976 by the Or-
thopaedlc Consultants who diagnosed chronic lumbosacral strain.
Theylfelt she was medically stationary and did not regquire a job
change, but could return to her former employment on a part time
basis and with certain limitations. They felt claimant's total
lossiof function of the back due to her injury was mild.

E A Determination Order, dated November 4, 1976, awarded
claimant compensation for temporary total disability only.

. l Dr. Thomas Martens examined claimant in December 1976
and found claimant had pain in her back and right leg coinciden-

tal with any strenuous activity and she had difficulty standing
on the right leg alone. He diagnosed strain of the lumbosacral
splne with right sciatic nerve root irritation and osteoarthritis.
of the lumbosacral spine and right knee. He thought that claim-
ant was permanently and totally disabled as far as her occupation
as a'drapery consultant was concerned. Drs. Moore and Martens
oplned in January of 1977 that claimant was permanently and

totally disabled for any gainful employment because of her dis-
ability, age and past work experience.

i Vocational Rehabilitation found claimant 1nellglble for
retralnlng due to her disability and age.

I Mr. R.E. Adolph, a vocational consultant, reported that
clalmant has a high school education and had briefly attended
college. He found claimant had worked in sales and as a telephone
superv1sor in her early years, but quit to raise her family. She
returned to work at the age of 59 with the employer for which she
was working when she had her injury. Mr. Adolph believed that
claimant, based on her abilities, skills and work experience, if
she "ould perform work allowing the option of sitting or standing
and requlrlng no bending, repetitive twisting, stooping or 1ift-
ing, icould be employed as a central telephone operator, telephone
answaring services, or production worker at a ceramic cookie stamp
manufacturer., He testified that claimant would not be able to-
work ‘full time in these fields but he felt claimant's age would
not hlnder her in obtaining such employment.

J Claimant testified that she had intended to work untll
she was 65 but quit due to her injury. She currently has pain

in her right thigh, numbness in both legs and her right knee glves
out going up and down stairs. She can drive for only 15-20 min-
utes because she cannot sit in one place for prolonged perlods

She experiences pain on twisting, 1lifting or bending. and requires
two one-hour rest periods daily.
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The Referee found that the claimant was not permanently
and totally disabled. Claimant could not return to her former ‘iD
employment and was restricted to light or sedentary work but :
claimant had residual skills which would qualify her for several
spitahla poeupaeiong including light sales work: Clalmant had
not worked since May of 1976 and had sought employment at the
State Employment Office just once in January of 1977.

He concluded that because claimant was precluded from
entering a large segment of the general labor market, she was en-
titled to a larger award of compensation and increased her award
of 32° to 96° for 30% unscheduled disability.

The Board, after de novo review, finds that both Dr.
Martens and Dr. Moore were of the opinion claimant was perman-

ently and totally disabled from any.gainful and suitable em-
ployment. Dr. Martens concurs, essentially, in the Orthopaedic
Consultants' diagnosis and recommendation that claimant was able
to return on a part time basis to her former occupation with
certain limitations, but he also indicates that claimant was still
having difficulty with her right leg. Mr. Adolph felt claimant
was capable of performing part time work.

The Board concludes, based on claimant's age, education,
work experience, and very limited potential for retraining, that
she is not permanently and totally disabled, but she has not been
adequately compensated for her loss of wage earning capacity re- ‘ib
sulting from her injury. It awards claimant 256° for 80% unsched-
uled low back disability and 15° for 10% loss function of her right
leg, this scheduled award being based upon Dr. Martens' report.

ORDER
The Referee's order, dated August 31, ‘1977, is modified.

Claimant is granted 256° for 80% unscheduled low back
disability and 15° for 10% loss function of her right leq. These

awards are in lieu of the award made by the Referee's order which,
in all other respects, 1is affirmed.

Claimant's attorney 1is granted as a reasonable attorney's
fee for his services at Board review a sum equal to 25% of the in-
creased compensation granted by this order, payable out of such
compensation as paid, not to exceed $2,300.
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; WCB CASE NO. 77-3914 MARCH 9, 1978

DAVID NOBLE, CLATMANT
POZ!l, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn &
O"Leary, Claimant's Atty.

Phlllp A. Mongrain, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant

}

|

: Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

| . | o
! 8laimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
whlch granted him compensation equal to 45° for 30% loss of his
left! leg. Claimant contends that his disability is greater than
that'awarded by the Referee.

; The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Oplnlon and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereef,

& : '

| ORDER

E The order of the Referee, dated October 3, 1977, is af-
firmed. : ' '
l

‘ SAIF CLAIM NO. FC 13552 MARCH 9, 1978

BILL% DEATON NORRIS, CLAIMANT
Donald R. Duncan, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Own Motlon Order

|

| On January 3,1978 the Board received a letter from

Mrs. ‘Bllly Deaton Norris, wife of the claimant, stating that her
husband had had surgery performed on his back by Dr. Grewe on
November 17, 1977. She requested the Board to exercise its own
motlon jurisdiction and reopen claimant's claim for an April 15,
1966|1njury which had required spinal fusion L5-S1 on May 13,
1966' Clalmant s aggravation rights have expired.

‘~ The Fund, on July 28, ‘1977, had denied claimant's re-
quest to reopen claimant's claim, alleging that his present con- '
dltlon was the result of lifting a lawn mower onto the back of
a plckup truck. However, subsequent information received by -the
Fund, from Dr., Grewe indicated that there was an overgrowth of the
fu91on mass which reguired the surgical correction which he per-
formed on November 17, 1977. Upon receipt of this information,
the Fund advised the Board that it would not resist the reopening
of clalmant s .claim. :

! The Board, after considering the medical records which
were. . forwarded to it by Dr. Grewe and the information contained
in hrs cover letter of February 7, 1978, concludes that claimant's
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request for own motion relief should be granted and his April 15,
1966 claim reopened.

ORBER

Claimant's claim for a compensable injury suffered on
April 15, 1966 is remanded to the Fund for acceptance and for the
payment of compensation, as provided by law, commencing on November
15, 1977, the date claimant was admitted to Emanuel Hospital, and
until the claim is again closed pursuant to the provisions of ORS
656.278.

Claimant's attorney is- hereby granted as a reasonable
attorney's fee a cum equal to 25% of the temporary total disability
compensation granted by this order, payable out of said compensa-
tion as paid, not to exceed $500.

SATIF CLAIM NO. KC 120599 MARCH 13, 1978

EDNA AICHELE, CLAIMANT

William A, GCalbvaaeh, Claimant'o Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Amended Order Allowing Attorney Fee

The Board's Own Motion Order entered January 17, 1978
in the above entitled matter failed to include an award of a
reasonable attorney's fee.

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that claimant's attorney receive
as a reasonable attorney's fee a sum equal to 25% of the tem-
porary total disability benefits granted by this order, payable
out of said compensation as paid, not to exceed $500.

WCB CASE NO. 76-6633 MARCH 13, 1878

WILLIAM R. ANDERSON, CLAIMANT

Bedingfield, Joelson, Gould & Barron,
Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore,

Claimant requests review by the Board of the Referee's
order which affirmed both denials of claimant's claim but ordered
the State Accident Insurance Fund to pay compensation for tempor-
ary total disability from October 31, 1975 to October 18, 1976,
less time worked.
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. Ghalmant had sustained a crushing type hand injury in
California in 1967. Claimant went to work for Pacific Lumber
Inspection Bureau in Oregon 1n January 1974, Subsequently, claim-
ant went to work for Coos Head Lumber Company. He worked as a
lumber grader for both companles

| u '

Claimant quit working for Coos Head on May 13, 1975 and

sought medical treatment.

In August 1975 Dr.|Wilson diagnosed a hand infection and

on Adgust 21 claimant waderwsnt Surgery for incision and drainage
of massive intramuscular abcess of the right arm. Claimant told

Dr. Wilson that he had developed a "gist ball" from the 1968 in-

Jury‘and he felt this lump break during an incident using a jack

on hrs car.

In November, .1975 Dr Wilson oplned that at the time of
the U968 injury, based on the history glven to him by claimant,
that'bacterla was walled off|during the injury. This bacteria
was broken off by the jack incident.

On October 30, 1975 claimant's attorney had requested
Coos Head to furnish clalmant a Form 801; he also had asked Paci-
fic Lumber Inspection Bureau|for this claim form on November 9,
1975.] Early in 1976 an 80l was sent by the latter, but Coos Head
was requested again on March)5, 1976.

J In June 1976, after repeated inquiries by the Fund,
ilson stated that gine@|the 1968 injupy alaimant had had

1nterm1ttent swelling and tenderness Any type of physical
activity would irritate the hand. Therefore, claimant's lum-
ber grader job would relate dlrectly-to the problem, already
irritated from previous motion and contusions. :

i On October 18, 1976 the Fund, which furnished work-
ers' 'compensation coverage for both employers, denied claimant’'s
claim against each employer!

|

i The Referee found that Dr. Wilsen had believed that
'clalmant s condition was related to his work solely based on
clalmant s history to him. The Referee found claimant to be
1ncon51stent and not credible and concluded claimant had failed
to pJove compensability.

E The Referee found that claimant was entitled to com-~

pensatlon for time loss because of the Fund's unreasocnable fail-
ure to comply with the statute, however, because claimant's
claim was not found to be compensable claimant was not entitled
to penalties and attorney fees He granted claimant time loss
from October 31, 1975 to October 18, 1976, less time worked,
and an attorney fee out of the compensation awarded to claimant.

1 W

l The Board, on de novo review, concurs with the Refer-
ee's finding that claimant?sfclaims were not compensable. However,
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based on the Supreme Court's decision in Mary Jones v. Emanuel

ggspital, 280 OR 147, which was issued after the Referee's order, ‘ii
the Board finds claimant is entitled to penalties and attorney

fees for the Fund's failure to comply with the statute.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated June 9, 1977, is hereby
modified.

_ Claimant is granted an additional sum equal to 15% of
the compensation for temporary total disability from October 31,

1975 to October 18, 1976. This is in addition to the compensation
for temporary total disability granted by the Referee's order
which is in all other respects affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney's
fee for his services at Board review a sum equal to 25% of. the
compensation granted claimant by this order, payable out of such
compensation as paid, to a maximum of $500.

WCB CASE NO. 76-4425 MARCH 13, 1978

JESSE CLINE, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn & O'Leary,
Claiwmant's Atty.

Keith D. Skelton, Defense Atty.

Order of Dismissal

A request for review, having been duly filed with the
Workers' Compensation Board in the above entitled matter by the
employer, and said request for review now having been withdrawn,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request for review now
pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and the order of the
Referee is final by operation of law.

WCB CASE NO. 77-2351 MARCH 13, 1978

TIMOTHY H. CRUCHELOW, CLAIMANT

Peterson, Susak & Peterson, Claimant's Atty.
Roger R. Warren, Defense Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Emp. Ins,

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

Employers Insurance of Wausau seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which remanded claimant's claim to it for
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I
acceptance and payment of compensatlon thereby affirming the

denlal issued by the State Accident Insurance Fund.

The Baavd, aftay dé pnava vaviaw, affiyme and adoptc the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.
: |

! ORDER
; The order of the Referee, dated September 22, 1977, is

affirmed.
|

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable at-
torney s fee for his services in connection with this Board review
in the amount of $100, payable by Employers Insurance of Wausau.

i
|
|
, WCB CACE NO. 76=3215=8I . MARCH 13, 1978
|
In the Matter of the Second |Injury
Fund Relief of
FMC MARINE & RAIL EQUIPMENT |DIV., EMP.
DIANE DUVENECK, CLAIMANT
Mll]er, Anderson, Nash, Yerke &
Wlener, Defense Atty.

DeptL of Justice, Defense Atty.
Order on Review

|
|

Reviewed by BoardJMembers Wilson, Moore and Phillips.

On February 25, 1977 Referee Joseph D. St. Martin rec-
ommended that the Board grant the employer s request for reim-
bursement from the Second Injury Fund in the amount of 50% of
the addltlonal cost which is attributable to the results of the
secopd injury suffered by claimant.

l

\ The Board, after de novo review of the abstract of rec-
ord, laccepts the recommendathon of the Referee and adopts as its
own the findings of fact andfconclu51on of the law as set forth
in the recommended order, dated February 25, 1977, a copy of

Wthh is attached hereto and, by this reference, made a part
of the Board's order. '

WCB CASE NO. 77-1486 MARCH 13, 1978
|
HAROLD P. GRAMLEY, CLAIMANT
Doblie, Bischoff & Murray, 1a1mant s Atty.
Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Wllllamson &
Schwabe, Defense Atty.
Requast for Review by Employer

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.
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The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which remanded claimant's claim to it for acceptance and payment
of compensation.

8laimant 1s President of the Newcomers Bervice Inter-
national and is also the manager of the Portland-Vancouver New-
comers Service. The Newcomers Service is a service offered to
persons new in the area which includes introducing them to pro-
ducts, businesses, etc. The company has franchises in 17 cities
in the Northwest. Claimant, with his employer's approval, ar-
ranged an evening social event in his home for the franchise
holders and their spouses, to be held in conjunction with the
annual business meeting. The expenses of this event were to be
paid by the employer.

On May 16, 1976, one day before the upcoming social
event, claimant spent a large amount of time preparing his home,
both inside and out. Claimant's son, several weeks earlier, had
asked his father to repair the basketball hoop, but claimant had
not taken the time to do it up to that point. While cleaning
up his front yard on May 16, claimant noticed that the condition
of the basketball hoop detracted from the appearance of his pre-
mises. While he was using a 5-foot ladder to reach the hoop,
he slipped, fell and fractured his right leg.

Two major issues needed to be decided by the Referee.
He first found that the social event was definitely for the bene-
fit of the employer, a fact which is not disputed in the record.
The remaining question is whether adjusting the basketball hoop

should be a covered activity, If claimant had injured himsedf
while shopping for food items for the party there would be little
doubt that that would be a covered activity.

The Referee believed that the employer .would, logi-
cally, assume that claimant would do some work on his premises
to prepare his home for the event and even though the repairing
of the hoop served a personal purpose, the reason claimant per-

formed the job on that particular day wag to improve the appaar=
ance of the premises in time for the social event to be held on
the following day.

After full consideration, the Referee concluded that
claimant had sustained his injury within the scope and during
the course of his employment and therefore, his injury is com-
pensable.

The Board, after de novo review, concludes that claim-
ant's injury is not compensable,

The Board bases its opinion upon the fact that claim-
ant did not meet the seven criterion accepted by the Court of
Appeals in determining if an injury arose out of and in the course
of employment. Jordan v. Western Electric, 1 Or App 441.
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\
i The repairing of the basketball hoop in which claimant
was-engaged was of absolutely no benefit to the employer.

i

ORDER

| The order of the Referee, dated August 22, 1977, is re-
versed.

The denial of the carrier is hereby affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 76-5681 MARCH 13, 1978

BERNIE B. HINZMAN, CLAIMANT
P02¢1, Wilson, Atchlson, Kahn &
o' Leary, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Revxew by the SAll

j Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

, The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review
of the Referee's order which remanded claimant's aggravation
clalm to it for acceptance and payment of compensation to which
he 15 entitled.

i The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Oplnlon and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached

hereto and, by this reference, is made a part theraeof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated August 4, 1977, is af-
firmed.
i Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable at-
torney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review
in tﬁe amount of $150, payable by the Fund.

i
i

! WCB CASE NO, 77-1687 : MARCH 13, 1978

LORETTA IVERSON, CLAIMANT

Williams, Spooner & Graves, Claimant's Atty.
Clark, Marsh & Lindauer, Defense Atty.
"Request for Review by Employer

i Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.
* The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order
whlch remanded claimant's claim to it for payment of compensation
as prov1ded by law with temporary total disability benefits to

i
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commence as of September 23, 1976. Penalties and attorney fees
were also assessed against the defendant.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated September 8, 1977, is
affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable at-
torney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review
in the amount of $350, payable by the carrier.

Y

WCB CASE NO. 77-4254 MARCH 13, 1978

SID T. McCAFFERTY, CLAIMANT
Galton, Popick & Scott, Claimant's Atty.
Davies, Biggs, Strayer, et. al.,
Defense Atty,
Philip A. Mongrain, Defense Atty.
Own Motion Order

On November 29, 1977 claimant requested the Board to
exercise its own motion jurisdiction and reopen his claim for
a May 2, 1969 industrial injury. At that time claimant's em-
ployer was Portland Car Wash, whose carrier was Employer!
surance of Wausau.

3 In—

On May 6, 1977 claimant allegedly suffered a compen-
sable industrial injury while in the employ of Owens-Illinois.,.
Inc., a self-insured employer; this claim was denied on June 15,
1977 and c¢laimant requested a hearing on the propriety of the
denial.

The Board did not have sufficient evidence to deter-
mine whether claimant's present condition was related to the
May 18, 1969 injury and the responsibility of Wausau or was the
result of the incident of May 6, 1977 and the responsibility of
Owens—Illinois, Inc. Therefore, on December 12, 1977, the
Board referred claimant's request for own motion relief to the
Hearings Division with instructions to set it down for hearing
in conjunction with the hearing on the propriety of the denial
of the May 6, 1977 incident and to determine if claimant's pre-
sent condition was an aggravation of his 1969 injury or claimant
had suffered a new injury in May 1977.

On February 1, 1978, after a hearing, Referee H. Don
Fink concluded that claimant had suffered a new industrial in-
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jury, on May 6, 1977 while in the employ of Owens-Illinois, Inc.,
a sdlf—insured employer. An Opinion and Order entered on Feb-
ruary 21, 1978 by Referee Fink directed the claim be accepted

by Owens-I1linois for the payment of benefits to which claimant

was Fntitled under the Workers' Compensation law.

1

| The Board concludes that it is no longer necessary to
consider claimant's request for own motion:relief pursuant to
ORS 656 278 and that the request for such own motion relief should

be dlsmlssed

IT 15 SO QRPERED,

i
! WCB CASE NO, 77-1008 MARCH 13, 1978

GARY:N. PATTERSON, CLAIMANT

David W. James, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant
Cros?—appeal by Employer

|

: Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

i " Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which granted him an award of 30° for 20% loss of the right
leg. i Claimant contends that this award is inadequate and the
empléyer, on cross-appeal, contends that the award of 7.5°
gran@ed by the Determination Order is sufficient.

{ 0laimant, agée 32, suffered a compénsable injiry én
April 16, 1976 when his right knee struck a fare box on his
bus.! Dr. Larson, on May 14, 1976 performed an arthrotomy and
arthroscopy. His condition was diagnosed as an osteochondral
fracture of the medial - ridge and lateral facet of the patella,
which areas were removed at the time of the surgery.

ﬁ Claimant was able to return to work on August 2, 1976
and 1nd1cated to Dr. Larson that he was able to perform hlS
duties as a bus driver guite satisfactorily. The doctor's con-
clus%on was that claimant had some residual aching and small
snapping due to the irregularity of the patellar surface, but
his ¢ondition was stable and further treatments were not nec-

essary.

. )
! On January 26, 1977 a Determination Order granted claim-

ant - temporary total dlsablllty ‘compensation from April 20 through
August l, 1976 and 7.5° for 5% loss of the right leg.

1 Dr. lLarson, on May 10 1977, indicated that claimant
was Stlll complaining of discomfort when he knelt, climbed stairs,
or sat too long. At times he has a pop and sensation of giving
way Qf the knee, and some tenderness over the area of the scar.
The doctor explained to claimant that the patellar irritation was
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not unexpected; he recommended that claimant use a patellar
stabilization support whenever he anticipated taking part in
any vigorous activity or planned to be on his feet for a long
period of time. Dr. Larson suggested no other course of treat-
ment or care in addition to the exercise program claimant was

on.

At the hearing, claimant again complained of a "pop-
ping" in his knee that caused severe pain, although the support
Dr. Larson recommended helped the problem somewhat. He said
he was unable to drive a car for any length of time and could
tolerate his bus driving job only because he is able to get out

and move aroaund frequently during the course of his working day.

The Referee found, based on claimant's testimony and
the medical evidence which substantiates it, that claimant had
lost more than 5% use of his right leg and was entitled to com-
pensation for 20% loss function of said legq.

The Board, after de novo review, concludes that the
award granted by the Referee is somewhat high. The medical evi-
dence does not substantiate such a degree of impairment. Based
on Dr. Larson's most recent report, the Board feels that &laim-
ant is entitled to an award of 22.5° for 15% disability of the
right legq.

ORDER

The Referee's order, dated October 13, 1977, is modi-
fied.

Claimant is hereby granted 22.5° for 15% scheduled
right leg disability. This is in lieu of the award granted by
the Referee's order, which in all other respects is affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-2271 MARCH 13, 1978
WILLIAM WILLETTE, CLAIMANT .
Richardson, Murphy & Nelson, Claimant's Atty.
Jamas, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by United Pacific Insurance Co.

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

United Pacific Insurance Company seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which remanded claimant's claim to it for
acceptance and payment of compensation for an injury suffered on
August 31, 1976, thereby affirming the denial issued by the Fund.
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! The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

- . |

ORDER

; The order of the Referee, dated September 13, 1977, is
affirmed.

i Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable at-
torney s fee for his services in connection with this Board review
in the amount of $100, payable by United Pacific Insurance Company.

SATP SLATM NO. DC 273226 MARCH 14, 1978

DONALD ABBOTT, CLAIMANT
SAIF; Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Qwn Totion Determination

!

| Claimant suffered a compensable injury to his left
knee|on October 20, 1970 while working as a meter reader for
the City of Forest Grove Light and Power. After conservative

treatment failed, Dr. Jones, an orthopedist, performed & medial
menlscectomy on November 16, 1970. A Determination Order of
July|26, 1971 granted temporary disability compensation and
oermanent partial disability compensation for 15% of the left
leg.

]

Claimant again saw Dr. Jones on May 10, 1972 with com-
plaints of pain and instability in the knee. During October and
November of that year he received hydrocortlsone injections re-
sulting in relief of pain. Dr. Jones, in September 1973, noted -
that !claimant was having back problems which caused his right
leg to become weak thereby putting more pressure on his already
1nstable left leg.

! Dr. Coletti saw claimant during late 1975 and early
1976! On December 4, 1975 a left knee arthrogram was performed.

r : : _ ,

i Claimant's claim was reopened in November 1976 at the
request of Dr. Hauge who subsequently performed an arthroscopy
and arthrotomy with removal of loose-portion medial meniscus and
osteophytes, joint margin, on April 11, 1977. C(laimant was al-
lowed to return to work for half days only and wearing a knee brace.
When -his condition did not improve he was referred to Vocational
Rehabilitation. <Claimant is, at this time, receiving on-the-job
trai?ing at his employer's plant.

| Dr. Hauge found claimant's condition to be medlcally
stationary on December 1, 1977 with some residuals; claimant has
pain'after an hour of walking, swelling at the end of a busy
day,'and his knee occasionally gives way and he must change posi-
tion |[frequently.
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On December 8, 1977 the Fund requested a determination
of claimant's disability. fThe Evaluation Division of the Workers' ‘ii
Compensation Department recommends that claimant be granted tem-
porary total disability benefits from November 4, 1976 through
December 1, 1977 and 22.5° for 15% scheduled disability of the

left leg.

The Board concurs with this recommendation.

ORDER

Claimant is hereby granted temporary total disability
benefits from November 4, 1976 through December 1, 1977, less
time worked.

Claimant is granted 22.5° for 15% scheduled left leg
disability. This is in addition to the award received by claim-
ant by the Determination Order dated July 26, 1971.

WCB CASE NO. 76-6208 MARCH 14, 1978

ROBERT BRITZ, CLAIMANT

Emmons, Kyle, Kropp & Kryger, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Logal Serviceg, Defence Atty.

Gilbert Feibleman, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund requests review by
the Board of the Referee's order which granted claimant an
award of 160° for 50% unscheduled disability and ordered it to
pay comPensatibn for temporary total disability from September

16, 1976 to December 23, 1976.

Claimant, a 52-year-old car salesman, sustained a com-
pensable injury on February 4, 1975 when he was pinned between
a car and a truck. Claimant suffered injuries to both legs and
his low back. The employer was non-complying, and the Fund, pur-
suant to a Board's order, accepted the claim. Claimant continued
to work for a short period and quit work on February 13, 1975.

Claimant was treated conservatively for this injury by
Dr. Teal and Dr. Fax. Dr. Fax, in June 1975, diagnosed acute
lumbosacral strain secondary to severe muscle spasms. In August
1975 DPr. Fax found claimant medically stationary with claimant
still complaining of pain and of an inability to stand up straight.

A Determination Order of September 29, 1875 granted
claimant compensation for time loss only. @
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| In January 1976 claimant was examined by the Orthopaedic
Consultants. The physicians diagnosed sprain of the lumbosacral
spine superimposed on a pre- existing osteoarthritis and conversion
reactlon They found claimant was not stationary and recommended
psyc?latrlc evaluation.

l On March 15, 1976 Dr. Howard opined claimant was perman-
ently and totally disabled. He based this opinion on his diagno-
sis 9f severe lumbar strain which aggravated a pre-existing arth-
ritic change resulting in a severe chronic lumbar and lower thor-
acic, sprain.

\

\ Claimant was evaluated by Dr. Parvaresh who diagnosed
psychoneurotlc disorder and psychophysiological musculoskeletal
disorder. Claimant's psychological problems were not of suffi-

cient magnitude to prevent him from returning to his regular
occupation. However, Dr. Parvaresh felt there was a possibility
that! the injury had aggravated the pre-existing psychiatric dis-
orde% to the extent of 5%.

l A Second Determination Order was issued on November 10,
1976!which awarded claimant additional compensation for time
loss, and no compensation for permanent partial disability.

|
l On December 23, 1976 Dr. Howard felt claimant was medi-
cally stationary and was permanently and totally disabled from
doirg any type of thSlcal and gainful employment. Claimant was
limited to motion in all planes: he had no ablllty toc bend, stoop,
liftior stand for long perlods of time and excessive walking was
totally limited.

Claimant appeared at the hearing in a stooped over posi-
tion;and testified he could not straighten up.

The Referee found claimant was not permanently and totally
disabled. He felt that claimant's stooped over position was real
but that claimant could return to his regular occupation as a car
salesman Although claimant could not return to any type of heavy
phy51cal labor and the Referee felt that claimant was probably ex-
aggeratlng his condition to some extent, he did find claimant to
be severely impaired.

i Based upon all of the evidence, the Referee concluded
thatlclalmant was entitled to 50% unscheduled disability because
of limited types of occupation he now could perform. The Referee
found that claimant was not medically stationary until December
23, 1976 and ordered the Fund to pay claimant the compensation
for temporary total dlsablllty to which he was entitled.

_ The Board, on de novo review, concurs with the Ref-
eree!s finding that claimant was not medically stationary until
December 23, 1976. However, the Board finds that claimant has
not %ost 50% .of his wage earning capacity; claimant can return



to his regular occupation as car salesman. gis job restriction
is mainly imposed on all forms of heavy physical labor.

The Board'concludes claimant is entitled to an_award
for 40% loss of wage earning capacity.

ORDER .
, The order of the Referee, dated July 13, 1977, is
modified.

Claimant is hereby granted 128° for 40% unscheduled
disability. This award is in lieu of the award made by the
Referee's order which in all other respects is affirmed.

SAIF CLAIM NO. BC 165096 MARCH 14, 1978

ALICE L. (HUNTER) EVANS, CLAIMANT
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Own Motion Determination

Claimant, a 35-year-old female bartender, fell and
injured her left groin on September 30, 1968. The diagnosis
was a left inguinal hernia which was repaired on January 17,

1989. Purther surgery was performed on July 18, 1969 after a
defect was found. The claim was closed on October 13, 1969
with time loss benefits from September 30, 1968 +o March 18,
1969 and from July 18, 1969 to September 18, 1969.

The hernia was again repaired on February 15, 1971
and on August 2, 1971 a fourth herniorrhaphy was performed.
Because of incisional pain, claimant underwent surgery on Feb-
ruary 4, 1972 with a diagnosis of neurolysis of the left in-
guinal and genitofemoral nerves which resulted in neurological
changes in her left leqg.

Claimant complained of back pain in Julv 1872 but
the Fund issued a partial denial early in 1973 for this condi-
tion.

A Determination Order of May 2, 1973 granted further
temporary total disability compensation from February 14, 1971
through March 23, 1973 and 15° for 10% loss of the left leg.

; Claimant had refused all offers of rehabilitation ser- !
vices in 1973. g : |

A Referee's Opinion and Order, dated October 19, 1973,
found that the partial denial of February 26, 1973 should be af-
firmed and granted claimant additional compensation for 15%,
making a total of 37.5° for 25% loss of the left leg. The Board
affirmed the Referee's order.
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i The Fund voluntarily resumed itime loss c0mpensatlon
as of July 15, 1977, after claimant was admitted to the hospital

the day before for her sixth surgery connected with the hernia
condition. Dr. Gerstner released claimant for work and found
her 'condition stationary on October 3, 1977. Dr. Knox, who had
treated claimant since 1972, had found her stationary about a
month prlor to that date. Neither doctor found any neurclogical
changes in claimant's left leg since her last award of compen—
sation. C

i On November 14, 1977 the Fund requested a determination
of claimant's disability.  The Evaluation Division of the Work-

ers' Compensation Department recommended that claimant be granted
temporary total disability compensation from July 14, 1977 through
Nove@ber 7, 1977 with no further award for permanent disability.

The Board concurs with this recommendation.

4

ORDER

! Claimant is hereby granted compensation for temporary
tOtdl disability from July 14, 1977 through November 7, 1977,
less}tlme worked.

|
1

} :
i SAIF CLAIM NO. YC 288182 MARCH 14, 1978
LEO R. GILTNER, CLAIMANT

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

OwnlMotion Determination

| On February 4, 1971 claimant suffered a back injury
while pushing a wheelbarrow full of cement mortar across a
road The diagnosis was probable herniated intervertebral disc
on %he right and at the L5-S1 level. The case was closed on
AuguFt 2, 1971 with compensation for time loss only.

The case was reopened by a Board's Own Motion Order,

dated March 31, 1977. A myelogram was performed.on April 13,
1977 and a partial laminectomy L5-S1 was done on April 18, 1977.
Dr. Miller's closing report, dated October 25, 1977, indicates
a goed recovery. The only abnormal finding, in his opinion,
was an absent right ankle jerk. The doctor did not feel claim-
ant could return to his former employment as a linoleum and tile
layer, but he could do any work not requiring any repetitive -
bendlng at the waist or any lifting over 25 pounds.

! Dr. Miller released claimant from treatment on October
25, 1977 but recommended that he enter some program of rehabil-
itation. Under the auspices of Vocational Rehabilitation claim-

ant is now studying Fishery and Wildlife at a community college.
I B '
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" On* February 13, 1978 the Fund requested a determination '
of claimant's disability. The Evaluation Division of the Workers' o
Compensation Department recommends that claimant be gran?ed tem-

porary total disability from April 12, 1977 {(per Own Motion Order

of March 31, 1977) through October 25, 1977 and 48° for 15% unsched-

uled low back disability. : .

The Board concurs with this recommendation.’
ORDER

: Claimant is hereby grdnted temporary total disabiliFy
benefits from Aprll 12, 1977 through October 25, 1977, less time
wqued o -

Claimant is granted 48° for 15% unscheduled low back
disability.

WCB CASE NO. 76-6936 MARCH 14, 1978

RICHARD JOHNSON, CLAIMANT
Gearin, Landis & Aebi, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review’
of the Referee's order which remanded claimant's aggravation
claim to it for acceptance and payment of compensation to which
claimant is entitled,

Thé Board, aftef de novo review, affirmé_and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached

hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.
ORDER

The order of the Referee! dated July 20; 1977, is af-~
firmed, .

Clalmant S attorney is hereby granted a reasonable at-

torney s fee for his services in connection with thlS Board re-
view in the amount of $300, payable by the Fund.
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SAIF CLAIM NO. YA 524926 MARCH 14, 1978

SHERMAN KEY, CLAIMANT
SAIF, Legal Services, Reiense Atty.

Own Motion Determination

|

: Claimant suffered a compensable 1njury to his right
eye on April 2, 1956 when a large stick caught in a saw and
rlcocheted into claimant's eye piercing the anterior fossa and
producrng a frontal lobe abscess as well as other problems with
the eye. The claim was closed on June 21, 1956 with the cranial
problems resolved, but with only light perception in the right
eye. | Since that time claimant has undergone surgery three dif-
ferent times for which the Fund paid.

On February ‘21, 1978 the Fund requested a determina-
tion of claimant's disability. The Evaluation Division of the
BoardErecommended that claimant be granted temporary total dis-
ability from August 8, 1977 through December 21, 1977. No
further permanent disability can be granted as claimant received - -
100% of the eye at the time of the June 21, 1956 closure.

f The Board concurs w1th thlS recommendation.
t b LI !

X ORDER

: Claimant is hereby granted temporary total disability

comp@nsatlon from August 8, 1977 through December 21, 1977, less

time worked ;

WCB CASE NO. 77-450 MARCH 14, 1978

CHARLES KING, CLAIMANT

Burl {Green, Claimant's Atty.

Delbert J. Brenneman, Defense Atty.

Joint Petition and Order of a Bona
Fide Dispute

5 FacTs
| .
i Charles King, while employed by Harvey Aluminum Company,
allegedly suffered an occupational disease of:a pulmonary nature.
Clalm was made with the employer, and benefits werxe denied on
February 15, 1977. Claimant subsequently requested a hearing
before the Workers Compensation Board asserting that the denial
was 1mproper The bona fide dispute arose upon three grounds;
flrst whether or not claimant complied with the filing require-
ments of ORS 656.807; second, whether or not claimant complied
with |{ORS 656.319 when he requested a hearing from the February 15,
1977 ldenial; third, whether or not the alleged occupational
dlsease had arisen out of and in the scope of claimant's employ-
ment 'with Harvey aluminum Company. Both parties had evidence
sustdining their views.

|
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PETITION

Claimant, Charles King, in person and by his attorney,
Burl Green {Green & Griswold) and employer, Harvey Aluminum Com-
pany, and its insurance carrier, CNA Insurance, in person and by

their attorney, Delbert J. Brenneman (Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey,
Williamson & Schwabe), now make this petition to the Board and
state:

1. Charles King and Harvey Aluminum Company and its
insurance carrier, CNA Insurance, have entered into an agreement
to dispose of this claim for the total sum of $64,000, said sum
to include all benefits and attorney fees.

«r The pacrtics Lwrther agree that from the settlement
proceeds, $4,000 shall be paid to the firm of Green & Griswold
as a reasonable and proper attorney fee. :

3. Both claimant and respondent state that this joint
petition for settlement is being filed pursuant to ORS 656.289(4)
authorizing reasonable disposition of disputed claims. All parties
understand that if this settlement is approved by the Board and
payment made thereunder, said payment is in full, final and complete
settlement of all claims which claimant has or may have against
respondent for injuries claimed or their results, including

attorney fees, and all benefits under the Workers' Compensation
Law and that he will consider said payment as being final, except
injury to foot sustained prior to coverage by CNA Insurance at
Harvey Aluminum.

4. It is expressly understood and agreed by all
parties that this is a settlement of a doubtful and disputed claim
and is not an admission of liability on the part of the respondent,
by whom liability is expressly denied; that it is a settlement of
any and all claims whether specifically mentioned herein or not

under the Workers' Compensation Law.

WHEREFORE, the parties hereby stipulate to and join in
this petition to the Board to approve the foregoing settlement
and to authorize payment of the sums set forth above pursuant to
ORS 656.289(4) in full and final settlement between the parties
and to issue an order approving this compromise and withdrawing
this claim. '

It is so stipulated.

It is so ordered and this matter is dismissed.
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o L SATF CLAIM NO. ZA 928712 MARCH 14, 1978
' 1 --- . - .
KENNETH E. MASON, CLAIMANT
SAIER, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
OwnWMotion Order .

- On February 10, 1978 an Own Motion Determination
was lentered in the above entitled matter whereby claimant was
granted compensation for temporary total disability from June
6, 1977 through November 10, 1977, less time worked, and com-
penaatlon for 40% loss of functlon of the left leg.

; The Board has now been adv1sed by the State Accident
Insurance Fund that their request for a claim closure was pre-

atidre bedausé claimant's condition was not medically station-

ary at that time. The Fund has made no payments of compensation

for permanent partial disability but has continued to pay claim-
ant icompensation for temporary total disability beyond November

10, 1977. A letter from Dr. Stevens indicates that claimant is

still under his medical care and that he is planning to perform

surgical repair of the left knee on March 29, 1978.

! Therefore, the Board concludes that the issuance of its
Own Motion Determination on February 10, 1978 was premature and
when| claimant's condition ultimately becomes medically stationary,
the Fund shall request closure pursuant to ORS 656.278.

9 \ ; : ORDER

| The Own Motion Determination entered in the above en-
titled matter on February 10, 1978 is hereby rescinded.

i CLAIM NO. 133CB2906035 MARCH 14, 1978
JERALD McCARTNEY, CLAIMANT
Oown Motlon Determlnatlon

|

| Claimant sustained a compensable 1ndustr1al injury
to hlS low back on June 1, 1970. Determination Orders dated
November 9, 1970, July 8, 1971 and September 20, 1971 have
glven claimant an aggregate award of 64° for 20% unscheduled
dlsablllty

|

i A Board's Own Motion Order, dated June 21, 1977, re-
manded claimant’s claim to the carrier for acceptance and pay-
ment (of compensation commencing. December 17, 1976.

} .

After conservative care, a laminectomy and dlscectomy
at the L4-5 level were done on August 29, 1977. (Claimant was
9 released for work on October 2, 1977.
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On December 14, 1977 the carrier requested a determin-
ation of claimant's disability from the Board. The Evaluation
Division of the Workers' Compensation Department recommends that
claimant be granted temporary total disability from December 17,
1976 through October 1, 1977 with no additional permanent dis-
ability compensation.

The Board concurs with this recommendation.
ORDER

. Claimant is hereby granted compensation for temporary
total disability from December 17, 1976 through October 1, 1977,
less time worked.

WCB CASE NO. 77-3695 MARCH 14, 1978

KENNETH MURPHY, CLAIMANT

Richard 0. Nesting, Claimant's Atty.
Merten & Saltveit, Defense Atty.
Order of Dismissal

' A requect for review, having been duly filed with the
Workers' Compensation Board in the above entitled matter by the
employer, and said request for review now having been withdrawn,

. IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the request for review now
pending before the Board is hereby dismissed and the order of the
Referee is final by operation of law.

WCB CASE NO. 77-1789 MARCH 17, 1978

BERTHA E. AUGARD, CLAIMANT

Malagon, Starr & Vinson, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which affirmed the carrier's denial of her claim.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by this reference, 1s made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated June 30, 1977, is af-
firmed.
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. WCB CASE NO. 76-3957 ' MARCH 17, 1978
|

CAR3OLLE A. CLARK, CLAIMANT )

Anderson, Fulton, Lavis & VanThiel,

Claimant's Atty.
SAIF Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant

| .

' Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

; Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which affirmed the carrier's denial of her claim for aggrava-
tion.

‘ f‘ \ i

: The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts

the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached

hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.
|

| ORDER

: The order of the Referee, dated April 15, 1977, is af-
firmed.

| f

R

|

|

i WCB CASE NO. 77-5494 MARCH 17, 1978
DALE| CLOUGH, CLAIMANT

Williams, Spooner & Graves, Claimant's Atty.
SAIIu Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Order

On March 2, 1978 the Board entered an Own Motion Or-
der in the above entitled matter remanding claimant's claim
for a compensable injury suffered on December 1, 1971 to the
State Accident Insurance Fund to be accepted for the payment
of cbmpensation provided by law.

On March 7, 1978 the Board received from the Fund a
request that it reconsider its Own Motion Order based on a re-
port‘from Dr. Boals, dated August 5, 1977, and the failure of
claimant to keep an appointment to be examlned by Dr. Raaf in
Portland on December 22, 1977.

i

|
On January 25, 1978 the Fund had been advised by the

Board that it was going to consider the matter under the pro-
v151ons of ORS 656.278, furnished a brief background of claim-
ant' s initial claim for aggravation, the subsequent request by
claimant's attorney for own motion relief, a copy of the Ref-

ereeis order of dismissal, .a copy of Dr. Boals' report, dated
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August 5, 1977, and a copy of Dr. Gilsdorf's medical report,
dated July 27, 1977. 0

The Fund was requested to advise the Board within 20
days of its position with respect to claimant's reguest for own
motion relief. This request was addressed to ‘the SAIF, Legal
Services, SAIF Building, Salem, Oregon 97312.

The Board concludes that the Pund hag had ampla £ima
within which to furnish the Board with any information which
it felt the Board should consider before entering its Own Motion
Order. The request to reconsider should be denied.

The Fund may request own motion relief from the Board
if it can obtain and furnish to the Board the medical reports
which indicate that there is no relationship between claimant's

present condition and his becember 1, 1871 industrial injury.
At the present time, all that the Fund has furnished to the
Board is a medical report signed by Dr. Raaf indicating that
claimant did not keep his appointment on December 22, 1977 and
a copy of a notice of this appointment mailed toc claimant.

ORDER

The State Accident Insurance Fund's motion that the
Board reconsider its Own Motion Order entered in the above

antitlad mateay in harehy denioed.

WCB CASE NO. 76-6483 MARCH 17, 1978

LEROY COLLINS, CLAIMANT

Elden M. Rosenthal, Claimant's Atty.

Jones, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty. '

Request for Review by Employer

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

The Employee Benefits Insurance Company seeks Board
review of the Referee's order which found claimant had suffered
a new injury on May 28, 1976, set aside their denial of the
claimant's claim, and granted claimant an award of compensation
equal to 64° for 20% unscheduled disability to his low back.
EBI contends claimant did not suffer a new injury but an aggra-
vation of an injury suffered on December 7, 1972 and on such
grounds denied the claim.

Claimant~had suffered a compensable injury to his back
on December 7, 1972. This claim was closed without an award for
permanent partial disability by a Determination Order dated e
February 22, 1973. The Fund, at that time, had provided workers'
compensation coverage for the employer.
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; On May 26, 1976, while employed by the same employer,
clalmant alleges he suffered a new lnjury to his back while
plckpng up boxes. EBI provided workers' compensation coverage

for the empleyer at this time. Dr. fo diagnesed a chroni¢ right
sacroiliac and iliolumbar strain. Dr. Ho found claimant medi-

cally stationary on September 9, 1976 and felt claimant had made
a complete recovery with no impairment of function of the lower

back.|

1 l ‘
i A Determination Order dated November 12, 1976 awarded
claimant temporary total disability benefits only. Claimant ap-

pealed.

! Claimant'’'s 1972 claim had been reopened in January 1974

1

for treatment. Dr. Lorey, who had treated claimant for this.

first back injury, saw claimant in April 1976 for pain in the
right sacroiliac joint with radiation into the right leg. Claim-
ant advised Dr. Lorey he had been having intermittent problems
with the area injured in his 1972 accident, but Dr. Lorey found
that lumbosacral motion was normal. '

!

! Oon May 26, 1976 claimant advised his supervisor of
his injury. He also called his attorney and advised him he had

reinjured his back.

| . :
’ Dr. Ho reported on May 27, 1976 that claimant reported
low back pain while sitting, walking (guarded), toe walklng
(painfully limited), heel walking (guarded), running in place
{(painfully limited), squatting (guarded). Claimant's backward
or forward bending was painfully limited.

|
The depositions of Drs. Ho and Lorey were taken. Dr.
Lorey, after reading Dr. Ho's May 27 report and the additional
information that straight leg ra151ng to 40° for the left and
to 10% for the right was painfully limited with reactive spasms
with palpatory pressure over the right lumbosacral area and
over the right sacroiliac fossa, felt claimant's condition was
51gan1cantly different on May 27 than on May 21 (the last day
he had seen claimant).

o Dr. Ho, in his deposition, stated the change in claim-
ant's! condition from May 21 to May 27 was consistent with an
acute| injury in the interim period.

The Referee found, based on this evidence, a new injury
had been suffered on May 26, 1976, for which he was entitled to
an awgrd of 64° for 20% unscheduled disability.

!

¥ The Board, after de novo review, concurs with the Ref-
eree that claimant met his burden of proving he had suffered a

new ihjury on May 26, 1976, but believes the award of compensatlon
is hlgher than the evidence justified.

Based on Dr. Ho's report of September 23, 1976, the

i
i
1
1
|
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Board finds an award of 32° amply compensates claimant for his
May 26, 1976 injury.

ORDER

The Referee's order, dated August 15, 1977, is modi-
fied.

Claimant is awarded 32° for 10% unscheduled disability
resulting from his low back injury of May 26, 1976. This 1is in
lieu of the award made by the Referee's order which in all other
respects is affirmed.

WCB CASE NO, 77-2247 MARCH 17, 1978

JESSE B. COOPER, CLAIMANT

Harms & Harold, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilscen and Moore,

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review
0of the Referee's order which awarded claimant 128° for 40% un-

scheduled disaRility.

Claimant, a 48 year old truck driver, suffered a com-
pensable injury to his right shoulder on February 26, 1976 while
tightening binder chains on a load of logs. His injury was diag-
nosed as a tear of the musculotendinous junction of the right .
pectoralis major muscle. Claimant was treated conservatively.

In July of 1976, Dr. Schachner stated that claimant

was basically stationary but wéuld vaguive 2 job change. The
claimant had difficulty in rotating his shoulder as well as in
bringing his arm up over his head and internally rotating it.

The doctor noted that that was a maneuver necessary when claimant
had to throw the binders over his loaded logs, therefore, claim-
ant could not return to his regular occupation. He also was
limited in lifting and "push=-pull®” activities.

The claimant did not wish the services of the Disabil-
ity Prevention Center because he was starting up his cown business.

In September of 1976 claimant was examined by the Or-
thopaedic Consultants who noted that claimant had had a prior
injury involving a tear of the right pectoris muscle which oc-
curred under the same circumstances as his current injury. Their
diagnosis was a tear of the right pectoris major and tendinitis
of the right shoulder. They felt that the claimant's condition
was stationary and that the total loss of function of the right 6
shoulder due to his present injury was mild.
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A Determination Order, dated November of 1976, awarded
cla:mant 32° for 10% unscheduled right shoulder disability.
!
' Dr. Schachner, in February of 1977, reported that the
claimant had a mild loss of rotation both internally and exter-
nally .in the shoulder which did not appear to interfere with

function. He did note, however, claimant had a moderate degreo
of 1loss of extension in the shoulder and weakness in the grip
of the right hand.

The claimant, since his injury, has become self em-
ployéd in a tire and wheel business. Because of his limitations
he does not mount, change or balance tires. He testified at the
hearing that this reduced his prospective business income.

'
]

! Claimant has a ninth grade education and no other skills.

|

| The Referee found the claimant to be credible and, based
on the evidence presented at the hearlng, concluded that claimant
was entitled to an additional 96° for a total of 128° for 40% un-
scheduled disability. .

. The Board, after de novo review, finds that claimant's
loss.of wage earning capacity would be fully compensated by an award
of 96° for 30% unscheduled disability. The Orthopaedic Consultants
found the total 1oss of Funetion ko the slaimant's vight shauldey
due to the injury of February 26, 1976 was mild. The criteria to
determine unscheduled disability is loss of wage earning capacity;
although claimant cannot return to his old occupation because of

the possibility of further injury to his shoulder, he refused to
accept vocational rehabiliation services, preferring to commence

his own business selling tires and rims.

| _ORDER
\
} The Referee's order, dated August 11, 1877, is modified.

! Claimant is hereby granted an award of 96° for 30% un-
scheduled disability. This award is in lieu of and not in addition
to the prlor -award made by the Referee's order whlch, in all other
respects, is affirmed.

1

E WCB CASE NO. 76-5997 MARCH 17, 1978
1

ROBERT FULLER, CLAIMANT

Marvin J. Garland, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Serv1ces, Defense Atty.

Own Motlon Order

| On October 14, 1977 Referee Page Pferdner entered
an order of dismissal 1n the ‘above entitled matter In his

~-89-



order the Referee stated that the record indicated that
claimant's claim for a 1953 low back injury had been closed
in 1958 and his aggravation rights expired. He dismissed
claimant's request for hearing and stated that it appeared
that the provisions of ORS 656.278 might be indicated.

) Based upon the Referee's statement, claimant, by
and through his attorney, advised the Board on December 29,
1977 that he was under the impression that the matter had been

pvafapuad By #ha Raforoo to the Board for a determination under
its own motion jurisdiction, but stated he had not heard from

the.Board.

Apparently all of the documents which Referee Pferd-
ner directed to be furnished were lost, either from misdirec-
tion of mail or because of some other reason unknown to the
Board and it was not until February 27, 1978 that the Board was
furnished with copies of all said documents and advised that it

was the desire of claimant that the Board exercise 1ts own
motion jurisdiction and reopen his 1953 claim.

The State Accident Insurance Fund was advised cof the
present situation; because of the hearing before Referee Pferd-
ner the Fund's legal department had in its possession all of
the documents upon which claimant intended to rely. The Fund
was requested to advise the Board within 20 days of its position
reqarding claimant's request for own motion relief. ﬂ

On March 3, 197B the Fund responded, stating that based:
on the medical evidence in their file claimant had been free of
pain from 1967 until he reinjured himself moving a barber chair
on approximately February 19, 1976; he also slipped and twisted
his back on the following day which exacerbated his problem.

Rased on this information, the Fund stated it would oppose

the reopening of the claim on the basis that claimant's present
back problems were the result of a subsequent trauma and not
the natural progression or worsening of the original injury.

The Board, after reading all of the medical reports
submitted, concludes that the incident which occurred on or
about February 19, 1976, must be considered as an independent,
intervening incident which was not work-related and, further-
more, that claimant's present condition cannot, based upon the
medical evidence before the Board, be causally related to his
1953 industrial injury. Therefore, the claimant's request for
the Board to reopen his 1953 claim pursuant to the provisions
of ORS 656.278 must be denied.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
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; WCB CASE NO. 77-1067 MARCH 17, 1978
; o . T
HERBERT A. JENNINGS, CLAIMANT
Dye @ Olson, Clalmant s Atty.
SAIP Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Requést for Review by the SAIF
|
! Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

. The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review
of the Refciee's ouder which directed it to pay claimant's at-
torney's fee of $l 000. This is the sole issue before the Board
on review.

|

] Claimant had suffered a compensable injury on Septem-
ber 2, 1975 which was diagnosed by Dr. Sanders as a contusion
of the lumbar thoracic spine. Claimant was also examined by
Dr. Grossman and by the physicians at the Orthopaedic Consul-
tants.

! In late 1975 claimant moved to Texas where he was
treated by Dr. O'Lavin and Dr. Steele. Dr. O'Lavin was of the
opinion that claimant was medically stationary on July 30, 1976;
claimant had a fragile back and that restrictions should be placed
upon'llftlng, bendlng or StOOplng in his work activities. A myel-
Ogrdm was performed in.,January 1977 which showed no abnormalities.

On January 28, 1977 the Fund submitted to the Evalua-

tion' Division its Form 802 which indicated it was not requesting
a determination as claimant was not yet medically stationary;
despite this, the Evaluation Division entered a Determination
Order on February 3, 1977 which granted claimant temporary total
dlSdblllty benefits up to December 6, 1976 and awarded 48° for 15%
unscPeduled disability.

|

; On February 14, 1977 claimant requested a hearing al-
leging, among other things, that the Determination Order had been
prematurely issued which brought before the Referee the issue
of claimant's need for additional medical care and treatment
and Fhe continuation of temporary total disability benefits.

|

‘: After this request for a hearing, Dr. Moore restated
his oplnlon that claimant was not medically stationary and Dr.
Paltrow reported, on April 12, 1977, that claimant had a psy-
c1atr1c ‘component to his condition.’ The treatment recommended
by both Dr. Moore and Dr. Paltrow was the same as had been in-
dlcated prior to the closure by the Evaluatlon Division,
therefore, the Fund issued a denial of "a claim for aggravatlon
on May .5, 1977, stating there had been no change in claimant’'s
condition since the closure three months previous. Subsequently’
claimant amended his request for hearing to include an appeal
from:this denial. '
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The Referee found that since the Fund had not requested
a determination and that the claim should never have been evaluated ii
in the first place there was a premature closure of the claim. He
vacated the Determination Order and remanded the claim to the Fund

for the payment of compensation, as provided by law. He also

found that the denial by the Fund was improper and, therefore,

claimant's attorney should be paid a reasonable attorney's fee

by the Fund.

The Board, on de novo review, finds that the medical
reports which were submitted by claimant Aftay tha alasupa 1ndi-
cated that the treatment recommended before closure was still nec-
essary, therefore, there could be no aggravation or worsening of
claimant's condition and the denial was correct in that respect.

The true issue was not aggravation but rather premature
closure, an issue already raised in claimant's original regquest
for hearing made in February 1977. The Board further finds that
the Fund had never requested claim closure, therefore, the pre-
mature issuance of the Determination Order was the reason claim-
ant was required to hire an attorney to protect his rights. The
Fund ¢id pot actually deny claimant's "claim for aggravation" be-
cause that issue cannot be raised until after a valid initial eval-
uation of claimant's disability.

The only matter before the Referee was claimant's ap-
peal from the Determination Order of February 3, 1877 and the ii
Referee properly set it aside and remanded the claim to the
Fund. Therefore, the Referee should have awarded claimant's
attorney a reasonable attorney's fee payable out of the compen-
sation, payable as paid, not to\exceed the maximum set by OAR

436-82-0440.
ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated July 15, 1977, is modi-
fied.

Phe denial by the Pund of claimant's "alaim &F agyva-
vation", dated May 5, 1977, is approved.

Claimant's counsel is awarded as a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services before the Referee at the hearing
a sum equal to 25% of the compensation for temporary total dis-
ability which claimant shall receive, payable cut of said com-
pensation as paid, not to exceed $500; and a sum equal toc 25%
of any compensation which claimant may receive when his claim
is closed, the total fees not to exceed $2,000.

The affirmance of the Fund's denial and the award of
attorney fees made by this order are in lieu of those two por-
tions of the Referee's order which in all other respects is af- e

firmed.
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; WCB CASE NO. 76-4734 MARCH 17, 1978
i

M. LINDA KEENON, CLAIMANT

Richard B. Kingsley, Claimant's Atty.

SAIFL Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

f
4

J The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
affirming the Determination Order, dated July 19, 1976, which
granted claimant an award of 16° for 5% unscheduled disability.
Claimant contends the award is inadequate.

\

: Claimant, then a 32-year-old police matron, suffered
a compensable injury on February 6, 1973 to her tailbone and the
back! of her head when she slipped out of a chair and fell back-

wards striking the wall with hey haad and the floor with her
low back. She was seen by Dr. Denker the next day; he diagnosed
confhsions of the cocecyx and neck strain. Clalmant was treated
W1tN pain pills and chiropractic treatments.

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

. In July 1974 Dr. Fry examined claimant. He found the

1

claimant was 5' 8-1/2" tall and weighed over 200 pounds. His

diagnosic was a mechanical low back pain. He prescribed physi-
cal therapy and encouraged claimant to lose welght Dr. Fry
oplned claimant's prognosis for improvement was in direct rela-
tionship to her weight loss.

| Claimant continued to have back problems and was seen

by Drs. Tsai and Patton; both commented on her weight problem.

myelogram was performed in January of 1976 which was negative.
Dr. lTsal found no neurologic problem and suggested traction.
He Eelt claimant had a herniation nucleus pulposus with left
51 nerve root compression at L5-S1 related to her injury by his-
torg Claimant was hospitalized approximately one week 1in late
November 1976 for traction. She did not benefit from this treat-
ment ‘ -

I Claimant was found medically stationary by Dr. Tsai on
May{25, 1976 and the aforementioned Determination Order was is-
sue%. .

% Claimant has continued at her job as a police matron
except for brief periocds of time loss. She testified she cur-
rently is unable to do her housework the way she had previously
done, it. She described her problem as involving her lower back,
leftd hip, left leg and tingling of her left toes as well as
left{knee difficulty. Claimant's weight has increased from 185
pounds in 1965 to 230 pounds in 1975. She had reduced to 215
poungs at the time of the hearing.

|

! The Referee found claimant had been adequately compen-
sated by the Determlnatlon Qrder for any loss of earning capa-

|

]
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city she may have sustained as a result of her injury. Claimant's
doctor recommended weight reduction which he felt was directly
related to any discomfort claimant was currently having. The

Reforoe noted that claimant was doing the same job she had been
doing at the time of her injury and is now making more money than
she previously had been making.

Claimant has been employed as a police matron for nine
yvears and has taken police science courses at a community college.
Claimant's pain was not disabling.

The Referee concluded, based on all the evidence, that
claimant has suffered minimal, if any, loss of earning capacity

as a resudt @f her injury.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms the Referee's
order.

ORDER

The Referee's order, dated June 24, 1977, is affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-488 ‘ MARCH 17, 1978

BEVERLY MARVEL, CLAIMANT
Kirkpatrick & Howe, Claimant's Atty.

SATF, Legal 8ervices, Befense Atty.
Order of Remand

On March 6, 1978 the Board received from claimant, by
and through her attorney, a motion to remand the above entitled
matter to the Hearings Division on the grounds and for the rea-
son that since the issuance of the Referee's Opinion and Order,

claimant has undergone further medical care and treatment result-
ing in several medical reports and medical evidence which could
possibly change the findings and conclusions of the Referee.

, The Board is informed by a letter from claimant's attor-
ney, dated March 1, 1978, that Mr. Hall, Assoclate Counsel for
the Fund, has no objection to the motion.

The Board, after considering the reports submitted with
the motion and taking into consideration the lack of opposition
to the granting of said motion, concludes that it would be in the
best interest of all parties to remand the above entitled matter
to Referee J. Wallace Fitzgerald, who initially heard the case
and whose Opinion and Order is now before the Board on claimant's
request for review.

The Board will give consideration tc claimant's reguest
that the matter not be assigned for hearing in the Redmond/Bend
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area because ¢laimant now lives in Portland; but it does not bos
lieve it is desirable that the matter be submitted to a new ref-
erce. )

1

i The Board finds that the record before it at the present
tlme is not complete, therefore, it will remand the matter to Ref-
eree Fitzgerald, who, after this remand, will be reinvested with

jurlsdlctlon over the matter with directions to rescind his Opin-

ion and Order of October 5, 1977 and, after hoaring eha aaw madi-
cali evidence and possibly reconsidering the evidence previously
received, to issue his Opinion and Order based thereon.

| It appears that the pending regquest for Board review
should be withdrawn inasmuch as the facts presently before the
Board for review may be substantially changed by the Opinion
and Order eventually written by Referee Fitzgerald, however, the

Board will awalt a formal requect from claimant 8 do so.

ORDER

The claimant's motion to remand the above entitled
matter to the Hearings . Division for the taking of further evi-
dence and possible reconsideration of evidence already in the
record is granted with specific instructions that the matter
be peard by Referee J. Wallace Fitzgerald.

i
|
SAIF CLAIM NO. GA 759520 MARCH 17, 1978

LEONA A. RIGGS, CLAIMANT
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

OwnlMotion Determination

| .

1 Claimant suffered an injury to her right knee on Aug-
ust 4, 1959. 1In October 1975 she had an excision of the medial
and lateral meniscus. When she failed to improve because of
chondromalacia, the patella was removed. After a patellar ten-
don! transfer was performed on October 28, 1960 claimant was able
to return to work. The claim was subsequently closed on August
iO 1961 with compensation for 25% loss of function of the right
eqg.

; After a reopening and second closure on June 20, 1962,
a crrcult court order of August 10, 1962 granted claimant a total
award for 75% loss of function of the legq.

An automobile accident in 1961 caused an 1n]ury to her
bac< for which a fusion was performed. Another back injury oc-
curred in 1970 and a lamlnectomy was done.

| When claimant's knee pain continued the carrier reopened
her clalm voluntarlly In November 1973 Dr. Wade replaced her
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knee with a Geomedic prosthesis. She continued to have problems

with hor knoo and in August of 1975 a Sheehan prosthesis was in- (ip
stalled in place of the Gecmedic prosthesis. The range of motion

in her knee improved rapidly and she had no difficulty until October
1975 when, after her knee started giving way and becoming painful,

she had to use crutches for walking. She began wearing a long-

leg brace to help relieve the strain on the knee, but this aggra-

vated her back so that she could wear the brace for only short

periods at a time.

Dr. Groth, on March 15, 1976, operated on claimant's

right knee to tighten the presthesis. Since that time she has

found it necessary to use crutches constantly. Her knee is un-
stable with a valgus deformity and because of the con@1tlon of

her knee, she has aggravated her back problems.

On December 21, 1977 the Fund requested a determina-
tion of claimant's disability. fThe Evaluation Division of the
Workers' Compensation Department recommends that claimant be
granted temporary total disability asmpansation from November
28, 1973 through February 28, 1978 and an additional 20% loss of
function of the right leg.

The Board concurs with this recommendation.

ORDER

Claimant i1s hereby granted compensation £0r temperazy
total disability from November 28, 1973 through February 28,
1978, less time worked.

Claimant is also granted compensation for 20% loss of
function of the right leg. This award is in addition to the
previcus award of 75% of the maximum allowable by statute.

- WEB CASE NO. 77-201 MARCH 17, 1978

BARBARA TROW, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn & O'Leary,
Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which granted claimant 16° for 5% unscheduled disability.

Claimant, at age 27, slipped and fell on January
9, 1976 while working at Hoody's bruising her shoulders, right
side and both knees. Dr. Smith, on January 16, 1976, -found
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mild 88nEusion 6f the ribs. An x~ray report, dated February
23, 1976, revealed essentially normal findings with a very min-
imal scoliosis.

! Dr. Donald Smith, on June 10, 1976, indicated that
clalmant had symptoms of a mild cervical strain; her complaints
were largely subjective or functional in origin and he recom-
mended that she return to work on a trial basis. Dr. Thompson,
who saw claimant on several occasions, agreed with Dr. Smith
that claimant should return to work on a trial basis. He had

no}recommendation for further treatment, unless her symptoms
worsened, at which time he would perform a myelogram.

|
: On August 2, 1976, Dr. Thompson noted that claimant
had attempted to return to work but had had great difficulty
w1th neck paln and headaches and she quit after two days. He
feht most of her problems were probably functional and recom-
mehded that she be evaluated by the Disability Prevention Divi-
31ﬂn.

w The Orthopaedic Consultants, on September 8, 1976, diag-
no“ed claimant's problem as cervical and dorsal strain, by his-
tory They felt she was not medically stationary and recommended
a further work-up from an EMG standpoint and from a psychological
stdndp01nt

P

; . Dr. Wilson, on September 23, 1976, found claimant's

right~sided weakness and sensory locc to be functional amd noted
there was no objective evidence of neurological deficit. The
Orthopaedic Consultants, on October 20, 1976, indicated that
claimant was medically stationary and that the toctal loss of
fuqction of her back, due to the injury, was minimal.

i Dr. Thompson, on December 21, 1976, opined that claim-
ant' should not return to her former ]ob and restricted her to
lifting no more than 20 pounds or doing any repetitive bending
or &lftlng On December 22, 1976 a Determination Order granted
time loFs benefits only.

¥

i Dr. Ferrante, a chiropractic physician, in his March
24 11977 report, indicated that claimant was showing a definite
increase in severity of her original accident. He based this
on the premise that she had not been under an effective treat-
ment schedule and requested that her case be reOpened Oon Aug-
ustl 3, 1977 the doctor indicated that she was improving under
hl&{care and treatment.

|

' The Referee found that claimant's emotional state pre-
existed the injury and that the opinion of the majority of her
doctors was that her complaints were functional. Dr. Ferrante's
treatment was not curative. He found that most of the evidence
inéicated that her condition was stationary. Based on the fact
thet her industrial injury did mildly affect her wage earning
capacity, he granted her 16° for 5% unscheduled permanent partial
dlsablllty
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The Board, after de novo review, concludes that the
award granted by the Referee's order is inadeguate to compensate 6
claimant for her disability. Dr. Thompson, who was claimant's

major treating physician, restricted claimant to Some extent in
her activities and he believed that claimant could not return to
her old job. ;

Based upon the reports of Dr. Thompson, the Board con-
cludes that claimant is entitled to 48° for 15% unscheduled dis-
ability to adequately compensate her for her loss of wage earn-
ing caPacity.

ORDER

The Referee's order, dated August 30, 1977, is modi-
fied. :

Claimant is hereby granted 48° for 15% unscheduled
disability. This award is in lieu of the award made by the

Referee's order which in all other respects 1s affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted as a reasonable
attorney's fee for his services at Board review a sum equal to
25% of the increased compensation granted by this order, payable
out of said compensation as paid, not to exceed $2,300.

WCB CASE NO. 77-2384 MARCH 22, 1978

RICHARD BECK, CLAIMANT

Merten & Saltveit, Claimant's Atty.
Cosgrave & Kester, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

Claimant requests review by the Board of the Referee's
order which affirmed the Disability Prevention Division's letter
of termination of vocational rehabilitation and alsc the Determin-
ation Order of January 8, 1975.

Claimant, a 26-year-old laborer, sustained a compensable
injury on August 7, 1974 when he picked up a hose and experienced
pain in his back. ’

Claimant was seen by Dr. Halferty at the Disability Pre-
vention Center on January 29, 1975. X-rays revealed the dorsal
and lumbar spines had moderate scoliosis with a list to the left.
Claimant was medically stationary and his physical impairment was 0
rated as mild. Dr. Halferty found claimant highly motivated to
become a photographer,
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Dr. Kayser found claimant stationary on October 15, 1974.
Davis, in October 1974, felt claimant couldn't Perform work

reguiring lifting, twisting and turning that was expected in man-
ual labor occupations.
|
: A Determination Order of January 8, 1975 granted claim-
ant 48° for 15% unscheduled disability. A stipulation, dated
April 18, 1975, increased claimant's award to 55°.

i Claimant testified he had enrolled in a course at Port-
land Community College to become a photo laboratory technician.
He went through one year of this course when his counselor ad-
vised him that he had to get a certificate or degree to appease
vocational rehabilitation. A certificate or degree was not re-
quﬂred to become a photo lab technician, instead a student worked
toﬁard a portfolio. '

| Claimant was also informed that he needed to carxy a
minimum of 12 hours and maintain a certain grade point average.
Because of this advice claimant began taking commercial art
courses for which he wasn't suited, and managed to get only 10
hours credit, however, by February 1977 claimant had completed
the assignments sufficient to give him the two needed credit

hours
\

! On February 1, 1977, the Disability Prevention Divi-
sion terminated claimant's program even though by this time
claimant's attorney was corresponding with the vocational re-
habilitation office. Claimant, at the time of this termina-
tion, lacked two courses to be gualified as a full fledged

photo lab technician.

i There was testimony-that claimant did not follow up
for a job interview with GAF but claimant testified that no
interview was ever discussed, just a phone conversation took
pldce.

! Movies were shown at the hearing depicting claimant
bulelng cabinets all afternoon long with only a I0-minute
break Before the films were shown claimant had testified

thﬁt he did build things and sometimes worked all day long.

The Referee found that claimant lacked motivation

to 'secure employment, therefore, his loss of wage earning
capac1ty cannot be determined. He found the 48° granted by
the Determination Order, dated January 8, 1975, plus the 7°
per the Stipulation, was adegquate. The Referee further found
that claimant failed to achieve what was expected of him at
voretlonal rehabilitation and DPD was justified in terminating
himl

|

i The Board, on de novo review, finds that the action
by DPD in termlnatlng clalmant 5 vocatlonal rehabllltatlon pro-

it
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gram was arbitrary. Claimant was forced to change courses in
"mid stream" because he was told he had to take a certain number
of credit hours and maintain a certain grade point average. In

O=takay 1976 claimant wac advised that he was in full compliance
with the requirements of his program, yet in February 1977, he
was terminated. At that time claimant was carrying the required
12 credit hours and his attorney so informed the Disability Pre-
vention Division.

Although it was very doubtful, initially, that claimant
had a vocational handicap, nevertheless, it was determined that
he did have and the manner in which his program was terminated
was lmproper.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated September 15, 1977, is
reversed.

The Determination Order, dated April 4, 1977, is hereby
set aside and the Disability Prevention Division is directed to
refer claimant back to his vocational rehabilitation program and
claimant shall be paid compensation for temporary total disability
until claim closure is authorized pursuant to ORS 656.268.

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney's
fee at Board level a sum equal to 25% of the compensation for tem- - 0 f
porary total disability awarded by this order, payable as paid, not
to exceed 5500.

WCB CASE NO. 76-1871 MARCH 22, 1978

THELMA E., BECKER, CLAIMANT
Gary D. Rossi, Claimant's Atty.

R. Ray Heysell, Defense AtLYy.

Request for Review by Employer

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which held that the claimant's cervical disc condition was com-
pensable and remanded it to the employer for payment of benefits.

Claimant, a 48-year-old mill worker, suffered a compen-
sable injury to her right shoulder while she was pulling veneer
on January 5, 1973. She was originally treated by Dr. Samuel,

a chiropractic physician, who diagnosed minimal thoracic outlet
syndrome; he found no evidence of fractures or dislocation, but
some evidence of right shoulder strain. Dr. Samuel referred
claimant to Dr. Lynch who diagnosed calcific supraspinatous
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tenosynovitis and bicipital tenosynovitis. .Claimant was treated
conbervatlvely until August of 1973 when she was referred to Dr.
Mel:on, a neurologist, who diagnosed possible bicipital tendini-

tis .and/or pectoral head invelvement. He ruled out thoracic out-
let 'syndrome.

! Dr. Lynch, on January 18, 1974, found claimant had nor-
mal !range of all shoulder motions and had calcific tendinitis of
the |right shoulder. A Determination Order, of March 19, 1974,
closed the claim without any award of temporary total disability
or permanent partial disability.

f On April 3, 1974 claimant reinjured her shoulder while
she was puwkling veneer off the dry chain. She returned to Dr.

Lynch for further treatment; she continued to receive treatment
until December 4, 1974 when Dr. Lynch excised the calcium deposit
of her right shOulder Claimant was returned to light work on
Maxch 24, 1975,

J

| In November of 1975 Dr. Lynch reported that claimant
complalned of a pain extending down the whole right upper limb
with numbness in her fingers and thumb. Neither the doctor or

the 'claimant was sure i1f Ehis wag related to the industrial in-
jury. Dr. Lynch referred her to Dr. Melson for a neurclogical
consultation.

| Dr. Melson examined claimant and referred her to Dr.
Dunn, who saw claimant on January 23, 1976 and diagnosed a Cé6
and!C? root compression.' A two level interior cervical fusion
was [performed on April 7, 1976. On April 1, 1976 the employer
den%ed responsibility for claimant's cervical condition.

|
| Pr. Lynch examined claimant again on July 24, 1976

and still was unsure abcut any relationship between the indus-
trlal injury and claimant's cervical problems. He noted that
the!cerv1cal neck problems appeared to come within-a few weeks
after her April 1974 injury.

i Dr. Matthews examined claimant on October 4, 1976
and, after reviewing all the medical evidence as well as the
X-rays, was unable to find any causal relationship between the
1ndustr1al injury and the cervical neck problems. He felt it
probable that claimant would eventually have had enough neuro-
logical symptoms to warrant surgery without these injuries.

He found no definite connection between the injuries and the
onset of the symptoms that were treated.

Dr. Samuel reported, on October 22, 1976, that he be-
lieved that the claimant did receive an injury to the cervical
spine as well as a traumatic aggravation to the right shoulder
at Fhe time of her injury on January 5, 1973,

; A Second Determination Order, dated August 27, 1976,
awarded claiwant temporary total disability compensation-only.

b
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The Referee found claimant had proved a causal con-
nection between ‘her C6-7 nerve root compression and the indus-
trial injury although there was a conflict in the medical evi-
dence on this.

The Referoe conoluded thig wag aclaggsic cage of magke
ing where the shoulder symptoms diverted attention from cervical
manifestations, and ordered that the claim be accepted by the
employer.

The Board, after de novo review, finds that the pre-
ponderance of the medical evidence 1is, contrary to Dr. Samuel's
opinion, that the cervical problem was not related to the indus-
trial injury. This is not the classic case of masking of gymp-
toms; it is apparent from the medical evidence that claimant's
cervical problems had developed a substantial length of time
after the industrial 1njury to claimant's shoulder and thus were
not masked thereby.

Neither Dr. Dunn or Dr. Lynch were able to find any
causal connection between claimant's industrial injury and her
cervical problem.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated March 25, 1977, is re-
versed.

The denial by the employer and its carrier of any re-
sponsibility for .claimant's cervical problems made on April 1,
1976 is affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-2609 MARCH 22, 1978

JOHN HENDERSON, CLAIMANT

Cottle & Howser, Claimant's Atty.
Keith D. Skelton, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

Claimant has requested Board review of a Referee's
order which granted claimant an award for 40% unscheduled dis-
ability equal to 128°.

Claimant is a 3l-year-old mill worker who sustained
a back injury in May 1973, diagnosed as a lumbosacral strain.
Dr.. Hagens treated conservatively and claimant continued to
work. His claim was closed on April 1, 1974 with an award for
time loss only.
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i Claimant's back pain became so severe by July 1976
that he could not tolerate it and he was forced to quit work.

A myelogram indicated a complete herniation of the disc at
L5- Sl Claimant underwent a laminectomy and disc removal; he

returned to mill work but had to quit after a week hecause of
paln and muscle spasm. He has not worked since. A Second De-
termlnatlon Order awarded claimant 80° for 25% unscheduled dis-
abl%lty

{ Dr. ﬁagens felt claimant should not return to mill
work; he recommended vocational rehabilitation. A referral was
made to the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation and a plan
set iup, but it was terminated when claimant complained of mi-

graﬂne headaches. There is no medical evidence that claimant
waslforced to quit the rehabilitation program because of his
physical disability.

|

i Dr. Hagens reported on March 18, 1977 that claimant
wouﬂd always have a problem with his back and estimated his
dlsablllty at about 25%. The Orthopaedic Consultants agreed.

! The Referee concluded that Evaluation was probably
correct as to impairment, but, after considering claimant's
bac@ground education and training, that claimant's loss of
wage earning capacity should be rated at 40%.

! . .
The Referee amended the Second Determination Order

to reflect claimant's aggravation rights would expire five
years from April 1, 1974, the date of the initial claim clos-
ure, instead of April 12, 1977, the date of the Second Deter-
mination Order.

: The Board, on de novo review, affirms the Referee's
crder.

¥
i ORDER
! The order of the Referee, dated August 3, 1977, is
affirmed.

I

|

E WCB CASE NO. 76—6979 MARCH 22, 1978
|

GEORGE H. MOLLERS, CLAIMANT

Bedrield, dnelson, Gould & Barron, Claimant's Atty.

Cosgrave & Kester, Defense Atty.

Rquest for Review by Claimant

| Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.
I

. _Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order

Whlch affirmed the December 8, 1976 Determination Order grant-

1nc lclaimant - l28° for 40% unscheduled upper and low back dis-
| |
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ability. Claimant contends that he is permanently and totally
disabled.

Claimant sustained an injury on December 22, 1972
when he strained his back while unloading grain sacks. 2An Opin-
ion and Order issued October 11, 1974 found claimant's injury
was compensable and claimant was found to be medically station-

ary as of November 15, 1973.

Dr. Campagna saw claimant over a period of several
years with a basically favorable report of his back condition,
On November 11, 1975 he indicated that claimant would be hos-
pitalized for pelvic traction. Subsequent to this hospitali-
zation, the doctor reported satisfactory progress although
claimant still had low back pain. He noted at that time (Dec-
ember 1975) th?t claimant was retired.

On January 20, 1976 claimant told Dr. Campagna of
his increased neck and back pain, denying any intervening in-
jury. The doctor indicated a myelography was again indicated.
This was performed on February 25, 1976.

Claimant was also under the care of Dr. Boots from the
date of his injury. Dr. Boots, on March 19, 1976, indicated

that he had hospitalized claimant on Pebruary 18, 1876 for a
problem directly related to his December 1972 injury. Dr. Boots,
on July 31, 1976, indicated that he felt claimant was totally
disabled and that because of his age (60) claimant would not
benefit from a rehakbilitation program.

_ The Orthopaedic Consultants, on October 7, 1976, diag-
nosed post-laminectomy, discectomy, with myelograms and chronic
lumbar strain. They also found thrombophlebitis of the left
calf and cervical arthritis, both unrelated to the industrial
injury. Claimant's condition was stationary; no further treat-
ment was recommended and because claimant is retired from the

lahor market, neither job placement or rehabilitation was rec-
ommended. They found the total loss of function of the back
was moderate, the loss of function due te the industrial injury
was mildly moderate.

Claimant testified that he is unable to hunt, £ish,
golf and work in his yard like he could prior to the injury.
He is able to do a little gardening and light housekeeping,
and he can play 9 holes of golf and do light fishing. Because
he is unable to do anything strenuous, he did not actively seek
employment after his injury. Because of his injury and age,
he was turned down by Vocational Rehabilitation.

The Referee found, based on the medical reports from
Dr. Boots, Dr. Campagna and the Orthopaedic Ceonsultants, that
claimant was not permanently and totally disabled and had been
adequately compensated by the award of 128° for 40% unscheduled

disability.
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The Board, after de novo review, finds that claimant
is not permanently and totally disabled, but claimant has a
large amount of, permanent disability based on the medical evi-
dence in the record. Dr. Boots-found him to be permanently
totaily disabled, however, he,was considering physical prob-
lems |unrelated to his injury along with the residuals of the
injury. Dr. Campagna found claimant's neck and back motions

waroe|limited to about 50% normal range. The Orthopae@ic Con-
sultants found his disability due to the injury was mildly mod-
erate.

Claimant's age and the fact that he is not considered
as al good candidate for rehabilitation increases claimant's
loss{of wage earning capacity resulting from his industrial
injury, however, claimant is able to perform light work and to
take!part to some extent in recreational activities,

The Board concludes that claimant is entitled to an
award of 192° for 60% unscheduled back disability.

ORDER

The Referee'!s order, dated August 23, 1977, is modi-

fied)

Claimant is hereby granted 192° for 60% unscheduled
back disability. This award is in lieu of the award made by
the Referee's order which in all other respects is affirmed.

| Claimant's attorney is hereby granted as a reason-
ablp attorney's fee for his services at Board review a sum
equal to 25% of the increased compensation granted by this

ordpr, payable out of said compensation as paid, not to exceed
$2,300.

WCB CASE NO. 75-977 °  MARCH 22, 1978
WCB CASE NO. 76-2059

GEORGE W, PARKE, CLAIMANT

Galton, Popick & Scott, Claimant's Atty.

Kelth D. Skelton, Defense Atty.

Gearln, Landis & Aebi, Defense Atty.

SAIq, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

L1n@say, Nahstoll, Hart & Krause, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review
of the Referee's order which remanded claimant's aggravation

claim to it for acceptance and payment of compensation, ordered
I

| !
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the Fupd to reimburse Home Insurance Company for all sums paid
to claimant as a result of the Order Designating Paying Agent

issued on March 2, 1977, and assessed penalties and attorney
fees against the Fund.

o The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order .0of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated June 22, 1977, is af-
firmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable at-
torney's fee for his services in connection with this Board re-
view 1n the amount of $150., payvable by the carrier.

WCB CASE NO. 77-2824 MARCH 22, 1978

WILBUR J. ROOFENER, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn & O'Leary,
Claimant's Atty.

Jones, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
granted him compensation for 75% unscheduled low back disability.

Claimant contends that he is permanently and totally disabled.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof. However,
the Board strongly encourages the Field Services Division of the
Workers' Compensation Department to do everything possible to get

thic worker bhack in the labor market in a very short time.
ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated September 12, 1977, 1is
affirmed.




|
|
!
‘ WCB CASE NO, 76-6724 MARCH 22, 1978
i

RICHARD SEYMOUR, CLAIMANT
P0421, Wilson, Atchlson, Kahn & O'Leary,

Cﬁalmant s Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Order

|

i On September 14, 1977 the Workers' Compensation Board
dlrected its Hearings Division to remand the above entitled mat-~
ter‘to a Referee to convene a hearing and secure evidence regard-
ing the validity of the contention made by Mr. Seymour, claimant

in WCB Case No. 76=6724, that all, or nearly all of the money
collected from the judgment in question, is for injuries result-
ing|from a separate and independent accident, totally unrelated
to the industrial injuries which are the subject of the State
Accident Insurance Fund's Claim No. RC 451820.

| A hearing was convened on January 19, 1978 before Ref-
eree Raymond S. Danner, evidence was taken and the hearing was
clo?ed on January 27, 1978 upon receipt of the transcript.

On February 28, 1978 Referee Danner submitted his rec-
ommended finding of fact together with the transcript of the pro-
ceeding to the Board for its consideration. The Board, after
fully considering the transcript of the proceedings and the rec-
ommended finding of fact, adopts as its own the recommended
flndlng of fact, a copy of which is attached hereto and, by this
reference, made a part hereof.

ORDER

l The State. Accident Insurance Fund has no statutory
rlght to share in the recovery of the judgment which c¢laimant,
as plalntlff in Seymour v. White, Coos County Circuit Court
Case No. 35710, received against defendant in said case. Said
judgment was granted claimant for injuries not related to an
industrial accident and the provisions of ORS 656.576 through
.59? are applicable. ‘

l
|

! WCB CASE NO. 77-923 MARCH 22, 1978

|
DANIEL C. SHERLOCK, CLAIMANT
Franklln, Bennett, Ofelt & Jolles,

Claimant's Atty.

G. Howard Cliff, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Claimant

! .

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

: Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
whleh afflrmed the February ll L977 Determination Order

:
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granting him 20.25° for 15% loss of the right foot and ap-
proved the non-referral of the Disability Prevention Division.
Claimant contends that the award granted by the Determination
Order does not adequately compensate him for his disability.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof, -

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated September 9, 1977, is
affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 76-4990 MARCH 22, 1978

MARVIN STMS, CLAIMANT

Ackerman & DeWenter, Claimant's Atty.
Keith D. Skelton, Defense Atty.
Reguest for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phi}lips,

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which awarded him 192° for 60% unscheduled disability for his
low back injury. Claimant contends he is permanently and
totally disabled.

Claimant is a 44-year-old mill worker who sustained
a compensable injury to his low back on August 26, 1972 when
ha mtappad an & piass &f vénéér and fell. After conservaktive
treatment, the claim was closed with no award for permanent
disability.

Claimant returned to work but in late 1973, after
"recurrence of low back pain with radiation, he was hospitalized
and underwent a laminectomy at L5-S1., <Claimant continued to
have low back pain and was referred to the Disability Prevention
Division for evaluation. Dr. Van Osdel concluded claimant had

a mildly moderate residual from the laminectomy and recommended
a jok changs wath ne heavy lifting, repetitlive bending, Stooplng

or twisting.

Dr. Munsey found claimant suffered from a moderately
severe depressive reaction with anxiety. He felt that the prog-
nosis for rehabilitation and restoration was poor considering
claimant's limited intellectual resources, educational defi-
ciencies and lack of strong aptitudes in any area,

A Determination Order dated December 27, 1974 awarded 6
claimant temporary total disability benefits and 64° for 20%
unscheduled disability.
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In September of 1975 claimant had returned to Dr.
Campagna, complalnlng of low back pain with numbness and right
hip and leg pain with numbness. A myelogram revealed a re-

currgnt lumbocacral disc and claimant underwent a second lam-
1nectomy

5 A Determination Orxrder dated July 30, 1976 granted
clanmant an additional. 64° for a total of l28° for unscheduled
dlSmbllltY :

Vocational rehabilitation efforts for claimant which
had started in July 1975 were interrupted by the second surgery
and have not resulted in any successful retraining or job place-
mentl

i The Referee found that claimant was not permanently ‘
and totally disabled, however, based on claimant's prior work
experlence in heavy physical work to which he cannot return,
he 1ound that claimant had suffered a loss of wage earning
capacrty equal to 60% unschediuled disability.

| Claimant continued to be treated by Drs. Weinman and

Campagna Thay reported claimant continued to have back pain
and 1mposed substantial limitations on what claimant could do.
Dr. Welnman felt claimant was barred from any heavy work and
that! claimant had lost one-half of his pre-injury capacity for
perjormlng bending, stooping, llftlng, pushing, pulling and
cllmblng movements. Dr. Campagna, in July of 1976, reported
claLmant s back motion was 50% of normal.

% The Board, on de novo review, concludes that Dr. Cam-
pagna s estimate of 50% loss of function did not include the

'facior of loss of wage earning capacity. Based on claimant's

eduvatlon, work experlence and physical limitations, the Board
conoludes that claimant is entitled to an award of 240° for

75% unscheduled disability for his low back.

' ORDER

I
1
'

The Referee's order, dated July 8, 1977, is modified.

! Claimant is awarded 240° for 75% unscheduled low back
dlsablllty This award is in lieu of the awards made by the
Referee s order which, in all other respects, is affirmed.

Claimant's attorney is hereby granted as a reasonable
attorney 5 fee for his services at Board review a sum equal to
25% 'of the increased compensation granted by this order, payable
out of said compensation as paid, not to exceed $2,300.

!

| |

| N
a

|
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WCB CASE NO. 77-2877 MARCH 24, 1978

.CONNIE DANIELS, CLAIMANT

Dye & Olson, Claimant’'s Atty.

Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Williamson
& Schwabe, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by &laimant

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order which
granted her compensation equal to 80° for 25% unscheduled disakil-
ity. Claimant contends that this award is inadequate.

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated October 13, 1977, is af-.
firmed.

SAIF CLAIM NO. BC 263113 MARCH 24, 1978

GARRY C., ELKINS, CLAIMANT
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Own Motion Determination

Claimant suffered a compensable injury to his right
hand on August 21, 1970 when he caught it in a corn picker

belt. He entered the hospital with an amputation of his richt
index finger, compound fractures of the middle phalanx of the
middle finger, the proximal phalanx of the ring finger, and
lacerations.of the little finger. Surgery was performed, how-
ever, after gangrene set in, claimant's middle finger was am-
putated several days later. Claimant was released for work

on October 23, 1970 and on March 10, 1971 his claim was closed
with permanent disability equal to 24° right index finger, 22°
right middle finger, 6° right ring finger and 31° loss of oppo-
sition right thumb.

On February 1, 1973 claimant had a silastic arthro-
plasty of the proximal interphalangeal joint of his right ring
finger and the claim was closed again on September 12, 1973
with no additional award for permanent disability.

Claimant in late 1976 complained of persistent pain
in the PIP joint of the right ring finger and surgery was per-
formed on October 28 for fusion of the PIP joint to relieve
the pain,



Claimant was referred to Vocational Rehabilitation on
January 27, 1977 and he completed a commercial truck driving
program on April 19, 1977. A week later he returned to his
former place of employment driving farm equipment with certain
'lim#tations placed on his duties.

I

i On October 27, 1977 an exploration of the dorsal area
of the ring finger for K-wire removal was done, without success.
Hlslcondltlon was medically stationary on November 10, 1977
and |Dr. Ellison considered claimant's condition to be back es- 3
sentially to his pre-operative state of October 27, 1977.

I

i On December 7, 1977 the State Accident Insurance Fund
requested a determination of claimant's disability. The Evalu-
atlon Division of the Workers' Compensation Department recom-
mends that claimant be granted temporary total disability com-
peneatlon from October 28, 1976 through April 25, 1977 and tem-
porary partial disability from April 26, 1977 through November
6, 1977; that claimant has been adequately compensated for his
permanent disability.

| ) ) . )

| The Board concurs with this recommendation.
|

‘ ORDER

Claimant is hereby granted temporary total disability
from October 28, 1976 through April 25, 1977 and temporary par-
tiall disability from April 26, 1977 through November 6, 1977,
less time worked.

|
4
|
!
|
CHARLES GRANT, CLAIMANT
Malagon, Starr & Vinson, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Reguest for Review by the SAIF

|

| The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the|Referee s order which remanded claimant's aggravation claim
- to it for acceptance and payment of compensation to which he is
entitled.

WCB CASE NO. 76-3115 =~  MARCH 24, 1978

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

! The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
. Oplalon and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

l
! ORDER

l

! The order of the Referee, dated June 9, 1977, is affirmed.
|

i
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Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-
ney's fee for his services in connection with this Board review in e
the amount of $350, payable by the Fund.

WCE CASE NO. T6=3167 MARCH 24, 1378

CHARLES IL.. GRIFFITH, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn & -
O'Leary, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which affirmed the State Accident Insurance Fund's denial of
his claim. Claimant contends his claim is compensable and he
is entitled to penalties and attorney fees.

Claimant, a 52-year-old boilermaker, contends he sus-
tained a compensable injury to his left foot on December 19,
1975 when blisters, which had not healed, became infected, re-
sulting in the amputation of his foot below the knee on March
10, 1976. Claimant has had diabetes since birth and has been
using insulin since 1946.

Claimant had had a similar problem in June 1975 and
was hospitalized in August for a non-healing infected ulcer of
his left foot. His claim for this incident was denied by the
Fund on August 4, 1975 and never appealed. Claimant missed

several months from work due to this problem.

Claimant, in addition to being a -diabetic, has various
other medical problems.

On October 26, 1976, claimant had returned to work for
his employer of 10 years and worked until December 19, 1975
when he had to leave his job because blisters which had formed
under the toes of the left foot became infected, Claimant's left
lower leg was surgically amputated on March 10, 1976 by Dr. Mc-
Connell.

Claimant testified that on his last day at work he
had done considerable walking and at the end of the day his left
foot was swollen in front and there was blistering around his

little toe.

Dr. Blumberg, a thoracic and vascular surgeon, testi-
fied that the infection that occurred in 1975 would recur
spontaneously because of the advanced stage of claimant's

It
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|

|
diseage He explained it is common to advise patients with
diabetes or peripheral vascular disease to walk to regenerate
smal]\blood vessels. Dr. Blumberg agreed that the consider-
able walking claimant did at work could be an aggravating fac-
tor, but he did not believe it was the cause of claimant's
problem. Dr. Blumberg also noted that claimant suffered from
lack of sensation in his foot.

| Dr. McConnell, who treated claimant from December 26,
1976, Iopined that the walking claimant did on December 19, 1975
was d;materlal contributing factor in the development of the
bllster on claimant's left foot and the resultlng infection

wh1chtr9qu1red the amputation. He also testified that claimant
would‘not have pain from the blisters which would cause him to
stop walklng because of his diabetic peripheral neuropathy.

| The Referee found that the claimant had not proven he
had engaged in excessive walking on his last day at work which
would cause the blisters on his left foot. Hé further found
claimﬁnt to not be a credible witness. Therefore, he affirmed
the FPnd's denial of claimant's claim, '

| The Board, after de novo review, found that Dr. McCon-
nell had testified that any blunt trauma, including excessive
walking, could cause claimant's foot to form a blister. It is
not nkcessary for claimant to prove "excessive walking"; the
fact is that claimant did walk at work-and as a result of this
walkihg did develop a blister that became infected and resulted
in claimant's left leg being amputated. Claimant, because of
his diabetic peripheral neuropathy would not receive any warn-

ing in the nature of pain from a blister and, therefore, would
not know when to stop walking.

ORDER

The Referee's order, dated August 12, 1977, is re-

versed.

! Claimant's claim is remanded back to the Fund to be
accepted and for the payment of compensation, as provided by
law, commencing December 19, 1975 and until his claim is closed

pursu%nt to ORS 656.268.

! Claimant's attorney is awarded $850 as a reasonable
attorpey fee in this matter for his services before the Referee
at the hearing.

{
i
! Claimant's attorney is awarded $350 as a reasonable

attorney s fee for his services at Board review.
I

|
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WCB CASE NO. 77-454 MARCH 24r 1978

KENNETH LARSEN, CLAIMANT
Coons & Anderson, Claimant's Atty. ’
Jones, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty.
McMenamin, Joseph, Herrell & Paulson,
Defense Atty.

Qrdel

On March 7, 1978 the Board denied claimant's request
that it remand the above entitled matter to Referee J. Wallace
Fitzgerald for the purpose of admitting into evidence the de-
position of Dr. James Brooke.

On March 10, 1978 claimant filed a motion with the
Board to recconsider its order of March 7, 1978.

The Board, after due consideration of the facts recited
in support _of claimant's motion, finds no justification therein
for reconsideration of its order.

ORDER

Claimant's motion for reconsideration of the Board's
corder entered on March 7, 1978 in the above entitled matter is
herebhy denied. '

WCB CASE NO. 76-6398 MARCH 24, 1978

LEONARD E. MATHEUS, CLAIMANT

Doblie, Bischoff & Murray, Claimant's Atty.
SAIF, Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Phillips.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review of
the Referee's order which granted claimant compensation for per-

manent total disapiliey,

The Board, after de novo review, affirms and adopts the
Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is attached
hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated August 18, 1977, is af-
firmed.
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Claimant's attorney is hereby granted a reasonable attor-
ney''s fee for his services in connection with this Board review in
the!amount of $35¢0, payable by the Fund.

T .

ﬁ WCB CASE NO. 77-4257 MARCH 24, 1978
i

EDGAR A. POWELL, CLAIMANT
Doblie, Bischoff & Murray, Claimant's Atty.
Llndsay, Nahstoll, Hart, Neil & Weigler,
DPfense Atty.
SAIE Legal Serv1ces, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by Employer
|
I

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moorxre.

The employer seeks Board review of the Referee's order
whl?h granted claimant 15° for 10% loss of his right legq.

] Claimant, a 32-year-old logger, sustained a compensable
injury to his right knee on July 14, 1976 when he tripped and
cut lhis right knee with his power saw. His injury was diagnosed
as a laceration without bone injury. Claimant was found medically

staﬁionaryﬂon August 14, 1976.
o

| Claimant returned to his regular job but terminated due
to back and leg pain. His back condition results from another
1njqry and is not an issue in this case.

l
| Claimant testified he has numbness in his right knee
whlch is affected by weather changes and he notices tightness

,and]numbness when going up and down stairs or kneeling.

| . ,. Dr. Reiger reported in February of 1977 that claimant's
scar was well healed and flexion and extension were good. He
did . not find any tenderness.

‘ Dr. Van Olst examined claimant in July of 1977 and found
clalmant had normal range of motion in his right knee and a mild
feellng of tightness. He found no other evidence of any function-
al impairment. A Determination Order dated May 3, 1977 awarded
claimant temporary total disability benefits only.

The Referee found that any pain claimant experienced
was not disabling, but the tightness and discomfort appeared
to restrict the full use of his knee. Therefore, he found claim-
ant 'had sustained a loss of function equal to 15° for 10% loss
of ?is right leg.
’ The Board, after de novo review, finds no evidence
in the record of any functional impairment of claimant's right
kneD Claimant has all the use of his _knee that he had be-
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fore the injury. Dr. Van 0lst found only numbness in claim-
ant's right knee, no loss of function.

ORDER

The Referee's order, dated October 11, 1977, is re-
versed.

The Determination Order, dated May 3, 1977, is af-
firmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-1368 MARCH 24, 1978

SHIRLEY RADDATZ, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn, &
O0'Leary, Clalmant's Atty.

Flinn, Lake & Brown, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

Claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
whiah granted heér a total award of compeéensation équal to 1280
for 40% unscheduled back disability. Claimant contends this
award does not adequately compensate her for her disability.

The Board, after de nove review, affirms and adopts
the Opinion and Order of the Referee, a copy of which is at-
tached hereto and, by this reference, is made a part hereof.

ORDER

The order of the Referee, dated August 30, 1977, is
affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-3550 MARCH 24, 1978

MICHAEL H. ROGERS, CLAIMANT

Pozzi, Wilson, Atchison, Kahn &
O'Leary, Claimant's Atty.

Merlin Miller, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by Claimant

Reviewed by Board Members Moore and Phillips.

The claimant seeks Board review of the Referee's order
which found that claimant was not entitled to any benefits for
temporary total disability beyond the date of February 5, 1977.
The Referee also found that the denial of vocational rehabilita-




;
|
-

t10n‘serv1ces by the Disability Preventlon Division was arbitrary
and capr1c1ous and should be reversed; he remanded the matter to
the DPD for appropriate action.

\ oo
| Claimant contends that, should the Board find that he

was hedically and vocationally gtationary, the award feor his
disability resulting from his low back injury of September 21,
1976 was greater than the 5% awarded by the Determination Order
dateF March 30, 1977.

\ Claimant's injury was diagnosed as acute strain of the
lumbosacral spine and strain of the paravertebral musculature pre-
dlsposed by degenerative spondylosis. Claimant was treated by
Dr. Plamodon, a chiropractic physician, and also examined by Dr.
Pasqpesi. No measurable impairment was found but because of
claimant's history of back problems, i.e., Scheuermann's disease,
he was advised to obtain work not requiring repetitive stooping,

bending and twisting of the trunk. Dr. Plamodon concurred with
Dr. Pasque31 5 oplnlon except that he felt that the chircpractic
treatment he was giving claimant was curative and directed at
healing the injury. On PFebruary 5, 1977 Dr. Plamodon found
claimant to be medically stationary; he considered him a candi-
date for vocational rehabilitation.

! On February 18, 1977 the Disability Prevention Division
declined referral for vocational assistance, bhased on the fact

that' claimant had a latent pre- existing problem which was re-
veaLed by the industrial injury which returned to its prior state
fol]Pw1ng proper treatment. Furthermore, claimant has an educa-
tion which includes three years of college credits which was con-
sidered sufficient to enable him to compete in the labor mar-

ket or work within his physical capabilities. Again, on March
21, 1977, the Disability Prevention Division advised claimant
that! they were declining referral for vocational assistance,
stating that claimant's education was sufficient to qualify

him ﬁo reenter the job market in a light type occupation.

Claimant has not worked since his injury: he testi-
fies ihe can no longer chop wood, hike, back pack or play ten-
nis and he is unable to bend or twist without ‘causing pain to
himself. At the present time he is attending chiropractic
college; "he started his course in July 1977. He has not looked
for work which he could do after his classes are over, claiming
he has a very heavy study load. <Claimant also stated that he
had only one prior back problem which required two treatments
and was resolved before his present injury.

| The Referee found that claimant's contention that he
was not medically stationary until May 1977 rather than February
was not supported by the medical evidence. Dr. Pasquesi had
found claimant to be medically stationary in November of 1976
and Dr Plamodon had said he was on.February 5, 1977. Dr. Hanna,
another chiropractic physician, stated he had been treatlng
claimant during March 1977, nevertheless considered claimant to
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be medically staticnary on February 5, 1977. The Referee con-
cluded that claimant was entitled to no benefits for temporary
total disability beyond that date.

On this issue of whether or not the Disability Preven-
tion Division acted capriciously in refusing to refer claimant

for vocational rehabilitation services, the Referee found that
claimant had been denied referral chiefly because he had approx-
imately three years of college and it was felt that although he
was restricted physically he could return to light work because
of his education. The Referee found the evidence indicated that
claimant's college studies were mostly in the remedial basic
courses without any particular training in any specific area.

He cited OAR 61-005{(4) which defines a vocationally handicapped
worker as a worker who is unable to return to his regular em-
ployment because of the permanent residuals of an occupational

injury or disease, and who had no other skills whlch would enable
him to return to gainful employment.

The Referee concluded in this case that claimant had
no other skills which would enable him to return to a gainful
employment; the basic studies he had pursued in cocllege did
not necessarily endow claimant with such skills.

The Board, on de novo review, finds that the medical
evidence is clear and uncontradicted pon the issue of when
claimant became medically stationary. Claimant is entitled

s wo osmpencation for tomporary total dicability heyond Feb=
ruary 5, 1977.

The Board also finds, based upon Dr. Pasquesi's med-
ical report, that claimant has not suffered any severe impair-
ment and concludes that claimant has been adegquately compen-
sated for any loss of wage earning capacity which he may have
suffered as a result of his industrial injury by the award of
16° for 5% of the maximum allowable by law for unscheduled dis-

ability.

In this case the Board finds that claimant was not a
vocationally handicapped worker as defined by OAR 61-005(4).
The Referee apparently believed that because claimant's college
studies were mostly in the remedial basic course area without
any particular training in any specific field that participa-
tion therein did not result in providing claimant with any
skills which would enable him to return to a gainful employ-
ment. Not every person who attends college leaves with speci-
fic qualifications, but a general college education coften opens
the door for many job opportunities.

Claimant is only 23 vyears old, his physical impair-
ment is slight, and his work background varied. The Beard
finds no evidence that claimant could not reenter the labor mar-
ket at the present time in many fields involving lighter type
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employment. Therefore, the Board finds that the non-referral
by the Disability Prevention Division was not arbitrary or ca-
pricious and the Referee's order remanding the matter to the
DPD for appropriate action must be reversed.

ORDER

| the order of the Referee, dated October 11, 18%%, 1is’
reversed.

The Determination Order of March 30, 1977 which granted
claimant compensation for temporary total disability from Sep-
tember 21, 1976 through February 5, 1977 and 16° for 5% unsched-
uled|low back disgability is affirmed.

WCB CASE NO. 77-713 MARCH 28, 1978

BILL| BRANTON, CLAIMANT

Bodle, Minturn, Van Voorhees, Larson
& DlXOH, Claimant's Atty.

SAIF‘ Legal Services, Defense Atty.

Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The State Accident Insurance Fund seeks Board review
of the Referee's order which found the claimant to be permanently
and totally disabled as of the date of his order.

Claimant, 43 years old, suffered two compensable 1njur—
ies to his back whlle working for the same employer.

f
On November 22, '1971 he stepped off a tractor and suf-
fered an injury, dlaqnosed as a lumbosacral strain. Claimant was
released to work and his claim was closed by a Determination Or-
der,| dated March 29, 1973, which granted him 64° for 20% unsched-
uled| low back disability.

On March 29, 1972 he again injured his back while log-
ging; at this time his employer was a non-complying employer.

Dr. Denker found a previous laminectomy and spinal fusion L4-5-S1
w1th‘an incomplete fusion of the left L4-5. He referred claimant
to Dr. Anderson who examined claimant in May 1972 and found a
fracture of the fusion at the L4-5 level. Dr. Anderson felt
that|, as a result of both injuries, claimant had suffered a frac-
turei of a fusion performed in 1964.

. A myelogram revealed a significant defect at the L4-5
1pterspace. Claimaqt first declined surgery but when his condi-
tion worsened, he underwent a lumbar laminectomy and fusion at
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the L4-5 level on April 17, 1975, He reported a continuation of
significant symptoms and his doctor opined that claimant was un- é
able to return to work as a rancher, but would be able to do some

work and suggested vocational rehabilitation.

Claimant went to the Disability Prevention Center in
September 1976. While he was there he complained of low back

paln, pain, numbness and weakness in the left leg. The doctore
diagnosed chronic lumbosacral sprain L3-L4 and L5 radiculopathy
and post-operative status of his two surgeries; also, moderate
emotional disturbance with mild depression. Claimant was found
to be functionally illiterate and possessed so few skills, the
prognosis for reemployment was not good. The Disability Preven-
tion Division rated claimant's vocational handicap as. moderate
based on his physical limitation and advised a job change and
referral to vocational rehabilitation.

Claimant was declared ineligible for vocational rehabil-
itation services in December 1976 because of physical problems
and limited educational and vocational aptitudes.

A Determination Order dated January 27, 1977 awarded
clalmant additional time loss benefits and 144° for 45% unsched-
uled low back disability.

Dr. Tiley reported in April 1977 that the lumbar fusion
was s0lid with no evidence of pseudoarthrosis. He felt claimant
was retrainable; but could not repeatedly 1ift more than 40 pounds:
Low back rotation or prolonged position maintenance were contrain-
dicated.

Claimant still complains of pain. He has worked almost
exclusively at common heavy lahor jobhs. He has tried to do the
various ranching activities he used to perform, but now it takes
longer and requires prolonged rest periods after working for only
an hour.

The Referee found the claimant was permanently and tot-
ally disabled. He found that claimant was not a "basket" case;
he was able to occasionally perform certain activities, but he
was unable to perform them on any regular and gainful basis.
Claimant's training, experience and aptitudes all indicated he
was suited for only heavy labor type employment to which he now
cannot return.

, The Referee did not find any lack of motivation or ma-
lingering. The Fund requested the Referee to separate the dis-
ability attributable to each claim and the Referee found claim-
ant's present disability was attributable to the March 2%, 1972
incident, based on Dr. Anderson's opinion that this incident ag-
gravated and made a definite determination of the fracture of the
fusion. e
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The Board, after de noveo review, finds that the evi-
dence clearly establishes that the claimant is permanently
and Fotally disabled.

On the issue of the amount of disability attributable
to each claim, the Beoard finds, merely from an advisory point
of v1ew, that the injury of March 1972 (when the employer was
non- complylng) accounted for-2/3 of claimant's current disabil-
ity and therefore, that the Fund should apply for reimburse-
ment| of 2/3 of the cost of the claim.

ORDER
fhe Referee's order, dated guly 28, 1977, 1is affirmed.
Claimant's attorney is awarded as a reasonable attor-

ney'? fee for his services before the Board $350, payable by the
Fund,

‘ WCB CASE NO. 77-316 MARCH 28, 1978
| WCB CASE NO. 77-1199

HARALD (CHRIS) CHRISTOFFERSEN, CLAIMANT
Coons & Anderson, Claimant's Atty.
SAIﬂ Legal Services, Defense Atty.
Request for Review by the SAIF

Reviewed by Board Members Wilson and Moore.

The State Accident Insurance Fund has requested Board
review of the portion of the Referee's order relating to WCB
Case|No. 77-316, which ordered the claim against Cone Lumber
Company reopened for payment of additional medical care and treat-
ment| and appropriate temporary total disability compensation.

Two cases were consolidated for hearing., Claimant
flleé a claim against Cone Lumber Co., insured by the Fund, for
alleged nervous or emotional problems caused by work-related
stress. This claim was accepted, benefits paid and was closed
with;an award for temporary .total disability from September 29,
1975| to December 14, 1975 but no award for permanent disability.
Claimant requested a hearing on the adequacy of this determlna—
tion| (WCB Case No. 77-316).

' Claimant then went to work in mid-December 1975 for
Star|Wood Products, also insured by the Fund. In January 1977
he filed a claim alleging essentially the same problem. The
Fund!denied this claim (WCB Case No. 77-1199). This denial was
affirmed by the Referee; the claimant did not appeal.

Claimant began his work for Cone Lumber Company in 1962
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as a construction foreman. He soon took on the job of mainten-
ance foreman and later also assumed purchasing duties for the em-
ployer. Mr. Cone testified he was a world traveler and had left
much of the plant operation up to the claimant. Claimant testi-
fied on his last day of work in September 1975 for Cone Lumber
Co. an equipment breakdown occurred and he found himself weeping,
shaking and cold all over. He then left the job and consulted

br. HOS]{J'..DS WhO referred claiman{: ‘!:O —DI'. Vergamini, a psychialcris{:.

Dr. Vergamini's opinion was that claimant was suffering
from a depressive neurosis in addition to a traumatic anxiety
neurosis stemming from his enployment with the Cone Lumber Com-
pany and precipitated again by his experiences after he went to

work for Star Woed Preducts, He felt within reasonakle medical
probability that this disability was of a permanent nature and
would affect claimant in any attempts to again become employed in
a mill setting. Claimant, himself, testified he presently was
not having any difficulties 'and as long as he stayed away from
sawmills and didn't discuss sawmills, he had no problems.

Citing Dimitroff v. SIAC, 209 Or 316, the Referee found
that claimant was not medically stationary, and he ordered the
Fund to reopen claimant's claim filed for further medical care
and treatment and to pay claimant appropriate temporary total

disability benefits.

The Board, on de novo review, is of the opinion that al-
though claimant's emotional difficulty has apparently disabled
him from one specific type of employment he is not unable to pur-
sue unrelated employment. The Board finds claimant's condition is
medically stationary and, based on reports of his treating psychia-
trist, finds that claimant has sustained permanent psychological
disability equal to 20%.

ORDER
The Referee's order, dated June 21, 1977, is reversed.

Claimant is awarded 64° for 20% unscheduled psychia-
tric disability. This is in addition to the award for temporary
"total disability granted by the Determination Order dated August
3, 1976.

Claimant's attorney is granted as a reasonable attorney's
fee a sum equal to 25% of the compensation granted claimant by
this order, payable out of such compensation as paid, not to ex-
ceed $2,300.
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| WCB CASE NO. 77-1178-B MARCH 28, 1978
PHYLLIS GALASH, CLAIMANT

Lee Flnders, Claimant's Atty.

Jones, Lang, Klein, Wolf & Smith,
Defense Atty.

Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey, Williamson
& Schwabe, Defense Atty.

Order of abatement

On March 7, 1978 an order was issued in the above en-

‘.tltled matter awarding claiman